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This property is listed in the National Register of Historic
Places in accordance with the attached nomination documentation
subject to the following exceptions, exclusions, or amendments,
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in the nomination documentation.
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Amended ems in Nomination:

Description:
The Architectural Classifications are revised to delete: Modem Movement/Ranch.

[The architectural classifications should relate only to extant contributing resources.]

706 14" Street. The correct District Contribution category should read: Non-historic, Non-contributing.
[The building is correctly identified as non-contributing in the inventory list and district map, but the narrative
provides conflicting opinions, initially qualifying the building as non-contributing and then contributing.]

147 South Forest Street. The correct District Contribution category should read: Historic, Non-contributing.
[The building is correctly identified as non-contributing in the inventory list and district map, but the narrative
provides conflicting opinions, initially qualifying the building as non-contributing and then contributing.]

239 South Forest Street. The correct District Contribution category should read: Historic, Non-contributing.
[The building is correctly identified as non-contributing in the inventory list and district map, but the narrative
provides conflicting opinions, initially qualifying the building as non-contributing and then contributing.]

233 South Garden Street. The correct District Contribution category should read: Historic, Contributing.

[The building is correctly identified as contributing in the inventory list and district map, but the narrative
provides conflicting opinions, initially qualifying the building as non-contributing and then contributing.]

Continued

These clarifications were confirmed with the WA SHPO office.

DISTRIBUTION:
National Register property file
Nominating Authority (without nomination attachment)



South Hill Historic District Whatcom WA
Property Name County State

412 North State Street. The correct District Contribution category should read: Historic, Contributing.
[The building is correctly identified as contributing in the inventory list and district map, but the narrative
provides conflicting opinions, initially qualifying the building as non-contributing and then contributing.]

U. T. M. Reference Coordinates:
The corrected UTM Coordinates must completely circumscribe the district resources and boundaries. Two
additional points are added to complete the larger polygon

1 10 537565 5398715
2 10 637719 5398563
3 10 537291 5396703
4 10 536590 5396726
5 10 536479 5397441
6 10 536763 5397765

These clarifications were confirmed with the WA SHPO office.

DISTRIBUTION:
National Register property file
Nominating Authority (without nomination attachment)
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1. Name of Property

historic name  South Hill Historic District

other names/site number

2. Location

street & number area bounded roughly by Knox, 11th, State, Cedar, 17th, and Highland (] not for publication

city or town Bellingham [ vicinity

state Washington code WA  county Whatcom code 73 zip code 98225 -

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

| hereby certify that this _X__ nomination ___ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards
for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property _X meets ____ does not meet the National Register Criteria. 1 recommend that this property
be considered significant at the following level(s}) of significance:

___nhational __ statewide _X_local

/2/S -Q9

Date
Prese e
HsTNC  MESEAATAN  oFH U=
Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government
In my opinion, the property ___ meets ____ does not meet the National Register criteria.
Signature of commenting official Date
Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

4. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certify that this property is:

@1 the National Register ___determined eligible for the National Register

___determined not eligible for the National Register ___removed from the National Register

___ other (explain:)
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South Hill Historic District
Name of Property

Whatcom County, WA
County and State

5. Classification

Category of Property
(Check only one box)

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)

X | private building(s)
X | public - Local X | district
public - State site
public - Federal structure
object

Name of related muitiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing  Noncontributing

387 253 buildings
sites

111 188 structures
objects

498 441 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

3

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC / single dwelling

DOMESTIC / multiple dwelling

EDUCATION / school

RELIGIOUS FACILITY / church

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC / single dwelling

DOMESTIC / multiple dwelling

EDUCATION / school

RELIGIOUS FACILITY / church

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

LATE VICTORIAN / Queen Anne

LATE 19™ & 20™ CENTURY REVIVAL / Colonial

LATE 19™ & 20™ CENTURY REVIVAL / Tudor

LATE 19™ & 20™ CENTURY AMERICAN MOVE-

MENTS / Craftsman

MODERN MOVEMENT / Ranch

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation: STONE, CONCRETE

walls: WOOD / clapboard, shingle, plywood

BRICK, ASBESTOS, SYNTHETICS / vinyl

roof: _ASPHALT / composition shingle

other: BRICK, STONE, METAL, WOOD

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance of the property. Explain contributing and noncontributing resources
if necessary. Begin with a summary paragraph that briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as

its location, setting, size, and significant features.)

See Continuation Sheet



South Hill Historic District

Name of Property

Whatcom County, WA

County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing)

X

A Property is associated with events that have made a

significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history.

Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a
type, period, or method of construction or represents
the work of a master, or possesses high artistic
values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply)

Property is:

A owned by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

B removed from its original location.

C a birthplace or grave.

D acemetery.

E areconstructed building, object, or structure.

F acommemorative property.

G less than 50 years of age or achieving significance
within the past 50 years.

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Architecture

Community planning

Period of Significance
1886 - 1945

Significant Dates
1888, 1889, 1890, 1900 — Addition dates

1906, 1909, 1920 — Trolley arrives and expands

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above)

Architect/Builder
Cutter, Kirtland, architect

Doan, T.F., architect

Lee, Alfred, architect

Longstaff & Black, architects

Piper, Stanley, architect

Stanton, Franklin, architect

Narrative Statement of Significance See Continuation Sheet

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography (Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

___preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67 has been
requested

____previously listed in the National Register

_____previously determined eligible by the National Register
designated a National Historic Landmark

____recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #

__recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

Primary location of additional data:

____ State Historic Preservation Office
_ x_ Other State agency
___ Federal agency
__x_Local government
___University

x_Other
Name of repository: Whatcom Museum - Photo Archives




South Hill Historic District Whatcom County, WA
Name of Property County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property  186.57
(Do not include previously listed resource acreage)

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)

1 10 537565 5398715 3 10 536590 5396726
Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
2 10 537291 5396703 4 10 536763 5397765
Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (describe the boundaries of the property)
See Continuation Sheet
Boundary Justification (explain why the boundaries were selected)

See Continuation Sheet

11. Form Prepared By

namef/titte David Pinyerd and Lynette Felber

organization Historic Preservation Northwest date July 31, 2009

street & number 1116 11" Ave SW telephone 541-791-9199

city or town Albany state OR zip code 97321
e-mail pinyerd@hp-nw.com

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
¢ Maps: AUSGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series} indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all
photographs to this map.

e Continuation Sheets

o Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U.S. Dept. fo the Interior, 1849 C. Street, NW, Washington, DC.
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NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

Summary

The South Hill Neighborhood has been home to Bellingham’s working, middle and upper classes for over 120
years, and the neighborhood’s houses reflect the different building trends throughout this time span. The
neighborhood itself is delineated largely by topography. Bellingham Bay marks the western edge, and with a
steep climb to the east, the top of the hill is reached at the eastern edge. Western Washington Umversny
stands at the northernmost borders and historic Fairhaven lies at the southernmost end. In the 19" century
South Hill was dotted with a scattering of buildings. It wasn't until the arrival of the 20" century, real estate
developers, and the street car that South Hill began to fill in with houses. The social strata somewhat matched
the topography with the majority of the working class people locating lower on the hill near the industry along
the bay, and the captains of industry and other prominent persons building grand resndences higher up on the
hill. Today, the neighborhood is characterized by a mixture of Victorian-era houses, late 19" century
vernacular housing, Craftsman bungalows, European Revival-style homes, and post World War Il and modern
style architecture.

Narrative

Many buildings in the South Hill Neighborhood were constructed between 1925 and 1930. However, the area
was first settled by the working class at the western edge beginning in the 1880s to be close to the workplaces
along the bay. Further up the slope to the east were a few finer houses which overlooked the bay front
industry. It wasn’t until the arrival of the streetcar in 1906 and the booming economy of Bellingham that the
upper slopes of South Hill begin to be built out. The historic buildings in the neighborhood reflect the building
trends of the 1910s and 1920s, such as Craftsman and European Revival styles. By the Great Depression,
the lots of South Hill were nearly all developed west of 17" Street with a few 1940s and 1950s dwellings filling
in empty lots and replacing demolished structures.

Within the South Hill Historic District boundaries there are 662 tax lots. On the 662 tax lots there are 644
principal structures. According to the Whatcom County Assessor’s records, historical research and
professional survey evaluation, of the 644 principal structures, 587 were built before 1961 and 527 were built
before 1946. Of the 587 pre-1961 principal structures, there are 583 residential, two churches, one hospital
remnant and one school.
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Resource Types

Nearly all of the buildings within the South Hill Historic District are houses. Only five out of 644 principal
structures within the South Hill Historic District boundaries are not currently used for housing. Within the
overall category of residential structures, single family dwellings predominate, representing 622 of the total.
The current use types found for principal structures for addressed properties in South Hill:

Current Use Statistics for Addressed Principal Structures
Current Use v Count
Domestic - Multiple Family House 17
Domestic - Single Family House 622
Education - School 1
Other - Hospital Remnant 1
Religion - Religious Facility 2
Transportation - Garage 1
Total 644

Construction Dates

Construction dates in the South Hill Historic District were found to concentrate around the late 1920s, with 203
or 32% of the resources built between 1924 and 1930. That period was a boom time for Bellingham, ending
decisively with the Great Depression. However, the South Hill area experienced building booms before the
1920s as construction worked its way up from the bay toward the east. There are 271 buildings standing in
the South Hill District constructed prior to 1921 (42%). These earlier buildings are concentrated lower on the
slope toward the west and are scattered over the slope of the hill. This was typical in Washington State,
where the earlier property owners bought a series of lots, built their houses, and then gradually sold off lots
which helped to fill in the neighborhood with consecutively newer houses.
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South Hill Historic District Construction Dates
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Properties on the National Register

Three houses in South Hill are currently listed on the National Historic Register and correspond to the first
wave of South Hill development: the James F. Wardner House built in 1890; the Gamwell House built 1890-
1892; and the Alfred L. Black House, built circa 1906.

Survey and Integrity

In 2008 and 2009 a systematic survey of the entire South Hill Neighborhood was performed by Historic
Preservation Northwest as part of a Preserve America Grant. A reconnaissance-level survey was completed
for 728 resources in the neighborhood determined to have been built before 1960. Of those 728 resources,
an intensive-level survey was completed for 558 resources to write their history and determine eventual
contribution to the historic district. The boundaries for the historic district, which encompasses 644 of the 728
pre-1960 buildings, were based on the survey and research results and take into consideration geographic,
temporal, and integrity considerations.

Integrity evaluation was a key part of the survey project. Resources were evaluated in three categories
representing the main character-defining features of a building: plan, cladding, and windows. The three
elements of each building were evaluated as being intact, slightly altered, moderately altered, or extensively
altered. Integrity, or level of alteration, was determined according to the following table:
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Plan Cladding Windows
There are no apparent All siding is historic. Partial All windows are historic. Exact
additions. replacement with compatible material is | replication of a few windows is
Intact acceptable, e.g. new wood lap at the acceptable. One incompatible
foundation. Full replacement with a window on a non-visible elevation is
new compatible material would acceptable.
probably fall into “slight.”.
» There are additions Siding replaced with compatible Several non-historic windows on
c (especially historic) to the | material, especially early in the non-visible elevations is acceptable.
° rear of the building or building’s history (e.g. drop to lap One non-historic window on a visible
Slight small, compatible newer siding). Minor incompatible elevation is allowed. Near exact
- additions, e.g. a new replacements, e.g. T1-11 foundation replication of most windows is
> dormer with compatible skirting. acceptable.
© massing and styling.
13
o There are additions to the | Partial siding replacement with non- All windows have been replaced
- sides of the building that compatible material, e.g. vinyl on while keeping the same openings
- are visible from the front ground floor, wood on an upper floor. and same window configuration. Full
< Moderate and change the overall vinyl window replacement leaving
building mass. window openings intact and
matching sash configuration would
be here.
There are major additions | All siding replaced/ covered with metal All windows have been replaced
on the front and sides or or vinyl veneer. Historic siding without regard to window
to the building’s height replacement with material that is configuration or openings.
Extensive | and roof structure. The substantially different visually from
building is barely original, e.g. Queen Anne building with
recognizable as a historic | combed wood shingle or asbestos
structure. shingle.

As part of the survey, the buildings were compared to the 1950 Sanborn Fire Insurance map. Sanborn made
maps of the neighborhood starting in 1890, and provided updates up to 1963. Through comparative analysis
of the Sanborns and current aerial photographs, as well as examination of the buildings from streets and
alleys, it was found that very few buildings within the South Hill Historic District had been extensively altered in
plan. Only 47 out of 587 buildings built before 1961 (8%) were extensively altered. There were alterations,
but many of the plans were either intact or slightly altered (467, or 80%).

Cladding integrity in the South Hill Historic District area was very high. Out of 587 resources built before 1961,
493 properties (84%) were found to have intact or slightly altered siding. Only 94 resources had moderate to

extensive alterations. This high siding integrity is due to the neighborhood’s quality maintenance of its original
fabric, along with restoration and additions with in-kind materials.

Out of 586 resources, 330 resources (56%) were found to have intact to slightly altered windows. Vinyl
windows were the main alteration, with bronzed aluminum sliders coming in second. Only 90 resources or
15% had extensively altered windows.
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Evaluation
To make a preliminary decision of contributing and non-contributing to a historic district, an objective algorithm
was used based on the above table:

1. If built after 1945, the building was considered “non-contributing” to a district in South Hill. This date
defines a strong change in house styles, construction methods, and land use in the post-World War Il
era.

2. [f a building had “extensive” alterations in any of the three categories of integrity, the structure was
considered non-contributing to a district.

3. If the building had “moderate” alterations in two or more categories, the structure was considered non-
contributing to a district.

4. A marginally non-contributing building could be “elevated” to contributing if history was uncovered of a
significant individual or event that occurred at the property, or if historic fabric were uncovered in the
future.

Through this evaluation process and the overlay of the district boundaries on the larger neighborhood
boundaries, 391 (61%) of the 644 principal structures were found to contribute to the historic district with 253
(39%) non-contributing.

Architectural Styles

While the dominant building type in the South Hill Historic District is the single family dwelling, the most
common building style is the Arts and Crafts (188), 32% of the total 587. (The total of 587 represents all the
structures within the district built before 1961, as these were the only ones given a style label.) The second
most common style was Tudor Revival, with a total of 87 (15%). Queen Anne was the third most common
style with 61 examples (10%). Below is a table of the style statistics for the historic district. The styles
themselves are presented in Section 8 of this nomination. Sample photos of most of the styles are provided
with this nomination.

South Hill Historic District Styles
Style Count

American Foursquare

American Foursquare - Colonial
American Foursquare - Craftsman
American Foursquare - Prairie
American Foursquare - Spanish
Arts & Crafts

Arts & Crafts - Craftsman 1
Arts & Crafts - Prairie Style

Arts & Crafts - Swiss Chalet

Beaux Arts

Beaux Arts - American Renaissance
Colonial

Colonial - Dutch Colonial

w(pn
ON| == (NN A 0NN
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South Hill Historic District Styles
Style Count
Colonial - Williamsburg 4
French 2
Modern 7
None 8
Other 1
Queen Anne 30
Queen Anne - Cottage 7
Queen Anne - Free Classic 24
Ranch 47
Ranch - Minimal Traditional 45
Ranch - Split Level 2
Ranch - World War |l Era Cottage 7
Spanish - Eclectic 2
Spanish - Mediterranean 6
Tudor - Cottage 63
Tudor - Revival 24
Vernacular 46
Total 587

Outbuildings

Accessory structures are an important part of the historic landscape of the South Hill Historic District. There
are 298 “permanent” outbuildings (i.e., those with a foundation or built before 1950). Of the 298, 110 were
found to be contributing to the historic district and 188 were non-contributing. Almost all of the buildings are
either garages or storage sheds.

Conclusion

The buildings of the South Hill Historic District retain the seven aspects of integrity: location, design, setting,
materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. Only “setting” has somewhat suffered over the years
through non-compatible infill construction. Of the 644 principal structures within the historic district
boundaries, 527 (82%) were built during the period of significance (1886-1945). Of these, few have been
extensively altered in plan  only 43 out of 527 (8%). Those with intact or slightly altered plans accounted for
79% (415 buildings). It was found that 440 properties (83%) have intact or slightly altered siding. Out of 526
resources with windows, 296 resources or 56% were found to have intact to slightly altered windows. Vinyl
windows have been the main alteration, with bronzed aluminum sliders coming in second. There were 83
resources (16%) with extensively altered windows.

On the following pages is a physical description and statement of significance for all the principal structures, in
address order, and their contribution within the boundaries of the South Hill Historic District.
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521 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134451

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1907

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story house at 521 12th Street was built circa 1907 in the Queen Anne style. It has a rectangular
plan that rests on a concrete foundation skirted in vertical boards. The roof is a front facing gable covered in asphalt composition
shingles. The roof is trimmed with a bargeboard and below the soffits there are brackets. There is also an omamental strip of
asymmetrical, square-within-square pattern which extends below the gable roof and above the second leve! polygonal window
bay. Because of the polygonal window bay, the strip is creased, creating the look of being folded in half. The house at 523 12th
Street mirrors this highly unusual feature. The walls are all clad in wood drop siding with the exception of the west side (front)
of the house which displays fishscale shingles on the bay, between the first and second floors. The west side of the house

also displays a comer board, a feature not found on the other sides of the house, as well as some paneling below the bay's first
floor windows. The primary window type is 1/1 wood doubie hung sash although there is a 4/1 horizontal wood sash window

on the north side of the house, as well as some fixed single pane windows on the front. The west side of the house displays
two sets of windows in the polygonal bay on both the first and second story of the house. There is an internal concrete chimney
located on the northwest side of the roof.

The house includes three small porches or decks, each one located at a point of entry. All three display wood railings. The first
deck or balcony is located on the far south end of the front's upper level and leads to the interior via two glass doors. The two
doors are a newer addition, as previous (undated) assessor's photos are void of the upper level deck and doors, showing a

porch roof instead. The floor of the upper level deck acts as a cover for the entry porch which is located directly below. The
porch includes square, chamfered posts as well as jig sawn brackets and a simple porch rail. The last deck is located on the
east side of the building and is rather small, mainly acting as a back entry way to the house. The east side (rear) also has its
own one-story polygonal bay with a hipped roof. There are concrete stairs on the west side of the house which lead to the front
entry way. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There
appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would
be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 521 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1907. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Both this house
and 523 12th Street appear to have been built as long-term rentals. The first property owner is listed as John Brooten. Several
families occupied these houses over the years, mostly in laboring and trades occupations. Due to the amount of alteration to the
original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

523 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201135449

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1907

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0  Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story Queen Anne style residence at 523 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built
circa 1907. The building's rectangular floor plan rests upon a concrete foundation that is partially exposed and partially covered
by vertical tongue-and-groove. Most of the house is clad in horizontal V-notch drop siding, except the full-height, polygonal front
bay which has paneling filled with horizontal tongue-and-groove at its base and fish scale shingles between floor levels. The
front garden includes a stone retaining wall and a stepped stone path leading to the front stairs. The stairs leading up to the front
stoop are made of wood and have the same wooden balustrade as the second story balcony. The original front-gable entry
porch roof has been replaced by this modern balcony with a wooden balustrade, held up by two square posts with chamfered
corners below a flat spindle rail. The front door is made of a single, large pane of glass set into a wood frame. The French
doors on the balcony match the front door and both entryways feature wooden casings with molded hoods. The front bay
extends the full height of the building, with a set of windows for each story. The windows in the bay are all fixed with wide
mullions. The front gable has open eaves with an exposed soffit and five triangular eave brackets below a wooden bargeboard
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that is crowned by a wooden shield-shaped ornament at the apex of the peak. The top portion of the gable projects relative to
the fagade, with the transition marked by a slanted, frieze-like band of coffers. The band continues across the top of the bay,
but features an unusually complex break as it follows its projection. lIts identical neighbor at 521 12th Street has the same
feature.

The south side of the house has a second entryway above a ground-level wooden deck. The side doors are French doors,
featuring fifteen-pane windows in a wooden frame with matching five-pane vertical windows flanking both sides and a six-pane
sash above the doorway. This side entry is sheltered by a shed roof with two triangular knee brackets. Also on the south side
of the building are two 6/9 wood sash windows with thin muntins set into wood casings with molded hoods. To the rear (east)
of the house is a one-story room with a flat-topped hip roof lined with a low wooden balustrade. On the east wall is a double set
of French doors that match the French doors on the front baicony.

There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to
be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

East of the house is a detached garage clad in V-notch drop siding with a cross-gable roof covered in asphalt composition
shingles. The garage gables have the same bargeboard and triangular brackets as the gables of the main house. The garage
features several vinyl sash windows with faux muntins and molded window hoods. The main door to the garage is made of
metal panels and faces south, but there is also a side door to the building, facing west, with a single pane window.

Statement of Significance: The house at 523 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1907. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Both this house
and 521 12th Street appear to have been built as long-term rentals. The first property owner is listed as John Brooten. Several
families occupied these houses over the years, mostly in laboring and trades occupations. Due to the amount of alteration to the
original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

601 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201136438

Date of Construction: 1994

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1994 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

605 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134432

Date of Construction:  c. 1904

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0  Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story house at 605 12th Street was built circa 1904 in the Free Classical style. It has a
rectangular plan which rests on a concrete foundation that is hidden by a vertical tongue-and-groove wood skirt. The house
consists of a side gabled roof with a slight flared edge on both the front and back of the north side, which gives way to eave
returns. A secondary front gable with chamfered comers at its first floor, lies toward the south of the fagade. The walls
themselves are clad in wood lap siding on the first floor, with shingles on the second floor. There is an internal brick chimney on
the northeast side of the house and skylights on both the north and south sides of the roof. The primary window type is 1/1
wood double hung sash, most with hood moldings. On the west side of the house there are also two windows which have an
intricate diamond design on the upper sash. The south side peak of the gabled roof features an ornamental circular window.
The west-facing facade of the house features a gabled dormer with a full eave return over the recessed front porch. Itis
covered by the flared portion of the roof and features Tuscan columns that rest on the shingled porch half wall. The chamfered



NPS Form 10-800-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 8 Whatcom County, Washington

southwest comer of the building is adorned with an ornate bracket. The south elevation features a rectangular bay with a
hipped roof. There are two sets of concrete stairs on west side of the property which lead up to the house.

The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building,
this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 605 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1904. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house
appears to have been built around 1904 as a rental, occupied by Lezatta and Lucy Bose, both employed by the American Can
Company. By 1910, it was owned and occupied by David L. Parliman, timekeeper for E.K. Wood Lumber Co., and his wife,
Jessie. It was sold around 1925 to Royal Douglas, department superintendent for Pacific American Fisheries, and his wife,
Minerva. Several other families of various occupations resided here from 1940 to date. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

609 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134429

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1905

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The one-story Craftsman style residence at 609 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa
1905. The house is primarily clad in raked wood shingles with drop siding in the front gable. The gable roof is covered in asphalt
composition shingles. The original floor plan was rectangular, but an early addition on the south side of the building has
transformed the house into an L-shape. The main foundation is made of poured concrete; however, the foundation undemeath
the porch staircase is hidden behind a wooden lattice-work skirt. The porch spans the width of the original, front-gable volume
of the building. Its hipped roof is supported by four square posts with molded capitals that rest on the porch's solid rail. The
south side of the porch has been filled-in with a fixed six-pane window with thin wooden muntins. Just below this exterior porch
window, set into the southem wall underneath it, there is a wood door with a single glass pane. The front door is made of
paneled wood with a single small pane. To the south of the door is a fixed picture window with molded trim, whereas to the
north of the door is a 1/1 vinyl sash window. Above the porch roof is a pair of eight-pane windows with wood muntins. The

front gable features open eaves with an exposed soffit, a wide wood bargeboard with one central eave bracket, and exposed
rafter tails on the side elevations. On the original portion of the south side of the house there is an exterior brick chimney and a
large fixed picture window in a wooden casing. The windows on the southern addition, however, are all vinyl sliders. The north
side of the house features 1/1vinyl sash windows.

There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding.
There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this
resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

To the front (northwest) of the house is a small detached garage with walls of cast stone and an arched roof covered in tar
paper. The door to the garage is made of wood and opens outward on a hinge. There is a small fixed window on the north wall
of the garage. Surprisingly, this structure does not appear on the 1950 Sanborn map.

Statement of Significance: The house at 609 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. Edward H. Hanbrock, various employments, is listed as
resident on this property in 1905. Bellingham Block Books show a property improvement occurring before 1918 with owner E.H.
Hanbrock. It was sold in 1927 to George Maxwell who does not appear to have resided here. The following years list various
occupants with a member of the Vitaljic family living here off and on. Itis currently owned by two members of the Vitaljic family
and appears to have been a rental for many years. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district.
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615 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201133424

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1905

Historic Name: Christensen, Peter and Christine, House
District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story house at 615 12th Street was built circa 1905 in the Vernacular style with some Free
Classical elements. It has a rectangular floor plan which rests on a concrete foundation. The roof is a cross gable covered in
asphalt composition shingles. The edge of the roof is trimmed by cornice molding. The walls themselves are clad in replacement
wood lap siding. The house contains both wood sash and newer vinyl sash windows, most notably the vinyl sliding door on the
west fagade's second story which replaced a window and now leads to a small balcony. Supporting the balcony are three knee
braces. There is a polygonal bay window on the north side of the house with a hipped roof. The north side of the house also
displays a newer 4/1 arched window. On the south side of the house, toward the west, there is a window that consists of
diamond pattern throughout the entire window. There is a covered gable roof entry porch topped by a pediment with rake board
trim and there are also two slender metal support posts. There is an uncovered deck on the north side of the house and
concrete stairs on the west side of the house which lead to the front entrance.

There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding.
There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this
resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 615 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1905. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. In 1905, the city directory has occupancy by Peter H.
Christensen, millwright for E.K. Wood Lumber Co., together with Annie Willardson, a widow. The property continued under the
ownership of Peter Christensen, then Christine Christensen until sold to J. Lind Jackson in 1927, but the occupant of this house
as of 1910 and 1915 was Manuel T. Matthews, foreman at E.K. Wood Lumber Co., and his wife, Anna M. Mr. Jackson, an
employee of Pacific American Fisheries in various capacities, and his wife, Dena H. resided here as of 1925 through the 1950s.
Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

619 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201133417

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

Historic Name: Ordal House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Vernacular residence at 619 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa 1900
with some Craftsman influenced elements. The rectangular floor plan rests upon a concrete block foundation with a wide
wooden water table. The house is clad in wood shingles of alternating wide and narrow exposures, with a skirt of vertical
channel drop siding. The front-gable roof is covered in asphalt composition shingles, as are each of the shed roofed dormers on
the north and south sides of the house. There is a narrow set of concrete steps through the garden, leading to the wood porch
stairs. The stairs are lined with a simple wood railing and are clad in the same combination of vertical channel drop siding and
wood shingles as the main walls of the house. The porch is sheltered by a hip roof supported by three square posts with
molded crowns. The porch ceiling is made of wood tongue-and-groove. The wooden, paneled front door has three narrow
panes of glass in its top third. The door is surrounded by simple board trim, with the header trim extending to form stylized ears.
The same trim can be found on most of the house's openings, including that of the tri-partite window to the south of the door.
This window consists of three tall, narrow 1/1 wood double-hung sash windows with a slightly wider center opening. Above

the porch roof, under the open eave overhang of the gable, is a pair of 1/1 wood sash windows with wood trim and the same
extended lintel as the door and windows on the first story of the building. The front gable displays a wide bargeboard and five
triangular eave brackets. The wide shed dormers on the north and south include two eave brackets each and have 1/1 wood
sash windows that are protected by single pane storm windows. On the first story of the southern side of the house there is a
small rectangular bay with 1/1 wood sash windows. Next to the bay is a narrow, horizontal fixed window set into a wood

casing. On the first story of the northern side of the house is a multi-paned window with six panes set into thin wooden muntins.
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The wall cladding is wood shingle. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. The plan, cladding and windows all appear to
have no discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

On the alley is a period garage with a track door over its south opening. The siding is channel drop. The gable roof is clad in
asphalt shingles and has a bargeboard and exposed rafter tails. It appears that it was lengthened early on with a short addition
to its north end.

Statement of Significance: The house at 619 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first recorded
occupant in 1905 was Fred D. Yale, Justice of the Peace. In 1910, the property was owned and occupied by Winfred R.

Welcome, helper and then machinist for Pacific American Fisheries and his wife, Dora. In 1925, Olaf U. Stromme, teacher at
Fairhaven High School, and his wife Clara G., occupied and subsequently purchased the house and adjoining propenrty circa

1927. As of 1940, the house was owned and occupied by Anna C. Ordal (widow of O.J. Ordal). In 1990, the house was sold by
Gordon M. Ordal. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing
to the historic district.

700 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201118400

Date of Construction: 1914

Historic Name: Zankich, Andrew and Katie, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 700 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house faces east on a corner
lot. It was built in 1914 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands
on a cast stone foundation. The one-story building has a medium-pitched side gable roof clad in composition shingle. The
primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. A string course runs around the house above the windows. The cladding above this is
wood shingles. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. A small rectangular volume with a nested gable extends to the
north of the main volume. The main entry is located in this ell, near its connection to the main volume. The small entry porch here
is sheltered by a shed roof with a single wood post. The porch railing is solid and clad in lap siding. A bump-out to the south is
topped by a flat roof with parapet. It includes a secondary entry with a multi-pane door flanked by multi-pane sidelights. The
house's decorative elements include bargeboards, eave brackets and exposed rafter tails that are partially hidden by the house's
gutters. A brick chimney emerges from the center of the main ridge. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There are
no discernable alterations to the original cladding or windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A detached garage lies to the house's west. Though it is unusually large, its detailing suggests that it belongs to the same period
as the house. The garage has a gabled roof with a north-south oriented ridge and rests on a concrete foundation. Itis clad in
round-edge siding and features several wood, six-pane fixed windows. There are two folding garage doors on the north side,
each with four paneled sections.

Statement of Significance: The house at 700 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1914. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. According to the
Assessor's Biock Book, this house was built in 1914 but moved circa 1919 to 1114 Easton Avenue, owned and occupied by
Andrew Zankich, laborer, and his wife, Katie. It was sold in 1923 to Henning A. Thompson, labor inspector, and his wife, Agnes
H., who occupied the house after her husband's death until the early 1970s. 1t was rented to a student, Laurence Hagen, untii
1985. In 1988, the house was re-numbered as 700 12th Street and occupied by Michael T. Mackay, fish biologist for the Lummi
Business Council, most likely as a rental which it is today (2009). Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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701 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134397

Date of Construction:  c. 1953

Historic Name: Olsen, Magnus and Benedicte, House
District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The single story house at 701 12th Street was built circa 1953 in the Ranch style. The building is located at
the southeast comner of 12th and Easton Avenue and faces west. It has a square plan which sits on a concrete foundation. The
primary roof is a hip form and is covered in asphalt composition shingle. Both the north and west sides of the house are brick
while the south and east walls are clad in wood lap siding. There is an external brick chimney near the northwest corner of the
house and an internal chimney is located on the east side of the house. The primary window type is fixed wood sash with

molded trim. There is a corner picture window on the northwest corner of the house. The windows on the west side have roll

up awnings. A concrete stairway leads to the slightly recessed front door. There is an attached garage with a hip roof and clad

in wood lap siding on the northeast corner.

The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable alterations. This resource would be considered non-
contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The house at 701 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1953. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The 1950 Sanborn
map shows an earlier house on this lot that was replaced by the current house. Early residents of the first house included Fred
P. Offerman, proprietor of Fairhaven Pharmacy, and Benjamin Geri, Geri Brothers Bottling Works, and his wife, Janet. The new
house (circa 1953) was first occupied by Magnus H. Olsen, trustee of Shipwright's, Joiners, Caulkers and Shipriggers Union
Local no. 2071, and his wife, Benedicte. This resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built
after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in history.

704 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201118394

Date of Construction: 1987

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1987 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

705 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134394

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1890

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Vernacular style house at 705 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood was built circa
1890. The irregular floor plan of the residence sits upon a concrete block foundation. Just above the foundation, a water table is
formed with vertical V-notch drop siding below a single row of decorative wood shingles that lead into the main lap siding. The
complex roof is covered in asphalt composition shingles. The wooden stairs leading up to the porch are fitted with a simple wood
balustrade identical to the one that wraps around the polygonal design of the porch. The foundation of the porch is cloaked by a
wooden lattice-work skirt set into a simple wood frame. The porch balustrade has six square porch supports with carved
brackets holding up the hip roof that shelters the porch. There is a small pendill between the two brackets which frame the entry
from the stairway. The porch ceiling is wood tongue-and-groove lined by a molded comice above a single row of decorative
wooden shingles. The flat balcony top of the porch roof is omamented with a low, decorative wood balustrade. The large porch
and its balcony are not indicated on the 1950 Sanborn map, and may be a new addition.
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Above the porch roof sits an offset-gable roof (toward the north) covening the front 1.5-story volume of the house. The gabies
are lined with wide wooden rakeboards and narrow wooden bargeboards. The cladding inside the gables matches the lap siding
of the rest of the building, but the peaks of the gables are fitted with slatted triangular vents. The one-story volume on the
southem side of the house, which is covered by a shed roof, is an extension that was added in the 1950s. There is a brick
chimney set into the ridge of the roof, near the small dormer with the shed roof over a narrow, horizontal window facing south.
All of the visible windows are aluminum; most of the windows are sliders, apart from the bay window at the porch level and the
two 1/1 sash windows found in the inset gable dormers on the southern roof. There is a second entrance on the southem
extension of the house, which is accessed by open wood steps and is protected by a gable roof supported by brackets. There
appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be
extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

To the rear (east) of the house is a detached garage clad in lap siding and topped by a front-gable (south facing) roof. The
garage has a modern metal door and can accommodate two small cars.

Statement of Significance: The house at 705 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1890. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first

residential listing, was found in the 1905 city directory, is Henry J. Kuhn, a laborer. A wife, Addie M., was added to the entry for
1915. The 1925 directory lists Paul Kink, a laborer, with his wife, Antonia. The property was purchased in 1927 by Paul U.

Kinkusich (aka "Kink"), and in 1931 inhabited by Paul E. Kinkusich, a fisherman, and his wife, Mary, who resided here for severai
years. As of 1945, several other families are listed, all in various laboring occupations. The house has been owner-occupied

since 1970. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

708 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201118390

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1930

Historic Name: Kuljis House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 708 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east
and was built circa 1930 in a Vernacular style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-
story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. A small open porch is sheltered under a gable projection
supported by posts upon a short knee-wall. An earlier porch, shown in an undated assessor's photo, was supported by two

sets of three narrow columns before the kneewall was constructed. The front door, wood with a small fan window, is a
replacement. Two single-window dormers, north and south, are faced with bargeboard. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl
sash. A gable to the west has a pair of double-sash windows. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. To the rear of the
house are a deck and carport. A sliding door provides access to the deck. There is also a back door on the lower level and six
multi-pane windows. A small garage is built into the northwest corner of the house. The plan appears to have only slight
alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic

district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 708 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1930. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. However, there was a similarly shaped building
occupying this site with a build date circa 1910 -- the current structure was possibly built on the original foundation. This
property appears to have been a rental when it was built, owned by John Ivanisevich (residing at 908 13th Street), a fisherman,
and rented to a cannery worker, then another fisherman, Andrew Kuljis and his wife, Dora. At some point, the property was
purchased by Andrew or Martin Kuljis and occupied by Martin, a fisherman, and his wife, Mandie R., for many years following. It
was sold by the Kuljis family to the current owners in 2004. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource
is considered non-contributing to the historic district.
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711 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134389

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1907

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story house at 711 12th Street was built circa 1907 in the Vernacular style. It is located midblock,
slightly above street grade, and faces west. It has a rectangular plan with a one-story ell toward the south of the rear (east

side), and rests upon a concrete block foundation. The primary roof form is a side gable with an extremely short front slope. A
short section of wall clad in vertical groove plywood below the roof includes three clerestory windows. A shed roof extends
immediately below the clerestory and shelters the remaining front half of the building. With the exception of the clerestory area,
the walls of the house are clad in wood shingle. The primary window type is fixed wood sash. There is an external, shingle
encased chimney on the north side of the house and a second metal chimney at the east end. The front of the house (west side)
features a recessed porch. The structure above the porch is supported by four simple wood posts. The garage is located on

the northeast corner of the property. It is connected to the house at the rear ell. The gable roofed garage's walls are clad in
wood shingle siding. The house has been extensively altered. The 1950 Sanborn map shows the structure as being one-story

in height, with a one-story porch. The ells to the rear are also absent on the map. There appear to be extensive alterations to the
original plan, cladding and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 711 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1907. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

714 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201118385

Date of Construction: c. 1915

Historic Name: Lindsay House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 714 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built in 1915 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on
a parged foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is wood
lap siding. A string course runs around the house above the first floor windows. The cladding above this is wood shingles.

The principal window types are 1/1 wood sash and vinyl sash. The fagade is asymmetrically arranged, with a partially

recessed, gabled entry porch at the south end. It features tapered posts that rest on the low, solid railing. A large, shed roofed
rectangular bay lies to the north of the porch. The south elevation includes a shed roofed dormer as well as a polygonal bay.
Decorative trim elements include eave brackets, exposed rafter tails, and bargeboards. A brick chimney emerges from the roof's
north slope, toward the rear. There have been some alterations to the rear (west) elevation including some modern decks and a
garage slotted in at the basement level. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to
the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original
building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 714 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hilt
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor’s office,
this resource was built in 1915. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest

known occupants of the house were James and Mary Gray. The 1915 Bellingham city directory lists. James Gray, a blacksmith,
and wife Mary as the householders, with J. Irven Gray, a shingle weaver, residing. The Bellingham block books indicate that E.E.
or C.E. Lindsay was the taxpayer on the lot, as well as a neighboring lot, between at least 1918 and 1929. The 1919-20
Bellingham city directory lists Marion Lindsay, widow of Charles B. Lindsay, at the address. Mrs. Lindsay lived in the house
through circa 1945. In 1930 to 1935 Edgar C. Lindsay, a marine engineer, is also listed. Between circa 1950-70 Charles E.
Lindsay, Port engineer, is listed as the householder. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history,
this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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71512TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134384

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

Historic Name: Gounyu House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The Queen Anne style residence at 715 12th Street was built circa 1900. The 1.5-story house has a T-
shaped floor plan with a slightly lower side-gabled volume extending to the south. The building rests on a concrete block
foundation with a wide wooden water table between the foundation and the cladding. The gable roof is covered in asphalt
composition shingles. The house is clad in lap siding with decorative wood shingles of varied imbrication in the gables. The front
porch spans the width of the side-gabled volume and is sheltered by the bell-shaped side-gable roof. The porch is adorned with
a wooden balustrade and five delicate turned porch supports topped with lacy, carved brackets below the front supporting
beam. The porch ceiling is sheathed in wood beadboard. The front door of the house is made of wood and glazed with a
frosted glass window. The window next to the front door is a long and narrow 1/1 wood sash with simple wood trim around the
casing. The first story of the 1.5-story front-gabled volume of the house has a fixed picture window, of which the upper portion
has a diamond pattern made of wood muntins, as well as a narrow 1/1 wood sash window just below the gable. The simple
wood corner boards join the rakeboard below a shaped rake molding. The gables are both ornamented with a delicately carved
fretwork, which may be newer. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or cladding. There appear to be slight
alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

Behind the house, to the east, is a newer detached garage with a shallow gable roof. Its lap siding and fretwork at the gables
match the main building.

Statement of Significance: The house at 715 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. Built circa 1900 and shown on the 1904 Sanbom as a
large house at 713 12th Street, it appears to have been built by a large family by the name of Gounyu. David Gounyu, a laborer at
Puget Sound Mills and Timber and six other adults listed in the 1901-02 city directory. Subsequently purchased before 1915 by
the Vrani (aka Vrangnizan) family and occupied by Dominic Vrani, trap foreman at Pacific American Fisheries, and his wife, Pearl.
The property had various residents from 1925 forward. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's
history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

716 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201118379

Date of Construction: 1927

Historic Name: Kink House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 716 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built in 1927 (according to Bellingham Block Books) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands
on a concrete foundation. The one-story building has a clipped jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle and open eaves. A
brick chimney is located on the center west end of the roof ridge. The open porch shown in an undated assessor's photo
repeated the jerkinhead and bargeboard of the main roof and was supported by posts and closed in with a kneewall. The

current porch is located under a sloped roof extending the front of the house (east) and is entirely glassed in with multi-paned
windows and a French door. A combination storm door in front is accessed through the glassed-in porch. To the south, the
roofline is broken up by a shallow three-sided rectangular projection with a triple window; the projection also has a jerkinhead
roof and bargeboard. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash. To the rear of
the house (west) is the back door, sheltered under a pent roof. The back also features a new picture window and a deck with a
picket railing. The plan appears to have slight-to-moderate alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

An old garage just off the alley (west) may be original to the house since it repeats the characteristic jerkinhead with bargeboard



NPS Form 10-900-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 15 Whatcom County, Washington

roof, though it has a newer aluminum door.

Statement of Significance: The house at 716 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1927. This date was derived
principally from the Bellingham block books, Sanborn maps, and physical evidence. According to the Bellingham block books, Paul
Kinkusich purchased the property the first year improvements were noted. He is listed as Paul "Kink" in the Bellingham city
directories, with wife Antonia. Mr. Kink worked as a fisherman and laborer. In 1935 the widow Antonia is listed as the
householder, and between 1938-41 Lucretia P. Kink occupied the house. James Melvin Brann, a manager at Bellingham Boom
Company, lived in the house between circa 1945 and 1970. Wife Maude E. is listed between 1945 and 1955. Wife Cornelia is
listed between 1965-70. Cornelia Brann continued to live in the house after the death of her husband, until circa 1975. Due to the
level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

717 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134376

Date of Construction:  c. 1902

Historic Name: Rochefort, Maxime and Ricka, House
District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story house at 717 12th Street was built circa 1902 in the Vemacular style. It has a rectangular
plan which sits on a concrete foundation. The house is elevated from street level. The house consists of two intersecting
gabled roofs covered in asphalt composition shingle. The one facing west is a front gable while the east roof is a side gable.
Below the soffits the walls are trimmed with rake and frieze boards. The walls themselves are clad in wood lap siding. There is
an internal brick chimney that emerges from the side gable roof. The primary window type is 1/1 wood double hung-sash with
aluminum storms and which are framed by wide wood trim with hood moldings. The peaks of all the gables feature a decorative
circular window. There is a polygonal bay window on the south side of the house. The house has a covered porch on the west
side which proceeds to wrap around the northwest side of the house and features five square wooden columns. The east-
facing volume features a south-facing, glazed-in porch and another corbelled brick chimney. A former garage or carriage house,
now converted to living space, with a north-south orientation has been attached to the back porch. This volume appears on the
1950 Sanbom map, but unattached to the house. Itis clad in drop siding and has 1/1 wood double-hung windows. The rear
(east) of the house includes a slightly lower, east-facing gabled volume that is either original or an early addition. The main roof
to either side of this addition includes two gabled wall dormers.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding or windows. Due to
the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There are two sets of concrete stairs which lead up to the house. The first set is on the northwest side of the house leading to
another set of wooden steps which then leads to the west (front) entrance. The second sets of concrete stairs are on the

south edge of the property and run along side a second, street level concrete garage. The garage has a flat roof with a low
false front and open eaves on the sides of the building with visible rafter tails. There is no door on the garage, leaving the
building open to the west, facing the street. On the northern and eastern walls there are small three-pane fixed windows set into
thin wooden muntins.

Statement of Significance: The house at 717 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Built circa 1902,

this property was in the same family for more than fifty years. Maxime Rochefort, master mariner, and his wife, Ricka, occupied
the house beyond 1960. Ricka resided here for many years after the death of her husband. There was a second house on Lot

2 that was moved circa 1919 to 1114 Easton Avenue according to the Bellingham Block Book (see history for 700 12th Street).
Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic
district.
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722 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117374

Date of Construction:  c. 1905

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 722 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing west.
It was built circa 1905 in a Vernacular style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete block foundation. The
1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is composition wood lap siding.
The principal window types are 1/1 wood sash and vinyl sash.

The house's massing is slightly asymmetrical, with a shed dormer on north side of roof only. The fagade has a centered entry
that is sheltered by a gabled hood supported by shaped brackets. The hood's gable is accented with vertical tongue-and-groove
and has a bargeboard. The house's gable has rake boards and a boxed eave. The entry is flanked by 1/1 windows. Paired 1/1
windows lie on the upper level, above the entry. A shed roofed extension was added to the rear (west) of the house, most likely
at an early date. A modern deck is attached to the rear of the extension. The deck serves as the shelter for a carport located at
the basement level.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to
be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 722 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Ciaim in the South Hiil
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This house is listed in the 1905 city directory as
occupied by Arthur Barlows, boat builder. By 1915, it was occupied by Mario Geri with P.S. Bottling Works, and his wife,
Angelina. A series of different residents are listed in the following years, rarely more than five years duration. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

723 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134371

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

Historic Name: Duppenthaler House

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Vernacular style house at 723 12th Street was built circa 1900. The irregular floor plan sits
upon a poured concrete foundation that is partially masked by a skirt of vertical V-notch drop siding. The house itself is clad in
lap siding and the front gable roof is clad in asphalt composition shingles. The front of the house is adomed with a full width
porch enclosed by a simple wooden balustrade. There are three square posts supporting the hipped porch roof. The porch was
rebuilt circa 2000 when the upper deck was added and the overall woodwork simplified. The porch ceiling is sheathed in wood
beadboard with a narrow strip of ventilated metal or vinyl along the molded cornice, at its transition to the soffit. The roof of the
porch is topped by a low balustrade that matches that of the main porch. The sliding vinyl window on the upper story has
ornamental vinyl muntins, a narrow transom, and is set into a wooden casing with a molded hood. The windows along the porch
are tall 1/1 vinyl sash, also with molded hoods. The glazed front door is made of wood with a single glass pane above two
carved panels. The door is crowned with a molded hood that matches the molding on the windows. The corner boards are
simple wood which join at the top to form a wide rakeboard that is clearly visible beneath a narrow bargeboard. The rear (east)
and south sides of the house have been expanded. The addition has a distinct salt box shape and almost doubled the house's
square footage. It has a molded cornice and a narrow ventilated metal soffit under the open eave. There are two skylights set
into the salt box roof on the southern side of the house. In the corner made by the addition there is a wedge shaped roof
supported by decorative, turned porch columns that shelters a side door. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due
to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

To the rear (southeast) of the house lies a detached building with a gabled roof and shiplap siding. There are currently no
windows on the outbuilding, but there are markings in the cladding which show where windows were covered over or replaced.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 723 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1900, a construction date
supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The 1900 city directory lists Fred Duppenthaler, planer foreman at Puget
Sound Mills and Timber Co., and his wife, Amae ("corner 12th and Broadway"). Except for a brief period around 1915-30, this
property had been in the hands of a member of the Duppenthaler family (Fred to John to Albert) for many years until sold
sometime after 1960. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the
historic district.

800 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117359

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1927

Historic Name: Meade's Grocery and Delicatessen
District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 800 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house faces east on a comer
lot. It was built in 1927 (according to the County Assessor) in the Arts & Crafts style. The house has a rectangular plan and
stands on a concrete foundation. The one-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle, ornamented with a
weathervane at its peak. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding; the front gable is clad in fish scale siding and faced with
a narrow bargeboard. Over the small open porch, a pediment comes to a sharp point at its apex and rests upon brackets. At the
base of the pediment is decorative fretwork in the form of a pair of swans. An undated assessor's photo shows that the
decorative details of the porch have all been added. The original porch was a simple pent roof supported by two narrow posts,
and the gable was clad in the same lap siding as the rest of the roof. The front (east) windows on either side of the door are
vinyl sash casements. The window hood molding, however, appears to be original. A French door has been cut into the north
wall. On the north is a projection on the basement and first floor. To the south, a projection has modillions. Stairs to the west
provide access to the first floor. On the west is a projecting gable with a large horizontal picture window.

There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan, cladding, and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the
original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 800 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1927. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Currently
designated a residential property, this structure was built circa 1927 as a grocery store. Meade's Grocery and Delicatessen was
owned by Arthur and Grace Meade but occupied by J.W. Rinaldo and his wife, Aina. By 1935, it was known as the Twelfth
Street Cash Grocery with various grocers through the late 1950s. In 1960, the structure was listed in the city directory as
"vacant," and by 1964, it became a private residence occupied by John M. Bourm, service manager for Olds. In 1992, it was
purchased by Wayne H. Glover, teacher at Sehome High School, and his wife, Penny until sold in 2002. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

801 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201133359

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1915

Historic Name: Sansregret House

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story house at 801 12th Street was built circa 1915 in the Craftsman style. It has a rectangular
plan that rests on a lattice covered concrete foundation. The roof is a front facing gable covered in asphalt composition shingles.
Below the soffits the roof is trimmed with a bargeboard and eave brackets. The walls themselves are clad in wood lap siding,
although the upper part of the house's siding consists of wood shingles. There is a combination of aluminum and vinyl
replacement windows, with some remaining wood sashes, primarily on the upper level. All of the windows have wide wooden
trim, with hood molding on those in the front gable. On the north side of the house there is a wall dormer with a shed roof which
includes three windows with wood sashes. They appear to be original. A medium size metal chimney is located on the south
west side of the house and a second brick chimney on the north side. Under the dormer there is a large polygonal bay window
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with its own shed roof. The east side of the house also has eave brackets and bargeboard. There is a covered back patio and
entrance. The west (front) side displays a full-width, hipped roof porch with eight square wooden columns that rest on the
porch's solid railing. There are two types of stairs that lead up to the front porch. The first set is made of concrete which then
leads to the wooden porch stair. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or cladding. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 801 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. The first reference in the city directory for this house
appears in 1916, as occupied by Menard B. Sansregret, filer, and his wife, Philomena. Ensuing years, list the occupants as
Arnold M. Sansregret, aiso a filer for Bloedel Donovan Lumber Mill, his wife, Fannie, and Philomena, widow of Menard. Fannie
continued to occupy the property beyond 1960. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

804 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117354

Date of Construction: c. 1915

Historic Name: Repanich, Nick and Perina, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 804 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built circa 1915, though remodeled later into a World War Il Era Cottage style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands
on a concrete foundation. The one-story building has a hip roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is wood

lap siding. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash.

The entry, located slightly off-center, is sheltered by a small hipped roof supported by square wood posts. This vestibule also
features a wide, fap siding clad entablature. Wood panels with fixed pane windows have been inserted on the north and south
sides to act as weather breaks. An undated, but apparently early, assessor photo shows that the vestibule was once a
cantilevered hood. The photo also reveals that the house's moderate eaves are an alteration from eaveless with a frieze board.
Vinyl 1/1 windows with ornamental shutters lie to either side of the entry. A brick chimney emerges from the roof near the front
of the main ridge. A hipped bump-out, most likely an early addition, is attached to the rear (west) at the south end. A modern
deck extends from the north end. Since the property slopes to the west, a full daylight basement is in evidence at the rear.

There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 804 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. The house first appears on the Sanborn maps as a
paste-up in 1917. The 1915 city directory has occupation by two families of fishermen, Richard Kink and wife, Marguente, and
Joseph Mariani with wife, Lucy, who are the owners of record until purchased by Nick B. Repanich in 1919. Nick Repanich and
his wife, Perina (Pearl) resided here for many years through 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

805 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201133354

Date of Construction:  c. 1890

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story Vernacular style residence at 805 12th Street in the South Hill neighborhood was built circa
1890. The rectangular house sits upon a concrete block foundation. The house is clad in V-notch drop siding and has a front-
gable roof with asphalt composition shingles. The concrete steps in the garden lead up to the wooden porch stairs, which have
a metal railing. The porch spans the width of the house and is fronted by a wooden balustrade topped with a pent roof above
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delicate turned porch supports. The windows which line the porch are long and narrow, but the windows themselves have
been replaced with single-hung vinyl sash windows. The upper story is adomed with a single sliding vinyl window decorated
with a simple wooden trim that has replaced the two original 1/1 wood sash windows. Approximately twelve inches away from
the window casing is a simple, narrow wooden molding covering the markings made by the window alterations. The front gable
has a wide wooden rakeboard and a narrow molded bargeboard. The south side of the house has only two windows, both 1/1
vinyl sash. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the
original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to
the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 805 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1890. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Built circa 1890,
the first recorded occupant in 1905 was William J. Hillier, paymaster for Puget Sound Mills and Timber Co. There is no record of
occupancy until the property was sold in 1927 to Nick Muljat, a fisherman, and his wife, Helen. After 1935, the house was
occupied through the 1940s by other Croatian fishermen, possibly as a rental, until listed to Victor Mulka, Mulka Gravel Co. in the
1950s through 1960. Due to the amount of aiteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the
historic district.

806 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117348

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1890

Historic Name: Finnegan House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 806 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Built circa 1890, the house is
midblock facing east. The 1.5-story Vernacular house has a rectangular plan and sits on a parged foundation. It has a gable roof
clad in composition shingle. The roof has narrow bargeboard with slight rafter tails and rake board. An end style crick chimney

is situated on the south facing wall and has a decorative chimney top. The primary wall cladding is wood shingle. The principal
window type is fixed vinyl sash. There are two gables: east and south. The front gabled entrance (east) is covered by a hip
roofed porch with slender column supports and thin decorative spindle work directly below the roofline. There is a narrow
detached metal gabled roofed carport with a west-east orientation. There are first and second floor decks; both have wood
railings filled in with mesh wire. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. The cladding appears to have only slight
alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building,
this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 806 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1890. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house has a

build date circa 1890 with the address of 1006 12th Street. Owned and occupied by Finnegans (Charles, Fred, George and

John) as listed in the 1900 city directory. Hannah, widow of Charles, remained in the house into the 1920s until sold to Ivar
Lundgaard, who also owned 807 12th Street. Ingvald Lundgaard (possibly the son), a laborer for Pacific American Fisheries,

lived here for a couple of years. Dominic Mratinich, a fisherman, and his wife, Mary resided here in the 1930s before the long-

term residency of George P. Plancich, a fisherman, and his wife, Mary. The house stayed in the Plancich family until 1999. Due

to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

807 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201133351

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story house at 807 12th Street was built circa 1900 in the Queen Anne Style with strong
Vernacular overtones. It has a rectangular plan which sits upon a concrete block foundation. The roof form is front gabled and
clad in asphalt composition shingles. The house features both rake and corner boards and wood soffits. The walls of the house
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are clad in wood drop siding. The primary window type is 1/1 vinyl single-hung sash. There is a polygonal bay window in the
front of the house displaying decorative brackets with pendills. The front door is covered with a hipped roof with brackets and
gives way to an uncovered newer deck. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. The cladding appears to have only
slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original
building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 807 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Built circa 1900,
the earliest occupant (1905 city directory) was Axel Pearson, tallyman for E.K. Wood Lumber Co.; Mary Tyreen, domestic; and
Hans Knudson, boarder. Perhaps a rental in the later 1910s to various laborers, the property was purchased by Ivar Lundgaard,
fisherman, who resided here for a short period of time before being occupied for several years by Jack Radisich, a fisherman,
and his wife, Amanda. Vacant in 1940 and possibly rented for the next few years until occupied in the 1950s and 1960s by John
and Bessie DeVries. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.

809 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201133347

Date of Construction: 1929

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Arts and Crafts style house at 809 12th Street was built in 1929, according to Bellingham
Block Books. The house is clad with wood shingles and features a side-facing jerkinhead roof covered in asphalt composition
shingles. The rectangular floor plan rests upon a foundation made of unknown material. The front porch, as well as the wooden
porch steps, is lined with a simple wooden balustrade. The front door is made of paneled wood and is crowned with a molded
hood. There is a small vinyl sliding window flanked by faux shutters to the left of the door. The front porch and the front room
connected to the porch are both additions made after the assessor photo was taken. The porch is covered by a hip roof with a
very low pitch, supported by a wooden 4"x4" post at the northwest corner and trimmed with a molded comice. The front room
addition attached to the porch is lined with fixed vinyl picture windows to the south and to the west and has a small modemn
skylight set into roof. Above the porch is a wall dormer with a double set of vinyl sash windows with simple wood trim and a
shed roof. Just behind the dormer is a small metal stove pipe set into the interior ridge of the roof. The open eaves, including the
dormer eave, are omamented with visible rafter tails. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. The cladding
appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

A detached garage lies to the east of the house. It has a gabled roof clad in asphalt composition siding. The exterior cladding
primarily consists of plywood sheets. The sliding double doors are located on its east side. Though the structure appears older,
it is not featured on the 1950 Sanborn map.

Statement of Significance: The house at 809 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hili
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. Although recorded with a build date of 1890, it appears
that the original structure was demolished circa 1929 according to Block Book records. The years before this event show
ownership by James Gazley who lived at 1008 12th Street, so this structure was possibly a rental before 1929. In 1931,
occupants listed were Tony Zuanich, fisherman, and his wife, Evelyn. Shortly thereafter, Vince and Mary Elich resided here
through the 1950s. Several different families have since occupied the house. Due to the amount of alteration to the original
building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

812 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201118343

Date of Construction: 1980

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.
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Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1980 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

816 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117338

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

Historic Name: Park, Elmer and Julie, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 816 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east
and almost touches its neighbor to the south. It was built circa 1900 in a Vernacular style. The house has a rectangular plan and
stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall
cladding is wood shingle with lap siding accenting the gable. The principal window type is various configurations of vinyl sash
with faux grids.

The fagade is symmetrical, with a centered, unsheltered new front door flanked by picture windows. A vinyl slider lies in the
gable, above the door. The house's eaves are boxed, with minimal returns. The front gable is trimmed with a rakeboard. An
original, nested gable extends to the building's rear, as does a modem deck. The plan appears to have only slight alterations.
The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the
level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 816 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1900, as it shows up on
the 1904 Sanborn and in the 1905 city directory with a family by the name of Mansfield, iaborers at the E.K. Wood Lumber Mill;
also Hannah Mansfield (widow of John N.) who is possibly the mother of Clarence, Edwin and William Mansfield, the names listed
in the directory. Purchased 5-10 years later by John, a fisherman, and Vinka (Winnie) Zorotovich who were the owners of

record through 1929, although residing at 701 10th Street in 1920 according to the city directory. As of 1925, Elmer C. Park,
pipeman for BFD, and his wife, Julie E. are the occupants. The Parks lived here into the 1960s, though Julia was widowed by
this point. In the 1930s, the rear of the house appears to have been a rental. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled
with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

817 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201131338

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1898

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story house at 817 12th Street was built circa 1898 in the Queen Anne style. It has a rectangular
plan which sits upon a stone foundation. The primary roof is a hip form and covered in asphalt composition shingle. There are
also two secondary gable ends, one on the front (west), the other on the south, both with polygonal bays on the first floor. The
walls of the house are clad in newer board and batten. There is a combination of aluminum and vinyl replacement windows, with
some newer stained glass windows on the front (west). The back of the house (east) displays two eyebrow dormers and one
skylight. The house has a wrap-around porch with a deck built in top of it. A brick stairway leads up to the porch. There are
also ornate columns on the front (west) side of the house. Ornate bargeboards adorn the house with an especially prominent
pendant on the south side of the house. The house includes two brick chimneys: one emerges from the ridge of the roof, the
other is attached to the north elevation. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. There appear to be
extensive alterations to the original cladding and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource
would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

There is a detached modern garage opening to the south with a paneled overhead door. The gable roof is clad in composition
shingles and the siding is board and batten.

Statement of Significance: The house at 817 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
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this resource was built in 1898. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Dating back to a
listed build date of 1898, the first recorded occupant was Emily Burghoffer (widow, J.J.G.) in 1900, and beyond 1910, often with
what appear to be renters who worked on the waterfront in various laboring occupations. From circa 1915 until 1921, the house
was owned and occupied by Cleveland T. Lathrop, a purchasing agent for Pacific American Fisheries, and his wife, Aleora.

Nick Mardesich, fisherman, and his wife Margaret, owned and occupied the property from 1921 through the early 1940s. Cement
contractor, Frank A. Holbrook and his wife, Georgia, resided on the property into the 1960s; Georgia widowed at that time. Due to
the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

818 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117336

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 818 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Facing east on a comer lot, the
house was built circa 1900 in the Colonial Williamsburg style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete
foundation. The 1.5-story building has a side gable roof, clad in composition shingle, with rake boards and slight eaves. The
windows are primarily 1/1 vinyl sash with decorative hoods. Two inset gable dormers with bargeboard, comer board, and
eaves are symmetrically placed on either side of the front gabled hooded entrance door. The primary walls are clad in
cementitious lap siding and have corner boards; the gables are clad in shingles. A contrasting wood frieze is used as a belt
course between the first story and the upper gables. A low gabled roofed addition to the house extends to the west; it has a
false balcony with a decorative wrought iron railing and French door on the upper story. A deck on the first floor is supported by
brackets and has a garage below. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 818 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Built circa 1900,

the first recorded occupant was Amana McClew (widow, Charles). By 1915, the house was in the hands of fisherman, Kuzman
Mardesich, and his wife, Marguente. In 1925, the property was sold to another fisherman, John Evich (Evievich), and his wife,

Mary (Marie, Maria) who resided here for the following 25+ years. Various short-term occupants are recorded in years

thereafter. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

900 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201121324

Date of Construction:  c. 1914

Historic Name: Zuanich, Dick and Mary, House

District Contribution: ~ Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This 1.5-story house at 900 12th Street, facing east on a corner lot in the South Hill neighborhood, was built
circa 1914 in the Craftsman style. It has a rectangular plan that rests on a concrete block foundation. The roof form is a clipped
gable, covered in asphalt composition shingle. The walls of the house are clad in vinyl siding. The primary window type is 1/1
vinyl single-hung sash. The house design is highly symmetrical and includes a gabled hood over the front entryway, supported
by eave brackets and covered with a clematis planting. The north and south sides of the house feature shed wall dormers. The
dormer on the north has been expanded and stretches all the way to the rear of the house. A one-story hipped roof service

porch is attached to the rear (west) of the house.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to
be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to a historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 900 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
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this resource was built in 1914, This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house with a
build date of 1914 has long-term ownership and occupancy by Dominick (Dick) Zuanich, fisherman, and his wife, Mary. It was
sold in 1990 and now appears to be a rental. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered
non-contributing to the historic district.

901 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134323

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

Historic Name: Starkey, William and Sarah, House
District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Vernacular style house at 901 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa
1900. The L-shaped plan sits upon a concrete block foundation. The house is clad in lap siding and the gable roof is covered in
asphalt composition shingles. There are concrete steps in the garden leading to the wooden stairs of the front porch, which
have a simple wooden railing to the west. The front porch spans the width of the front-gabled, 1.5-story volume of the house
and has a wooden balustrade with a simple rectangular pattern. The balustrade is lined with six delicate turned wood porch
supports that hold up the hipped porch roof. The porch ceiling is clad in wood beadboard. Between the rafters and the porch's
header beam is a narrow strip of ventilated metal. Beneath the porch roof is a wood paneled entry door glazed with a single
pane in a wood casing with a molded hood. To the north of the door is a fixed glass window with a colored 15/1 Queen Anne
style glass pattern, also adomed with a molded hood. There is a second entry door off of the porch, set into the wall of the side-
gabled volume of the house, which, like the first door, is made of wood with a single pane window. The Queen Anne 15/1 style
windows are repeated with clear glass on the first story of the south side of the house, one on each side of the exterior brick
chimney. The windows on the second story of the front-gabled wing, as well as the rest of the visible windows on the sides of
the house, are all vinyl sliding windows. There is a skylight set into the south side of the roof near the chimney. The comer
boards are capped with molded crowns right below the gables of the roof. At the second floor level is a simple wood belt
course along the sides of the house. A narrow bargeboard caps the open eave. To the rear (east) of the house there is a more
recent one-story addition covered with a shed roof. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 901 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This structure first appears on the 1904 Sanbom and
has 1905 occupancy by Patrick E. Connelly, foreman. As of 1915 and into the 1960s, it was owned and occupied by William
Starkey, insurance agent, and his wife, Sarah. Sarah resided here for many years as a widow. Due to the amount of alteration
to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

904 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117319

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 904 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Located midblock facing east, the
house was built circa 1900 in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation

partially covered with a vertical wood board skirting. The one-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle.

The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash with decorative hoods, and the

majority of the original windows are intact. There is a chimney at the rear of the house. The glassed-in porch with solid railing
extends across the full width of the house (east) and is covered by a hipped roof. The front entrance is almost obscured by
shrubbery, but a wood panel door is visible. There is a shed roof with modillions above the back entrance and a first floor deck

with lower level garage (on an east-west orientation). There are slight alterations to the original plan. There are no discemable
alterations to the original cladding or windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 904 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
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neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1900, as it appears on the
considered contributing to the historic district. 1904 Sanbom map. This property has a sketchy early history of occupation in the 1905
city directory by Charles F. Finnegan.

However, Finnegan is also listed in the 1905 directory as living at 806 12th Street with his wife, Hannah (maybe another Charles
Finnegan?). Itis definitely recorded as owned and occupied in 1915 by Veda Muskovita, a laborer, and his wife, Jenny. As of

1927, it appears to be a rental occupied by fisherman, Clinton Vierick and wife, Marie. Another fisherman, Jack Radisich and his
wife, Marguerite, resided here until purchased in the 1940s by Dominick F. Mustappa, a fisherman, and his wife, Hazel V., who
resided here until the mid-1980s. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is
considered contributing to the historic district.

905 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134318

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1905

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story house at 905 12th Street was built circa 1905 in the Vernacular style. It has a rectangular
plan with a slight ell to the south and sits upon a concrete block foundation. The roof is gabled and covered in asphalt
composition shingles. The walls of the house are clad in vinyl siding. There have been extensive window alterations with new
vinyl sashes. On the north second story of the house there is a bubble window and parallel to it, on the first floor there is a
window box. There is also a polygonal bay window on the south side of the house, on the first floor of the ell. The house has

two chimneys, one is metal pipe that emerges from the roof near the ridge and the other is made of brick and runs up the north
side of the house. The front of the house displays two decks on the top and lower levels, with wooden posts separating the

two levels. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 905 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. Not shown on the 1904 Sanborn, this house first
appears in the city directories in 1905, and was occupied by George, Bert, Bessie and Clyde DeFoe with various laboring
occupations. By 1910, it was owned and occupied by J.A. Hawkins, his wife, Ellen, and Randall Hawkins, a student at Wilson's
Business College. It was sold to Nelson Upper, a chauffeur, in 1919 who lived here with his wife, Ellen. Again sold in 1923,
there were a series of different occupants in the following years, none much longer than five years until purchased by Arthur E.
Reynolds sometime prior to 1960 and still owned by this family as of 2009. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

906 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117317

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This one-story house at 906 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, is located mid-block, facing east
and was built circa 1900 in the Craftsman style. It is virtually identical to its neighbor at 904 12th. It has a rectangular plan shape
that rests on a concrete foundation. The roof form is a front gable, covered in asphalt composition shingle. The walls of the
house are clad in wood lap siding. The primary window type is 1/1 wood double-hung, most with hood molidings. The building's
full-width front porch is covered by a hipped roof. It was filled-in at an early date with multi-pane fixed windows separated by
mullions. The solid porch rail is covered with drop siding. The fagade's openings are asymmetrically arranged, with the doors to
the porch and house placed toward the south. Decorative accents on front gable include bargeboards, rake boards and purlins
(two per side). The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding or
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 906 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This house is shown on the 1904 Sanbom map. The
first city directory record was found in 1915, owned and occupied by Nicholas Mardesich, fisherman, and his wife, Margaret,
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until the early 1920s. In 1925, it was sold to John Lazarovich, millworker for Bloedel Donovan, and his wife, Fannie. Sometime
after 1945, it was occupied by Lloyd D. Niedhamer, toolmaker for Bellingham Chain and Forge, and his wife, Katherine M. through
1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the
historic district.

908 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117313

Date of Construction: c¢. 1918

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 908 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Located midblock facing east, it was
built in 1918 (according to the County Assessor) in an unidentifiable style. The house has an irregular plan and stands on a

concrete foundation. The primary wall cladding is concrete panel. The one-story building has a front gable roof clad in

composition shingle. The principal window type is aluminum sliders. The south front of the original house contains a carport

trimmed in frieze board and a French door, replacing a small horizontal window shown in an undated assessor's photo. At the

back of the carport are two east-facing entry doors, one made of wood with a fan-shaped window. On the south side is a large

addition behind the carport, a projection with a flat roof trimmed with frieze board. The west end of the projection is gabled and

has a double sliding door used to access the deck that covers nearly the entire expanse of the addition. A set of stairs to the southwest
provides access to the deck. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan, cladding and windows. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original buiiding, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 908 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1918. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

909 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134312

Date of Construction: ¢. 1916

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The Craftsman style bungalow at 909 12th Street was built circa 1916. The square floor plan is set upon a
poured concrete foundation that is concealed behind a wooden lattice-work skirt. There is a narrow garage built into the slope
underneath the house which could have been added as early as the 1920s. The house is clad in wooden shingles and the side
gable roof is covered with asphalt composition shingles. The open eave overhang of the side gables feature wood soffits with
visible rafter tails. There is a small circular metal stove pipe protruding from the southern ridge of the roof. The front porch spans
the width of the house and then continues out to the south approximately four yards past the exterior wall of the house. The
entire porch is lined by open railings made of wood, including the stairs leading up to the porch. While the majority of porch space
is uncovered, the area immediately surrounding the front entry is protected by a front gable roof held up by two 4"x4" wooden
posts, which have replaced the original square posts that were set onto concrete plinths. The front of the gable porch roof is
supported with a wide wooden beam topped by purlins running along the wooden soffit and capped with dentils on the front of
the bargeboard. The facade of the house is adorned with asymmetrical windows. There is a large wooden sash window to the
right of the front door, whereas to the left of the door there is a flat wood sash bay window, of which the center window is

much larger than the two smaller ones flanking it. Both the windows and the front door are lined with simple wood trim and
topped by a thick wooden lintel which extends out approximately six inches to either side of the casing. On the porch, to the
south of the house, there is a small detached side-gable roof resting on four wooden posts covering only a small open air area.
The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding or windows. Due to
the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 909 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1916. James Shields, city engineering inspector, and his wife, Nellie, owned two adjacent lots (Block
20, Lots 1 and 2) in the early 1900s. The 1904 Sanborn had 909 12th on Lot 2 with occupancy by two laborers of Puget Sound
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Mill and Timber Co. Lot 1is 915 12th where James and Nellie Shields resided at this time. By 1920, the Shields are located at 911
12th (selling 915 12th?) which is recorded on the 1917 Sanborn as the east half of Lot 2 with 909 12th as the west half of Lot 2.
The house at 911 12th disappears sometime in the 1920s, and the Shields are now at 909 12th along with Mrs. Nellie Allen who
formerly occupied the house at 911 12th. Mrs. Allen continued to live (and most likely owned) the house at 909 12th into the
1960s. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to
the historic district.

914 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201117308

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1903

Historic Name: Carse House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: This 1.5 story Vernacular house at 914 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, is located below street
level, facing east, on a corner lot and was built circa 1903. !t includes some Free Classical decorative elements, as well as later,
Craftsman influenced, additions. It has a slightly irregular plan shape that rests on a stone foundation. The roof is a steeply
pitched front gable and is covered in composition shingles. A tapered chimney rises from the ridge. The walls of the house are
clad in wood lap siding, with corner boards. The primary window type is wood double-hung sash (1/1). The design of the
fagade is highly symmetrical, with a centered front door topped by an entry hood supported by brackets. The hood's
configuration is somewhat unusual in that it appears to be a gabled hood attached to a shed hood. Large 1/1 windows can be
found to either side of the entry. Paired 1/1 windows look out above it on the house's upper level. Decorative elements include
eave returns, rake boards and molding, and a frieze board. The south elevation features a secondary gable toward the rear
(west) with a polygonal bay. A one-story, gabled sleeping porch with a garage slotted in the basement space underneath it,
was added to the rear (west) circa 1925. A newer deck extends off the sleeping porch. The plan appears to have only slight
aiterations. There is no discemable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

The grounds also include a circa 2005 half-timbered garden folly/shed to the southwest of the main house.

Statement of Significance: The house at 914 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1903. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
owned and occupied by Archibald "Archie" and Sarah Carse, brother and sister. They were related to the John and Jane Carse
family that lived in the house directly behind their own, at 913 11th Street. After Archie's demise in 1909, Sarah resided here with
widow, Elizabeth Gehrmann, for several years. Sarah continued at this house until the 1930s. The house at 914 12 Street was
subsequently occupied by various laborers for the following 30+ years, most likely as a rental owned by William Starkey (see 901
12th Street). Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.

915 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201134308

Date of Construction: 1967 .

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1967 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.
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917 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201135259

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1930

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0  Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story house at 917 12th Street was built circa 1930 as a late example of Craftsman style. It has a
rectangular plan that rests on a board-covered concrete foundation. The side-facing jerkinhead roof is covered in asphalt
composition shingles, with exposed rafter tails in both front and back. The walls of the house are clad in wood lap siding. The
primary window type is single pane viny! fixed or casement sash. There is a large shed dormer with four windows across the
front (west) and one on each of its side walls. The small entry porch is covered by a front-facing jerkinhead roof ornamented
with bargeboards and exposed rafter tails. The front porch displays two classically inspired wood box columns that rest on

brick pedestals. On the north side of the house there is an original built-in garage and a wood retaining wall. The house also
displays an exterior brick chimney on the north elevation. A one-story, gabled volume attached to the southeast corner is most
likely a 1950s or 1960s addition.

There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to
be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 917 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1930. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. This house has had a succession of occupants,
perhaps as a rental, and seems to be currently a rental. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

920 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201119252

Date of Construction: 1992

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1992 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

921 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201135253

Date of Construction:  c. 1930

Historic Name: Lund House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story Craftsman bungalow at 921 12th Street was built circa 1930. The rectangular floor plan is
set upon a concrete block foundation. On the north side of the front porch there is a small wooden door cut into the foundation.
The front porch, as well as the staircase leading up to the porch, is framed by a low balustrade clad in lap siding which supports
two 4"x4" posts at either corner holding up the jerkinhead roof. The porch roof, as well as the main jerkinhead roof, is clad in
asphalt composition shingles. The porch ceiling is wood tongue-and-groove that terminates at a six-inch wooden bargeboard.
The open eaves spanning the front of the house feature wooden soffits with visible rafter tails. There is a modern skylight at the
front of the house set into the slope of the roof on the north side of the exterior brick chimney. Additionally, there is a smaller
brick chimney built into the ridge of the roof at the rear (east) of the house. The front door is made of wood and glazed with
multiple panes of glass set into thin wooden muntins. There is a fixed picture window to the right of the door and a smaller wood
sash window to the left of the door. Both of the windows, as well as the front door, are framed with simple wood trim. The rear
(east) of the house, as seen from the alley, is lined with fixed multi-paned windows with thin wooden muntins and has a door of
the same design. The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of
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the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 921 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1930. Visible on the 1913 Sanborn is an earlier house. The earliest found city directory record for this

house was for Ole Lund, a fisherman, and his wife, Thora, resided and owned this property for many years starting in 1912.

The couple had a son, Edward, who was raised here. Thora died in 1940 (Woodlawn), and Ole remains here with second wife,

Pearl W. Ole Lund was killed while working on log patrol at the Bellingham boom grounds in 1953. Pearl continued to live here

into the 1970s. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to
the historic district.

926 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201119248

Date of Construction: 1976

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1976 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

929 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201135248

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1953

Historic Name: Doty, Lyle and Francis, House

District Contribution: ~ Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story house at 929 12th Street was built circa 1953 in the Ranch style. It has a rectangular plan
with slightly projecting ells on both the north end of the west (front) and south end of the east (rear) of the house and rests on a
concrete foundation. The primary roof is hipped and covered in asphalt composition shingle. There is a three-flue Roman brick
chimney near the ridge at the center. The top half of the house displays wood siding which is vertical while the bottom half of the
house is wood lap siding that is horizontal. There is a combination of both wood and vinyl sash windows. The front (west) side
of the house displays three fixed bay windows and two 1/1 windows with the bottom being an awning window type. These
window types are prevalent on all sides of the house. The south side of the house has an entry door which leads out to a small
wooden uncovered patio. There are concrete steps leading up to the front entry way on the west side of the house and a
wisteria extends along the top of the west side of the house. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or original
cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing
to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The house at 929 12th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1953. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
built circa 1953 and occupied into the 1960s by Lyle I. Doty, an electrician, and his wife, Francis. This resource is considered
non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in history.

1001 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201147230

Date of Construction: 1929

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story Craftsman bungalow at 1001 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built in 1929
(according to the Bellingham Block Books). The house is above the street, facing west, on a corner lot. It is clad in lap siding
with a front-gable roof adorned with a wide wooden bargeboard. The recessed porch is sheltered by a full-width pent roof,
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which, like the rest of the roof, is clad in asphalt composition shingles. The rectangular plan sits on a parged concrete
foundation. The concrete stairs leading up to the house are sunken into the slope of the lawn and lead up to the main porch
staircase, which is made of wood and is much wider than the concrete garden stairs. The wooden banister of the main
staircase terminates below the solid porch balustrade, which has been finished in stucco. At either end of the porch banister is
a colossal tapered column, also finished in stucco, supporting the front-gable porch roof. The porch ceiling is sheathed in wood
beadboard that terminates at a large front beam spanning the width of the porch. The wooden front door has an unusual glazing
scheme with six panes over one large pane over three panes. To either side of the front door is a double set of full-length fixed
windows with 15-panes each, set into wood muntins and fronted by single-pane glass storm windows. The front door, as well
as each set of double windows, is surrounded in a simple wood trim. The north side of the house is fitted with a small enclosed
sun porch topped by a shed roof. The sun porch is lined with sliding windows on all sides. The plan, cladding and windows all
appear to have no discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

A detached garage lies at the northeast corner of the property and is accessed from Douglas Avenue. it has a gable roof and
faces west.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1001 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the 1904
Sanborn, there was a small cabin and hen house on this property facing Douglas Avenue. The Bellingham Block Book lists a
significant structure in 1929 under the ownership of Rachel Hill, but she did not reside here. There have been many residents
over the years -- widows, laborers and fishermen -- and the house appears to have been a rental until fairly recently. Due to the
level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1004 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201129231

Date of Construction: ¢. 1900

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1004 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Facing east on a corner lot, it was
built in 1900 (according to the County Assessor) in a Vernacular style, but appears to have been updated in the 1920s in the
Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete block foundation. The one-story building has a
front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is multi/1
vinyl sash with decorative hoods. The gabled porch, embellished with modillions and bargeboard, sits upon a concrete slab and
is supported by three slender columns located on either comer with small capitals. The side entrance has a pent roof and is
noted as an office on the Sanborn maps. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to
the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original
building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1004 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. However, there is no found record of occupancy until 1915 with a listing for Alice Ackerman (widow of Garrett R.)
along with Floyd and Warren Ackerman, both laborers in a lumber mill, but this family is not listed as of 1920. In 1931, Robert B.
Holland, owner of the Holland Furnace Co., and wife, Marie L., are listed as residents through the early 1940s. Purchased then
by Mike A. Karuza, a fisherman, with wife, Eva, who resided here for the following years until sold in 1993. Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1005 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201147225

Date of Construction: 1967

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.
Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1967 (according to the Whatcom County
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Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

1006 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201130221

Date of Construction: c¢. 1900

Historic Name: Duppenthaler, Bud and Norma, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The 1.5-story house at 1006 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, is located mid-block, facing east
and was built circa 1900 in the Queen Anne style with Vernacular overtones. It has a rectangular plan that rests on a concrete
foundation. The roof is front-gabled and covered in asphalt composition shingles. The walls of the house on the first floor are
clad in lap siding. The gables, as well as a band of wall underneath the eaves, are clad with shingle imbrication, including
square, fishscale, and diamond forms. The primary window type is a replacement fixed vinyl sash, with some remaining wood
sashes. The design of the house is highly symmetrical with a centered entry porch and shed dormers on the north and south
sides. Based on Sanborn maps, the house originally had a porch that extended across the front and wrapped around the south
side. By the 1950s, again based on maps, the porch was limited to the front. An undated assessor photo shows it once again
reduced, this time to an entry portico with paired columns. The porch is flanked by vinyl fixed sash windows. Paired 1/1 wood
double-hung windows, separated by a mullion, can be found in the upper level, directly above the porch. They have wide trim
boards and are topped with hood moldings. These windows are flanked by square wood fixed windows placed on point
(diamond shaped) with elaborate muntins. Decorative elements include bargeboards pierced by an elongated diamond motif that
can be found on the front gable, on the sides of the shed dormers, and on the front porch. The front gable also includes a
pendant as well as eave brackets. The gabled front entry portico was rebuilt circa 2000 with a concrete deck and steps and
slender square posts replacing the original paired columns. The plan appears to have slight to moderate alterations. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level
of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

To the south of the house is a gabled garage with a shallow-pitched roof with an extended eave forming a carport. The garage
door is a paneled overhead. The siding is horizontal shiplap.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1006 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. This resource was built circa
1900. This house was built adjacent to 1008 12th which no longer stands but is visible in the earlier assessor photo. The
properties were owned in 1915 by J.F. Gazley who resided at 1008 12th Street. The property at 1006 12th may have been a
rental for the following several years until purchased and occupied circa 1950 by Burdine R. "Bud" Duppenthaler, a railway
conductor, and his wife, Norma. Mr. Duppenthaler is still the owner of record as of 2009. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1009 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201147219

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

Historic Name: Hopkins-German House

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story house at 1009 12th Street was built circa 1900 in the Free Classical style. It has a slightly
irreguiar plan, with a short ell extending to the north, and rests on a concrete foundation. The roof is front gabled, with eave
returns, and is covered in asphalt composition shingles. Below the soffits the walls are trimmed with rake and cornice boards.
The walls themselves are clad in wood lap siding. There is a small brick internal chimney toward the south side of the house.
The primary window type is 1/1 wood double-hung sash, with some replacement fixed wood sashes. These are located on the
facade's second story, toward the north. An undated assessor's photo shows that there was only one 1/1 window in this area,
but now there are two narrow fixed wood windows. There is a gabled dormer on the north side of the house. The front entry
is located toward the north end of the fagade and features unusual, projecting double vestibules, both with flat roofs. The taller
of the two, which includes the front door is most likely original, while the shorter example dates to the 1940s, based on its
horizontally-oriented muntins. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original
cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this
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resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.
There is a concrete retaining wall at the sidewalk level, as well as a detached, concrete garage to the southwest of the house.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1009 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was buiit in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. The first listed occupant in 1905 was David L. Hopkins, superintendent of the City Street Department and then became
a bridge inspector for the County Engineering Department. At the time of his death in 1916, his daughter, Mrs. E. Blanche German
and his grandson, William M. German, resided here with him. Mrs. E.B. German and William German continued as owners and
occupants until they sold to Herbert "Captain” or "Cap" Winterburn in 1929. Mr. Winterbum was still occupying the house into the
1960s. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to
the historic district.

1014 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201130214

Date of Construction: c¢. 1958

District Contribution;  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: Built circa 1958 in the Ranch style, the house at 1014 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood.
The house faces east on a corner lot. The house has an irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The one-story
building has a hip roof clad in composition shingle. The original house shown in an undated assessor's photo was a rectangle
with a hip roof. A projection on the south side is has been added and includes a glassed-in room with large picture windows.
This addition adds complexity to the rooflines to the southeast and has changed the front entry from a south- to an east-facing
orientation. The entry is reached by a small set of wood stairs. The front door is covered with a wrought iron security door.

The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is vinyl sash sliders. To the rear (south west comer) of
the house is an attached deck made of wood and a carport or garage open on the west. The plan appears to have only slight
alterations. There is no discemable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate aiterations to the original
windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1014 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1958. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. This resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its
distinctive demarcation in history. The building's history was not researched.

1016 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201130201

Date of Construction: 1925

Historic Name: Gaffney, Henry and Hannah, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story bungalow at 1016 12th Street in the South Hill neighborhood was built in 1925 (according to
the Bellingham Block Books) in the Craftsman style. It has a rectangular plan shape and rests on a concrete foundation. The roof
is a front gable and covered in composition shingle. The walls of the house are clad in asbestos shingle. The primary window
type is multi/1 wood double-hung sash. The house design is asymmetrical, with a gabled front porch toward the south end of the
east-facing fagade. The porch was enclosed at an early date with multi-pane fixed windows and an inserted, partially glazed
door. Decorative elements include eave brackets on the gable. The south side of the house includes a side entry, accessed

from a narrow deck, which is sheltered by a hipped projection from the main roof. The plan, cladding and windows all appear to
have only slight alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to
the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1016 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Bellingham Block Books show
this house as being built in 1925, owned and occupied by Henry S. Gaffney, laborer at E.K. Wood Lumber Co., and his wife,
Hannah. Henry Gaffney later becoming a confectioner with his own candy store on 11th Street. In 1935, occupants are listed as
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Andrew and Cecelia Kuljis until soon thereafter purchased by Andrew R. Vujovich, a fisherman, and his wife, Margaret R. Mrs.
Vujovich sold the house in 1990. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is
considered contributing to the historic district.

1020 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201129196

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1923

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1020 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east
and was built circa 1923 in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The
one-story building has a clipped jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle with bargeboard, rake board, open eaves, and
modillions. The walls of the house are stucco, and the primary window type is 1/1 wood sash with multi/1 storm windows. The
original open entry porch with a stucco solid railing base shown in an undated assessor's photo has been glassed in. ltis
covered by a gabled roof supported by slender columns. A brick chimney projects just west of the roof ridge. The primary wall
cladding is stucco. There is a back deck accessed by stairs to the north and a lower level garage. The plan appears to have

only slight alterations. There is no discemable alteration to the original cladding. There is no discernable alteration to the original
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1020 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1923. Also owned by Henry S. Gaffney, this house was built next door to

his own residence and appears to have been built as a rental in the late 1920s according to the Assessor's Block Book. It was
occupied in 1931 by Percy R. Selig, a mariner for Pacific American Fisheries, and his wife, Leona E. A succession of fishermen
district.folowed every few years into the 1960s. The house is currently owner-occupied. Due to the level of integrity of the building,
coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1024 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201130191

Date of Construction: ¢. 1908

Historic Name: Shirrman, William and Gladys, House
District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1024 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built circa 1900 in a Vemnacular style, with extensive, circa 1908 additions. The house has an irregular plan and stands

on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a gable roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is wood
shingle. The principal window type is fixed wood sash.

The house consists of a large, front gabled volume that dates to circa 1900. A full-height, narrow side gable is attached to the
rear and was added circa 1908. The side gable projects to the south but is recessed to the north. The hipped front porch which
wraps around the south and west (front) of the house was also added circa 1908. The porch's concrete pad, metal railings and
metal posts date to circa 1950. A hip roofed, one-story back porch of the same vintage as the side gable is attached to the rear,
as is a modern deck. A chimney emerges from the south slope of the front gable, near its rear. Though the house's windows
are wood, they are primarily fixed sash replacements of the originals. One opening in the north end of the side gable is a jalousie
window.

There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to
be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1024 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1908. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical

evidence. The first recorded owners and occupants as of 1911 were William S. Shirrman, a jeweler at 1016 Harris Avenue, and
his wife, Gladys L. The property was sold in 1929 to William Barriball, a laborer, and his wife, Ruby. Soon thereafter the house



NPS Form 10-900-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 33 Whatcom County, Washington

was listed as vacant until the 1940s. By 1945, Andrew R. Zanchi, a fisherman, and his wife, Rose, occupied the house. This
family still occupies the house as of 2009. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-
contributing to the historic district.

1025 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201147194

Date of Construction: c. 1898

Historic Name: Kovacevich House

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story Vernacular style house at 1025 12th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa
1898, although there is virtually no longer any trace of the original exterior design. The original portion of the house is the 1.5-
story, front-gabled volume at the south. A one-story shed roof addition was added to the rear (east) at an early date. A garage
built into the slope underneath the house could have been added as early as the 1920s. The large side-gabled addition to the
south was added in the 1950s. The northern, side-gabled addition was originally one-story in height, but was topped by a
second level in the 1990s or 2000s. The original, shed-roofed front porch was filled in at about the same time. The rectangular
floor plan rests upon a poured concrete foundation. The front gable roof is covered in asphalt composition shingles. The house
is clad with composite lap siding, including the banister to the front staircase, the interior chimney at the north end of the roof, and
the two asymmetrical decks on the second story. The south-most deck is larger than its northern counterpart and hides most of
the front gabled portion of the structure. The north-most deck is slimmer, topped with a wooden railing, and is supported by two
square posts and a large flat beam. Both floors of the house are lined with sliding vinyl windows. The front door is made of
metal and is flanked on either side by glass blocks set into a wooden frame. There appear to be extensive alterations to the
original plan, cladding, and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered
non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1025 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1898. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. With a build date of 1898, the first recorded resident was bartender John E. Mack, partner in Abeel and Mack Co. that
ran the Elk Saloon at 915 Harris Avenue, in 1905. For the next several years, the house appears to have been a rental until
purchased and occupied by Morse Norman, a longshoreman, and his wife, Anna. Again, possibly rented until circa 1940 when it
was occupied for the next 40+ years by Anton A. Kovacevich, fisherman, and his wife, Andrea K. The house was sold by the
estate in 1994. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic

1027 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201147189

Date of Construction: c¢. 1898

Historic Name: German House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story house at 1027 12th Street was built circa 1898 in a Vemacular style. It has a rectangular

floor plan that rests on a concrete foundation. The roof is a front-facing gable covered in asphalt composition shingles, with

eave returns on both the main roof as well at the projecting entry vestibule. The house has boxed eaves with soffits clad in
tongue-and-groove board. The walls of the house are clad in wood lap siding. The primary window type is 1/1 wood double-

hung with some sliding aluminum sash replacements. At the southeast corner is a rebuilt exterior chimney. The house also has a
newer wooden deck that extends from the vestibule with its recessed front door toward the south. The deck shelters a tiny,

circa 1920 built-in garage on the south end of the west-facing facade which seems too small for a modern vehicle. There appear

to be moderate alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be slight
alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to
the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1027 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1898. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. The first recorded occupant in 1904 was Mrs. Emma B. German along her two sons Lavelle and William M. German
(see 1009 12th Street). It was purchased circa 1920 by Matt Evich, a fisherman, and his wife, Barbara. They resided here until
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the late 1950s. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to
the historic district.

1028 12TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201130186

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1930

Historic Name: Pecarich House

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 1028 12th Street, built circa 1930 in the Craftsman style, is located in the South Hill
neighborhood. The house faces east on a comer lot. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation.
The one-story building has a side-facing jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle with bargeboards and rafter tails on the sides
(north and south). The small gabled entry porch has the same bargeboard, frieze board, kneewall, and posts shown in an
undated assessor's photo. More recently, the porch has been glassed in with multi-pane glass and a glass door. The main entry,
a wood door with three vertical glass panels, is visible through the glassed-in porch. The primary window type is various
configurations of vinyl. The primary wall cladding is vinyl. The assessor's photo shows pairs of double-hung windows to each
side of the door. The original windows have been replaced; on the south side a projection (apparently newer) has large picture
windows on the basement and main floors. To the south there is a shallow projecting porch with a shed roof, multi-pane
windows, and side door. A set of wood stairs with decorative railings provides access to the porch from the southeast. The

plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to be
extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

A detached garage lies to the rear (southwest) of the house. It is accessed via a driveway at the north edge of the property.
Though its side-facing jerkinhead roof and general massing appear to be contemporary with the house, it does not appear on the
1950 Sanborn map.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1028 12th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1930. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. This house was built in 1929 or 1930 on property purchased from Nellie H. Allen by Antone (Tony) Pecarich, a
fisherman, and his wife, Mary. The house stayed in the family until it was sold in 1991. It now appears to be a rental. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.

522 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201145451

Date of Construction: c¢. 1910

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 522 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Located midblock facing east, It was
built in 1910 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on an
unknown foundation covered in a shingled skirt. The 1.5-story building has a roof with side gables that flare out slightly at the
bottom; it is clad in composition shingle. While the majority of the house is clad in wood lap siding, the bottom portion north and
south is clad in shingles. Many windows are 1/1 wood sash originals; the upper portion is about one-quarter of the size of the
lower portion. The shallow shed dormers east and west feature slider replacement windows. The west dormer is partially
obscured by a new deck which may be accessed from a set of stairs on the north side. The windows at the sides of the house
feature window hood moldings. The eaves (south and west) are open with bargeboard, rafter tails, and rake board. The south
lower story has a double French door. There is a opening the size of a garage or French door at the basement level where some
construction appears to be in progress (2008).

The assessor's photo reveals that the house originally had an open front porch, a simple overhang roof supported by four posts.
The infilled porch has a knee-wall with the original posts remaining on the south side; on the north side the porch has been
entirely enclosed as living space. The entry has wood steps and a replacement door in a sympathetic style: a Craftsman wood
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door with window panes in the top portion. The plan appears to have moderate alterations. There is no discernable alteration to
the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original
building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 522 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1910. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. In 1910 Frederick
Brelsford, a painter is listed in the Bellingham city directories at 722 13th, however this may be a case of re-addressing or a
misprint as Fred Brelsford is listed at 522 13th in 1915, with wife Maude, and he is listed as the taxpayer in the Bellingham block
books in 1918. Around 1919 he sold to Robert B. Underwood, who sold to Fanny M. Lorce between 1920-21. Fanny Lorce sold
the property to George Maxwell between 1926-27. In the 1931 Bellingham city directory Olive |. Maxwell, widow of George, is
listed as the householder. Mrs. Maxwell lived in the house through circa 1940. In 1945, Frank Drake, a clipperman for Bellingham
plywood corporation, is listed with wife Gladys. Miehl Wehmeyer, a longshoreman, and wife Leoan occupied the house between
circa 1950 and through at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this
resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

523 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163451

Date of Construction: c¢. 1902

Historic Name: Clark, Luman R., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 523 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house faces west on a comer
lot. 1t was built in 1902 (according to the County Assessor) in the Queen Anne style with Vernacular overtones. The house
stands on a concrete block foundation with a basement. The basement is accented from the south elevation, via descending
concrete steps. The two-story building has a varied roof lines clad in composition shingles. The eaves are boxed. The wall
cladding is raked wood shingle. Trim elements include a water table and cap, rake molding, and cornice molding. The principal
window types are 1/1 vinyl sash and wood sash.

The building mass consists of a narrow side facing gable with a full height gable projecting at the south end of the fagade. The
volume nested into the intersection between the front and north gable is a truncated hip with a shed extension in front sheltering
the porch. Another, slightly lower hip projects to the rear and spans the full width of the house. The first floor of the front gable
is chamfered, forming a polygonal window bay with 1/1 replacement windows on all three sides. The cantilevered corners of
the upper level are supported by a full-height, curving bracket to the south of the bay and by the slightly projecting porch to the
north. Paired replacement window lie in the upper story. The porch entry lies near the front gable and has an arched opening,
with an open arched window to its north. Another arched opening faces north. Access is via concrete stairs with metal railings
that begin from the south and angle ninety degrees midway. Based on an undated assessor photo, the porch has been
rehabilitated and reopened. In the 1970s the arched openings were all squared and/or filled with glazing. The front door is of the
same period as the house, with one pane of glass over eight wood panels. A Queen Anne window with colored perimeter
glass is set high in the wall to the north of the door. The narrow south side gable shelters a two-story polygonal window bay
with fixed replacement windows at the center and 1/1 replacements on the slanted sides. The tympanum is accented with
fishscale shingles. The narrow north gable projects slightly and is square across both stories. The plan appears to have only
slight alterations. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

A large, older garage lies to the rear of the house. It sits below the level of the alley. Though a similar sized building labeled
"outhouse" appears on the 1913 Sanborn map, this is most likely newer or heavily rebuilt. The foundation is very new concrete.
The structure has a steeply pitched gable roof clad in composition shingles and with a north-south ridge. The gable-end eaves
are very shallow and finished with bargeboards. The south wall is clad in lap siding with corner boards. There is a recessed
human-scale opening toward the west and a newer four panel garage door toward the east. The east elevation's wall is clad in
plywood and includes a small vinyl slider toward the north.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 523 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. As of 1905, this
house was occupied by Luman R. Clark, bottler, and Morton Clark, a student. By 1915, it was owned and occupied by Elmer E.
Sherman, trapman for Pacific American Fisheries; his wife, Ella; Clarence W. Sherman, captain of the steamer Spokane; and
William C. Haven, engineer for the E.K. Wood Lumber Co., and his wife, Emma L. It was sold at the end of the 1920s to James C.
Campbell, manager of Brown and Co., and his wife, Hilda. It appears to have been rented in the 1930s and subsequently
purchased by Bernard A. Genther, postal clerk, and his wife, Kathleen. The Genthers are listed at this house from 1940 through
the 1970s. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing
to the historic district.

600 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201145439

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1906

Historic Name: Molzahn, William and Grace, House
District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 600 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house faces east on a comer
fot. It was built in 1906 (according to the County Assessor) in the Free Classical style. The house has a rectangular plan and
stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a gable roof clad in composition shingle. The house features boxed
eaves with eave returns, cornice molding, rake board and molding, frieze board, corner boards and a water table and cap. The
primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash with hood moldings. Basement windows
are present. The open porch is inset on the north corner of the fagade and features a square post on a solid rail. A decorative
window with a geometric muntin pattern is found to the north of the wood door. There appears to be only slight alterations to the
original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original
windows. Due to the leve! of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 600 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1906. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest
residents remain unknown. William H. Molzahn, captain for the Bellingham Fire Department No. 2, and wife Grace occupied the
house between circa 1915 and circa 1945. William H. and Myrtle L. Hender lived in the house circa 1950. Ray H. Cammack, a
fisherman, and wife Lorena are listed at the address in the 1955 city directory. In 1960 the house was occupied by Leslie W.
Marshall, a clerk for Fairhaven Grocery, and wife Marjorie. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's
history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

601 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163437

Date of Construction:  c. 1895

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 601 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built circa 1895, but with none of the original style discemable today. The house has an
irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The house has three rooflines and two masses (it may be that the larger
mass was the original house and the northwest mass, which includes the garage, is an addition). The largest mass is built over
exposed basement-level living space; on the lower level are large windows and a double sliding metal-framed glass door that
leads out to the front yard. The upper level features a large bank of vinyl windows facing the bay (west); a wood-framed double
glass door leads to a large deck with glass panels at the front of the house. The two-level building has a shed roof clad in
composition shingles. The highest exposure of the house (under the shed roof) faces east and features six small windows. To
the northwest side, the smaller one-story mass has a one-car garage at the northwest end and its own deck in front with wood
railings, accessed by a set of stairs. The wall cladding is wood lap. The principal window type is various vinyl sash. There
appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan, cladding, and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original
building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.
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The house has a large side yard to the northwest with several fruit trees.

Statement of Significance: The house at 601 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1895. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

602 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201145437

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1905

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 602 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Located midblock facing east, It was
built in 1905 (according to the County Assessor) in a Queen Anne Cottage style with dominant Vernacular elements. The house

has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete block foundation. The front gable of the 1.5-story building has a single, narrow
second-story window and a roof clad in composition shingle. The most distinctive feature is the inset porch; it is supported by

one turned post and a decorative railing to the north. It has no steps, and the entry is reached via the concrete slab porch. To

the west, two triple vinyl replacement windows look out upon an enormous lower-level deck constructed of wood and

latticework; there is a second, smaller deck on the second story which is accessed from the interior by a sliding door in the

gable. The primary wall cladding is round-edge wood drop siding, but the upper level is clad in fishscale shingles, though the
expanse covered is smaller in the back gable. The principal window type is various configurations of vinyl sash. Two new bays

have been added: one is a small pop-out south-facing kitchen bay, the other is a three-side rectangular bay; both are supported

by decorative painted brackets. A two-car garage clad in vertical siding with two aluminum windows and a vinyl door has been
added to the rear of the house. The plan appears to have moderate alterations. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations.
There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource
would be considered noncontributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 602 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1905. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

606 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201145432

Date of Construction: 1987

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1987 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

609 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163429

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1902

Historic Name: Brown, Joseph and Rachel, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 609 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing west.
It was built in 1902 (according to the County Assessor) in the Free Classical style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands
on a concrete foundation. The two-story building has a gable roof clad in composition shingles. The house features boxed
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eaves with eave returns. The wall cladding is wood shingle. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. A window on the
fagade features a honeycomb patterned wood muntin upper sash. The house features a two-story, three-sided polygonal bay
window on the south side under the main roof eave. An open porch spans the fagade and wraps around on the south side inset
under the main house body. The porch features a hip roof, boxed columns on a solid rail, concrete steps, a metal rail and a
wood French front door. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight
alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this
resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A iarge garage is present on the east side of the lot. The structure features a gable roof, wood drop and wood shingle siding
and a sliding garage door facing east toward the alley. A multi/1 wood sash window is also present on the east side of the
structure.

Statement of Significance: The house at 609 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest
residents remain unknown. In 1905 Joseph G. Brown is listed at the address. Joseph and Rachel Brown occupied the house
through 1915. Mr. Brown worked in real estate and as a laborer. In 1915 Frank B. Brown, a meat cutter at the Holly Market, is
also listed as a resident. According to the Bellingham block books Joseph and Rachael Brown owned the lot through at least
1929; however the Browns were not listed in the city directories during those years. In 1931 Sanford E. Crandell, 2 millworker at
Whatcom Falls Mill Company, and wife Rachel are listed as the occupants. The house was vacant in 1935. Frederick and
Prethynnia Macintyre are listed as the householders in 1940. Mr. Macintyre was a salesman. Carl A. and Gertrude Volkman
occupied the house between circa 1945 and at least 1960. Mr. Volkman worked as an engineer and maintenance man for
Cascade Laundry & Cleaners Inc. Due to the leve! of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is
considered contributing to the historic district.

610 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144426

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1926

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 610 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built in 1926 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on

a concrete foundation. The one-story building has a jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle. The house features boxed
eaves and pointed bargeboard. The primary wall cladding is metal. The principal window types are fixed wood sash, vinyl sash,
and aluminum sash. Windows on the fagade feature shutters. The front porch projects from the central fagade and features a
jerkinhead roof, wood post supports, wrought iron rail and concrete steps. The undated assessor's photo shows the porch
formerly had an arched roof. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan; however, there appear to be extensive
alterations to the original cladding and moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original
building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 610 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1926. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

613 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163422

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 613 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1900 (according to the County Assessor) in a Vernacular style. The house has a rectangular
plan and stands on a concrete block foundation. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. The 1.5-story building has a
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front gable roof clad in composition shingles. The wall cladding is raked wood shingle. In the back of the house (to the east), a
back gable projects out slightly accordion style. There is a dormer on the south side. Undemeath the dormer is a gabled patio
that is enclosed on the west side; it is partially roofed, with skylights on the east slope of the roof. The major alteration to the
house is the addition of a porch running the width of the front of the house and supported by three rounded columns. On the
second level, a full-length glass and metal slider door provides access to a deck built over the porch. Both the porch and the
deck are closed in by knee-walls, but the porch is clad with shingles, and the upstairs deck with horizontal siding. There appear
to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. The principal window type is various wood sash. There are extensive
alterations to the original windows, some of which are metal replacements. The front door is multi-paned glass and is reached by
side staircase to the south with a wood rail. To the rear, there is a detached garage with two doors in two different styles. Due
to the amount of alteration to the originali building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

An older garage lies to the rear of the house and is accessed from the alley. It has a nominally gabled roof with a very low pitch
and an east-west ridge. The vehicular opening on the east once ran on an overhead sliding track. The remaining original door,
composed of double-drop siding with diagonal bracing, has been fixed on the north half of the east wall. The south half was
then filled with an overhead panel door. Surprisingly, the garage does not appear on the 1950 Sanborn map.

Statement of Significance: The house at 613 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

614 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144422

Date of Construction: 1928

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: Built in 1928-29 (according to the Bellingham Block Books) in the Craftsman style, the house at 614 13th
Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east. It has a rectangular plan and stands on a
concrete foundation. The one-story building has a jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle. As with several other modest
cottages on this block, its most elaborate feature is the porch, open except for a glass panel on the south side. Supported by a
pair of brick pedestals, the pediment is covered in lap siding and faced with bargeboard. An additional (almost identical) brick
pedestal has been added to the north of the front to support a pergola. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding, and
principal window types are muiti/1 wood sash and aluminum sash. The east-facing windows are original and similar to others
used in nearly identical houses on this street: 6/1 with vertical muntins; they aiso have top molding. There are some replacement
windows to the north. The house features a concrete block wall topped with brick trim to the north side of the house. There is
also a wood deck to the west of the house over a carport. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of
integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 614 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Bellingham block books, minor
improvements were made on the property in 1927, with a large jump in value seen in 1928-29. L.M. Jones bought the property
from the E.M. Wilson Estate in 1927. In the 1931 Bellingham city directory John O. Rue, of Rue & Company, is listed at the
address. Mr. Rue is also listed in 1935. Mrs. Marian McClaskey, principal of Sunnyland School and widow of William H., occupied
the house between circa 1940 and at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history,
this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

618 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144418

Date of Construction:  c. 1929

Historic Name: Anderson, Albert F. and Carmen M., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0
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Physical Description: The 1.5-story, four bedroom Tudor Cottage at 618 13th Street was built circa 1929. This house has a very
steep hip roof with a small, projecting front gable vestibule. The front door is recessed and fronted by a chamfered opening. The
pitch of the vestibule's roof is very steep and the bargeboard is wide and pointed. Shed roofed wall dormers can be found on

the house's south side, as well as on the front-facing volume at the north. All of the house's windows are replacements,

primarily casements with grids that mimic a 2/1 configuration. The house is clad in lap siding with a concrete foundation. The
foundation is topped with a water table and cap. A brick chimney lies to the rear (west) of the main ridge. The plan appears to

have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to
the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 618 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1929. This construction
date is supported by physical evidence, Sanborn maps, Block Books and city directories. In 1930 it was occupied by Albert F.
Anderson, driver for Bellingham Fire Department, and his wife, Carmen M., who was recorded as owning the property in 1929 as
Carmen M. Smith. The Andersons moved in 1936, and the house appears to have been a rental until purchased and occupied by
Nick J. Mustappa, fisherman, and his wife, Irene K. The house was sold in 2005 by the Mustappa Trust. Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

622 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144414

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1905

Historic Name: Peterson House

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: Though the house at 622 13th Street does not yet appear on the 1904 Sanborn map, it may have been built
as early as 1903, according to its current owner. The Queen Anne style structure is located in the South Hill neighborhood and
faces east on a comer lot. It stands on a concrete block foundation and has a rectangular plan. The 1.5-story building has a hip
roof clad in composition shingle. The most distinctive feature is the west-facing five-sided polygonal tower, added in 1993 to a
previous expansion of the house to the rear. (The owner's speculation that the rear of the house is an earlier addition is
supported by the odd appearance of two portions of the house that come together at a 45-degree angle. The owner added trim
at the jointure that gives it a period-appropriate appearance.) The tower is elaborately decorated with brackets and a soffit with
dentil trim; it also has accents of wrought-iron trim. The tower also has a decorative painted belt course between the first and
second stories. At the time of the tower addition, the owners added trim in a sunburst pattern and other Queen Anne detailing to
the inset porch. The Queen Anne styling is also evident in the elaborate paneled front door with a window; it appears to be
original. The porch is reached by a set of wood stairs with a metal rail. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The
principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. In the front portion of the house, windows appear to be original and include window
hood moldings. Three gables (east, south, and north) have boxed eaves with eave returns as well as bargeboard, rake board,
and rake moiding. On the west side, a latticework deck has steps to the lower level and provides an entry to the back door.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There
appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 622 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1905. This construction
date is supported by Sanborn maps, physical evidence, and a statement by the current owner, who believes it dates to as early
as 1903. The first owner and occupant of this house was a jeweler, Peter M. Peterson and Mattie Peterson, widow of another
"Peter,"” possibly his mother. The Petersons resided here through the 1930s. Perhaps rented for a few years thereafter, the city
directory records County Sheriff, Conrad R. Axling and his wife, Dorothy, circa 1945, followed by Vincent R. Karuza, fisherman
and laborer with Georgia Pacific Plywood, and his wife, Shirley M. By 1960, the property was owned and occupied by Frederick
W. Jones, truck driver, and his wife, Ardis. In 1992, the house was sold to the current owner. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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700 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144397

Date of Construction:  c. 1918

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Vernacular two bedroom house at 700 13th Street was built circa 1918 and faces east on a
corner lot. The house is clad in lap siding and has an L-shaped plan that rests on a concrete foundation. The windows are
primarily fixed vinyl with imitation muntins. The window in the front gable was inserted at a later date is a vinyl, single-pane
casement window. The basement window on the north side is an original wood muntin fixed window. The first floor windows

all feature hood moldings. The molding does not appear on an undated assessor photo and most likely dates to the same period
as the front gable's window. Other decorative trim includes rake boards, cormner boards, and a water table and cap. The front
door is sheltered by a flat roofed portico that is supported by wooden posts. The walkway is made of brick, and the single step
and front pad are made of concrete, topped with brick pavers. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 700 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1918. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

706 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144394

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1925

Historic Name: Selene, Fred and Pauline, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 706 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Located midblock facing east, it was
built circa 1925 in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The one-story
building has a side-facing jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle. The most distinctive feature is the front-facing raked brick
chimney that pierces the eave. The chimney is flanked by a pair of 2/1 sidelights with a small upper portion. In the front there
are also two original 5/1 windows. A second small chimney extends through the front south of the roof near the ridge. The
entrance to the house is on the south side of the front through a smail inset porch. A knee-wall has been added at the southern
end of the porch. There is a small, shallow addition on the south side raised up on pre-cast concrete piers. The principal

window types are 1/1 wood sash and vinyl sash. The side gables have bargeboard and replacement windows in the attic. In

the rear of the house are two new windows with muntins and a new door with a window. The primary wall cladding is wood

lap siding. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There
appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would
be considered contributing to the historic district.

On the west portion of the lot is a large shed with a corrugated metal roof.

Statement of Significance: The house at 706 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1925. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Marion L. Weaver,
chef at the Victoria Hotel, and his wife, Lula, owned and occupied this house through the 1920s. It appears to have been rented
through the 1930s until purchased and occupied by Fred M. Selene, carpenter, and his wife, Pauline K., who resided here until
circa 1980. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing
to the historic district.
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707 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163392

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1929

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 707 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing west.
It was built in 1929 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on

a concrete foundation. The two-story building has a side gable roof clad in metal. The open eaves are finished with

bargeboards and supported by rafter tails and purlins. The wall claddings are vinyl on the second floor and board and batten on
the first. The principal windows are various configurations of vinyl sash.

Circa 2000 the house was raised on a taller foundation and the sloping front yard was leveled. As a resuilt, the former one-story
structure now has two levels of habitable space, with the original entry at the center of the second story. The new unpaneled
door is sheltered by a gabled hood with an arched ceiling that is supported by brackets. Vinyl sash sliders are centered in the
wall to each side of the door. The entry level is fronted by a modem, full width wood deck supported by simple posts. The
railings are wood, with metal grids inserted between the posts. Access to the deck is at its north end, via a stair that runs north-
south. The front windows of the new first floor consist of a large vinyl slider at the north half and a three-part window with a
slider flanked by 1/1 vinyl sashes at the south. The entry is located near the front corner of the south side elevation. it is
sheltered by a small shed roof that is supported by simple posts that rest on the retaining wall to the neighboring property. The
rear of the house is extended by means of a nearly full-width, shed roof split-off from the main roof. There appear to be
moderate to extensive alterations to the original plan and cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original
windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the
historic district.

A period garage lies to the rear (east) of the house and is accessed from the alley between 13th and 14th Street. It appears to
be in the process of alteration and conversion. The structure has a gabled roof clad in modern metal panels and with an east-

Statement of Significance: The house at 707 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1929. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

708 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144390

Date of Construction: ¢. 1923

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 708 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built in 1923 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular pian and stands on
a parged concrete foundation. The one-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The roof features boxed
eaves with brackets and bargeboard. The primary wall cladding is vinyl. The principal window type is various configurations of
wood sash. The fagade features several sets of paired 4/1 windows. A two-story addition is present on the west side of the
house. The entry is off-center to the south on the fagade and features a paneled door with a glass pane. The undated
assessor's photo shows the house with a gable porch roof and prior to the rear addition. There appear to be extensive
alterations to the original plan and cladding, as well as moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

A small garage is present on the southwest corner of the lot. The structure is angled to the southwest on the lot, and features a
gable roof and viny! cladding. The garage door faces southwest along the alley.

Statement of Significance: The house at 708 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1923. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount
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of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

711 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163387

Date of Construction:  c. 1929

Historic Name: Uty, Karl, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 2

Physical Description: The house at 711 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing west.
It was built in 1929 (according to the County Assessor) in the Minimal Traditional style. The house has a rectangular plan and
stands on a concrete foundation. The one-story building has a side gable jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingles. The wall
cladding is wood lap. The house has a symmetrical fagade: two picture windows with shutters flank a center door of painted
wood. Above the door is a pediment head supported by a pair of brackets and trimmed with bargeboard and modillions. There is
a painted brick chimney to the south of the house. In back (east) of main mass of the house is a small projection that slopes
downward from the lower mass of the original house to a flat roof. This addition has vinyl sliding windows; the back entrance is
protected by a security door. The addition is probably heated with a wood burning stove, the chimney of which projects from the
rear of the addition. The principal window type is fixed vinyl sash. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level
of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A garage that opens to alley at the rear may have been constructed of found materials: the sides are clad in unpainted horizontal
lap wood siding; the ends are clad in vertical painted siding; it has a 1/1 vinyl sash window with grids on the south side. The
garage has a vinyl automatic door. To its north is another similar building, a storage shed or perhaps an apartment, with vertical
siding and a wood deck to the west, facing the house.

Statement of Significance: The house at 711 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1929. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
constructed while owned by Karl Uty with the first recorded residents, Donald J. Pace, dairy worker for Whatcom County
Dairymen's Association, and his wife, Lydia S. In the mid-1930s, fisherman, George J. Plancich, and his wife, Mary, appear to
have been renters in this house. By 1945, ownership is recorded for John T. Clancy, plywood worker, and his wife, Kathleen D.
The Clancy family are still owners and residents of the property but it currently appears to be a rental. Due to the level of integrity
of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

714 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201145384

Date of Construction:  c. 1954

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 714 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built in 1954 (according to the County Assessor) in the Minimal Traditional style, but has been rebuilt beyond recognition
from the original. The house has an irregular plan, and has been transformed from its horizontal, flat-roofed ranch lines into a
1.5-story building with front and side gables. The open porch has a pediment with bargeboard and square posts. The side
gables are irregularly pitched, with a shed-like shape in the back and a steeper pitch in front. There are three vinyl windows on
the south side. The front has a triple window to the north; the front roof has three skylights. To the north, there is a brick
chimney, possibly a version of the original faintly indicated in an undated assessor's photo. It appears that the chimney was
expanded upward since there are several different kinds of bricks and mortar evident. On the rear (west) of the house is a
three-story projection. The lowest level contains the back door and a window. The projection has a two-level deck with stairs to
connect it with the yard. There is a sliding glass door to access the upper deck and a wood railing filled in with wire mesh on
the lower deck. The house stands on a concrete foundation, and its roof is clad in composition shingle. The primary wall
cladding is cementitious wood lap siding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan, cladding and windows.
This resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 714 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1954. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history. The building's history was not researched.

715 13TH ST

Parcel Code: . 370201163383

Date of Construction: ¢. 1939

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 715 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing west.
It was built in 1939 (according to the County Assessor) in the World War Il Era Cottage style. The house has a rectangular plan
and stands on a concrete foundation. The one-story building has an eaveless hip roof clad in composition shingles. The wall
cladding is wood lap. The principal window type is 2/2 wood sash with shutters. Basement windows are present. A two-story
addition is present on the east side of the house, featuring metal slider windows. The entry is located just south of center on the
fagade and features a small roof with wood post support, concrete steps and a wrought-iron rail. A basement garage is

present on the lower south side of the fagade. The undated assessor's photo shows the former garage door configuration.

There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding or windows; however, there appear to be extensive alterations to the
original plan. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the
historic district.

A garage is present on the east side of the lot. The building features a flat roof and wood lap siding. A wide metal roll-up garage
door faces east toward the alley.

Statement of Significance: The house at 715 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1939. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
built on property formerly occupied by two boarding houses as recorded in the 1904 Sanborn. These were most likely torn down
in the 1930s with the current house first occupied by a series of renters until the mid-1940s when likely purchased by Charles F.
Proctor, a dairy products wholesaler, and his wife, Mary E. The following residents occupied the house from the mid-1950s until
beyond 1960: Rene J. LaCasse, Fairhaven Pharmacy, and his wife, Orilla M. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled
with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

717 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201163378

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1898

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 717 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1898 (according to the County Assessor) in a Vemnacular style. The house has a rectangular
plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a hip roof clad in composition shingles. The wall cladding is
wood lap. The principal window type is various wood sash. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. The
original house (shown in a ¢.1950 assessor's photo) had a single front dormer with a pair of double sash windows. The original
open porch has been retained. Itis supported with four posts and extends almost the full width of the front of the house. The
front door is glass; it is reached by a set of stairs with a wood rail to the south front of the house. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original windows: the dormer sash windows have been replaced with a metal slider, and shutters have been
added to the dormer as well as to side windows and the vinyl windows looking out onto the porch downstairs. Below the porch

is a brick foundation skirt. A large shed dormer has been added to the second story at the north end; its roofline is faced in
bargeboard and the north-facing side has three small sash windows. There is also a gabled projection along the north rear of
the house that includes a smaller projection with an enclosed one-story porch and the back door. The cladding appears to have
only slight alterations. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing
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to the historic district.

A garage sits to the northwest of the house and is accessed from the street. It is made of concrete block, and the top third is
covered with wood siding; it retains its original hinged doors. The garage appears on the 1950 Sanborn map.

Statement of Significance: The house at 717 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1898. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

718 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144376

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1927

Historic Name: Ragan, Otto E. and Elizabeth F., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story Craftsman style bungalow at 718 13th Street was built circa 1927. This house features a
side-facing jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle. A secondary, front-facing jerkinhead projects from the north end of the
east-facing fagade. The porch to its south is recessed under an extension of the main roof. it features tiny battered posts that
rest on brick pedestals. The front entrance, located at the north end of the porch, features an arched door. The 9/1 wood
double-hung sash windows are featured on the front and side of the house and tend to be grouped in threes. The house is set

on a slope so that the front fagade (east) is one story and the back fagade (west) appears to be two. There is also a porch
addition to the rear facing fagade. The asbestos shingle clad house rests on a concrete foundation. There appear to be no
alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There is no discernable alteration
to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the
historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 718 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1927. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. An earlier house
occupied this property according to the 1904 Sanborn, possibly adjacent to this structure which was built circa 1927 by Otto E.
Ragan, fireman and millworker, and his wife, Elizabeth F. The Ragans were still residing here beyond 1960. Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

722 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144373

Date of Construction: 1909

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 722 13th Street, built in 1909 according to.the owner, in a Free Classical style with
Vernacular overtones, is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The corner lot house faces east and appears on the 1913
Sanborn. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has front, back, and
side gables. The apex of the front and back gables (east and west) is decorated with jigsaw work. The west gable has a set of
four windows: two double sash and two with fixed panes. At the rear of the house there also is a one-story projection with a
shingled skirt. On the north side is a projection with a front window and a gabled side with windows on both stories. On the
south side there are two pairs of double sash windows. Extending the full front expanse of the house, the porch is multi-paned
glass. Comparison with an undated assessor's photo shows that the original porch was glassed in. The owner says that the
rear (west) portion of the house was originally a porch that was infilled for additional living space; the shingles to the west were
added at this time. There is a south dormer with a hipped roof and a pair of double sash windows; a new dormer was added to
the north. The roof is clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is round-edge wood drop siding. The principal
window type is 1/1 wood sash. A wooden deck off the back door is reached by a set of stairs. There is a small garage on the
south side, clad in siding that matches the house; this garage was an earlier addition, but is in a sympathetic style. The plan
appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There is no discernable



NPS Form 10-900-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 46 Whatcom County, Washington

alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

An outbuilding under construction (2008) at the rear of the lot is to be a narrow, tall garage with living space above.

Statement of Significance: The house at 722 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the owner, this resource was built in 1909.
This construction date is supported by Sanbom maps and physical evidence. According to the Bellingham block books, Mary E.
Slyster was the taxpayer in at least 1924-29, selling the property to Edwin B. Lynch in 1928-29 along with a neighboring lot.
Edward B. Lynch is listed with wife Mary the Bellingham city directories between 1931 and circa 1940. Mr. Lynch was a chief
engineer at Pacific American Fisheries. Andrew M. Droutner (alternately Troutner) occupied the house circa 1945-55 with wife
Bessie. Robert E. Shaw, a student, and wife Kathleen lived in the house circa 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building,
coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

723 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162373

Date of Construction: 1921

Historic Name: Johnson, Isaac and Mary, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 723 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built in 1921 (according to the Bellingham Block Books) in the Craftsman style. The bungalow
has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The one-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition
shingles. The house features open eaves with lookouts, pointed bargeboard and exposed rafter tails. An external brick chimney
is present on the north side, and an internal brick chimney is present on the central roof ridge. The wall cladding is wood lap. A
water table and cap are present. The principal window type is multi/1 wood sash. The south side of the house features a three-
sided rectangular bay window with a gable roof that projects from the main roof eave and features half-timbering in the gable.
Basement windows are present. The full-width porch features a shed roof with exposed beams and tapered boxed columns on
tapered solid brick piers. The ends of wood beam rails project through the brick piers. The house features a wood French door,
wood steps and a metal rail. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or cladding. There appear to be slight
alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

An outbuilding is present on the east side of the lot. The building features an asymmetrical gable roof and wood drop cladding. A
metal slider window is found on the south side, and a metal paneled garage door on the north end of the east side facing the

Statement of Significance: The house at 723 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1921. This construction date
was derived principally from the Bellingham block books, Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Isaac Johnson bought the
property from A.A. Damitio in 1921, the same year the first improvements were noted in the Bellingham block books. Isaac and
Mary Johnson are listed in city directories at the address between 1921 and circa 1931. Mr. Johnson was a general contractor
and cement worker. Emil and Wilhelmina Malmaquist occupied the house circa 1935. Frank A. Holbrook, a salesman, and wife
Georgia O. lived in the house circa 1940. The house was vacant in 1945. Joseph J. Burns, manager of Local Loan Company,
and wife Irene are listed at the house between circa 1950 and at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled
with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

800 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144352

Date of Construction:  c. 1960

District Contribution: ~ Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 800 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The building faces east on a comer
lot. It was built circa 1960 in the Modern style. The building has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The
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one-story building has a fiat roof with boxed eaves clad in built-up. The primary wall cladding is concrete block. The principal
window type is aluminum sash casements. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan, cladding or windows. This
resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The building at 800 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1960. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. This resource is considered non-contributing to the
historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in history. The building's history was
not researched.

801 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162359

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1930

Historic Name: Marinovich House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 801 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built in 1930 (according to the County Assessor) in the Minimal Traditional style. The house
has an irregular plan and stands on a parged foundation. The one-story building has a side gable roof clad in composition
shingles. The wali cladding is stucco. The front fagade is symmetrical: the door is placed at center with a single window on
each side. The small open porch, covered with a pediment head over a simple arch, is supported by two painted columns. The
porch has eave returns and the roofline is trimmed with the same narrow bargeboard used elsewhere on the house. The steep
flight of wood stairs is embellished with a wrought iron rail, and the sides of the stairs are covered with a painted lattice
foundation skirt. The front door (a replacement) is wood with a glass oval at its center. There are also two sidelights; the door
and sidelights all have leaded glass. The corner location of the house affords a large side yard. To the north and south sides of
the house are two small three-sided square projections. Behind the north projection and toward the rear of the house is a large
deck with wood railings that is accessed from the house by French doors. Over this door are the same bargeboard and eave
returns used over on the pediment porch. The principal window type is fixed wood sash. The plan, cladding, and windows all
appear to have only slight alterations. There are two painted chimneys: one at the center ridge of the roof and another at the
south gable height. The garage is located to the lower north of the house at the basement level and retains its original carriage-
style garage doors. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the
historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 801 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hil!
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1930. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest

known occupants of the house are Vincent and Katie (also Katherin, sic) Marinovich. Mr. Marinovich was a fisherman. The
Marinovichs are listed at the address through circa 1935. Andrew B. Loft and Mrs. Christina Beegle are listed at the address in
1940. Clifford and Billy Herrin occupied the house circa 1945. Mr. Herrin was employed by Bellingham Iron Works marine
division. In 1950 H.A. Pepperworth, a millworker at Bellingham Plywood Company, and wife J. Maxine are listed at the address.
Robert D. Zorich is listed as the householder in 1955. In 1960, Paul A. Benedict and wife Ruth were the occupants. Mr. Benedict
operated the Fairhaven Mobile Gas Station at 1200 Donovan Avenue. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

807 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162353

Date of Construction: c¢. 1915

Historic Name: Watrous, George and Grace, House
District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 807 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built circa 1915 in the Craftsman style. The bungalow has a rectangular plan and stands on a brick-
like concrete block foundation with a basement. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingles. The
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open eaves are finished with bargeboards and supported by brackets and rafter tails. The wall claddings are wood lap on the
first floor and wood shingles above the first floor windows. There is a water table and cap, with a short section of vertical drop
siding below the water table. Other trim includes a simple belt course above the first floor windows that forms the transition to
the upper level's shingles. The principal window type is multi/1 wood sash. The basement windows are multi-pane wood
sashes.

A full-width porch projects from the fagade. It was enclosed circa 1950, with large single-pane glazing inserted between the lap
siding-clad perimeter wall and the header. The hipped roof is supported by square box posts that are clad in lap siding. The
porch is accessed at its south end, an area that remains open. The three-part French door into the house lies on the north wail.
There are two flights of concrete stairs from the sidewalk to the house and a third that that runs north to south and leads up to a
concrete landing in front of the open porch area. All of the stairs have metal railings. A group of three small wood sash
casement windows lies in the gable above the porch. Toward its front, the south elevation includes an entry into the basement
with an older, multi-panel wood door. A rectangular window bay projects from the center. Though the bay is fairly shallow, it is
topped by its own shed roof and includes windows on all three sides. The side windows are narrow 3/1 wood sashes. The
bay's front features a Chicago style opening with multi/1 sashes. Other features on the south elevation include a multi-pane
window set high in the wall between the bay and the front comer, and a shed dormer. The latter has a bank of six casement
windows. A brick chimney emerges from the south roof slope to the rear of the dormer. The north elevation includes an exterior
chimney that pierces the main eave as well as that of another shed dormer, this example with a bank of four casement windows.
The chimney is flanked by 5/1 wood sash windows with protective storms. A full-width service porch with a hipped roof
projects at the rear (east). The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discemable alteration to the original
cladding or windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the
historic district.

An early garage that, however, does not appear on Sanborn maps, lies to the rear of the house and is accessed from the alley
between 13th and 14th Street. The one-car garage has a gabled roof clad in composition shingles and with an east-west ridge.
The wall cladding is raked wood shingle trimmed with a rake board. An unpaneled human-scale door lies at the center of the
south elevation. The metal-clad overhead garage door is on the east.

Statement of Significance: The house at 807 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1908. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest
occupants of the house remain unknown. In 1915 Willis H. Watrous, a machinist for Burpee & Letson, is listed as the householder
with wife Grace. George H. Watrous was also involved with real estate and insurance in Fairhaven. According to historian Col.
William F. Prosser, Mr. Watrous held a number of city positions and was a member of the city council (Prosser, 309-10). Mr.
Watrous is listed as the owner of the property in the Bellingham block books through 1920, when he sold to J.G. McGlinn.
McGlinn sold to Norman W. Macduff circa 1923, and Macduff sold to Nellie J. Conlee circa 1927. In the 1931 Bellingham city
directory Burton T. Conlee is listed at the address, as a salesman for Nicholas Jerns Company. In 1935 Mrs. Nellie J. Conlee is
listed as the householder. Carolyn Conlee, a teacher at Bellingham High School, is listed as the householder between circa 1940
and at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.

809 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162347

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1904

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 809 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1904 (according to the County Assessor) in the Free Classical style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingles.
The wall cladding is composition lap. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash. There appear to be no alterations to the
original plan. The fagade has an asymmetrical gable that is abbreviated on the south side and slopes down to reach the roof of
the porch on the north. The roof is edged with bargeboard, and the longer edge is trimmed with two overlapping pieces. To the
south side of the house is a gabled projection with a polygonal bay on the lower story underneath a jettied gable. There is also a
polygonal bay on the fagade south of the front door. An open porch covers the full front width of the house and is supported by
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three columns and enclosed with a kneewall. An undated assessor's photo shows that at one time the porch was entirely
enclosed and had multi-paned windows. The current porch is reached by a set of wood stairs with a wood rail. The area below
the stairs is covered with a wood lattice foundation skirt, and there is a door to the basement on the south side of the house.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows.
At the rear of the house (east) are two back projections with two separate rooflines: both are shed roofs. There are two

skylights on the roof of the lower, outer projection. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 809 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1904. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. its history was not researched.

813 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162343

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1892

Historic Name: Atkins, Alexander W., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 813 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1892 (according to the County Assessor) in the Queen Anne style. The house was formerly
located at 403 13th Street until the 1980s when the property was bought for the construction of condominiums and the house
moved up the street to its present location. The house has an irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story
building has a gable roof clad in composition shingles. The wall claddings are wood lap on the lower story and wood shingle on
the upper story. A water table and cap are present. The house features boxed eaves with eave returns, cornice molding and
decorative wood shingles along the rake board.

The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. A focal window on the central fagade features a stained glass upper sash. A
metal slider basement window is present on the west side of the house, an apparent later addition. The southwest corner of the
house features a two-story octagonal tower with an oriel-like base and a conical roof with a finial. The tower features arched
windows on the upper story with a radiating pattern of wood shingles as a window surround. Fishscale shingles separate the
lower story tower windows and adorn the oriel-like base. A three-sided rectangular bay window is also present on the fagade
and is covered by a bellcast mansard roof. The south side of the house features a 1.5-story gabled projection with a three-sided
rectangular mansard bay window. The north side of the house also features a gabled projection with chamfered corners on the
lower story. The upper story of the front gable features an inset arched balcony with a rounded solid rail clad in wood shingles.
The entry is located on the southwest corner behind the tower, in a shed roof porch with Tuscan column on a solid rail and
multi-pane glass windows on the south side. The porch features lattice stickwork above the entry, and wood steps that
descend to the southwest and then west with a turned handrail. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. The
cladding and windows appear to have only slight alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is a shed at the rear of the property with a four-panel door and lap siding.

Statement of Significance: The house at 813 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1892. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Originally located
at 403 13th Street, this house was most likely built by Alexander W. Atkins, accountant, who resided here through ¢.1915. It was
then sold and occupied by Clarence E. Hanna, marine engineer, and his wife, Laura. The Hanna family owned the house until the
mid-1980s. It was then purchased by Michael and Mary Ann Kohl for the property. The house was subsequently moved to 813
13th Street and sold to Donald and Kathy Beattie. The property at 403 13th Street was developed as condominiums.

The original house at 813 13th Street, the one that no longer stands, was occupied by Charles Coleman Hoskins, a farmer. The
Charles C. Hoskins family occupied the house as early as 1905 and through circa 1915. Other members of the family included



NPS Form 10-900-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 50 Whatcom County, Washington

wife Theodotia, and Eugene T. Hoskins, an apprentice at Burpee and Letson. Residents at this house during the 1920s remain
unknown, however according to the Bellingham biock books the property was owned by Annie M. Playfair between 1918 and
1927, when William F. Sorenson purchased it. William and Gerda Sorenson occupied the house through circa 1950. Mr.
Sorenson was a barber on Harris Avenue. Eberhardt and Irene Hansen lived in the house circa 1955-1960. Mr. Hansen was a
shipwright at the Bellingham Shipyards. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this
resource is considered contributing to a potential historic district.

900 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144323

Date of Construction: 1970

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1970 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

903 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201165320

Date of Construction: c¢. 1915

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 903 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built in 1915 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete block foundation. The 1.5-story building has a hip roof clad in composition shingles.
The wall cladding is wood shingle. The principal window types are various wood sash and vinyl sash. The house has four
dormers (north, south, east, west), but the rear, east-facing dormer is smaller, and there is a small skylight adjacent to it. There
appear to be no significant alterations to the original plan. Comparison with the assessor's photo shows that the wide inset
verandah porch with a kneewall, running the front width of the house and supported by four shingled posts, has been aitered by
moving the stairs (now wood) from the north side of the house to the center. There is no discernable alteration to the original
cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. The second-story gabled dormer windows were
originally sash and have been replaced with picture windows; there are now also narrow sash windows on the sides of the

front dormer. The house has a large side yard to the north, and from this side of the house to the rear (east) protrudes an
enclosed one-story porch with glass multi-paned door and windows. The assessor's photo seems to show that there was a
chimney on the back of the house that has now been removed. There is a storage shed to the side of the house at the rear. Due
to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 903 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1915. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

904 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144318

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1894

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 904 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Located midblock, below the street,
facing east, It was built in 1894 (according to the County Assessor) in the Queen Anne Cottage style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The two-story building has a truncated pyramidal roof clad in composition
shingle. At the apex of the roof, a widow's walk or lookout clad in lap siding has been added. It is built onto the roof and down

on to the flat roof of a dormer to the west with a covered porch and sliding door. This dormer appears to have been added at the
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time the lookout was constructed. The two-story, three-sided polygonal bay to the east jetties out with a flare over the first floor
and has been modified by new windows, new trim (in an unsympathetic style), and new cladding. Skylights have been added to
the east and south. The front door is wood with a large glass pane and is reached via a brick patio/walkway. The primary wall
cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is various configurations of wood sash. The north windows may be
original, but new window molding (perhaps replacing the original) is evident and still unpainted. To the west, two decks have
been added. There is an upper story deck with a sliding door reached by exterior stairs. A French door to the rear may be
original, but there are also two new west-facing picture windows. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan.
The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 904 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1894. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

908 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144312

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1905

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 908 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, below the
street, facing east. It was built circa 1905 in a Vernacular style. The house has an irregular plan and stands on a concrete
foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The house features bargeboard and comer
boards. The primary wall cladding is wood shingle. Diamond and fishscale patterned shingles are found in the gable on either
side of a fixed vinyl window. The principal window type is various configurations of vinyl sash. A one-story shed roof

projection on the north side appears to have been added after 1950, based on the Sanborn maps. The entry faces south from
the one-story projection and features a shed roof extended from the roof of the addition with a wood post support. A chimney is
present on the central roof ridge. The undated assessor's photo shows the former cladding and window configurations. There
appear to be extensive alterations to the origina! plan, cladding and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original
building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

A small outbuilding with a shed roof and wood shingle cladding is present on the northwest corner of the lot.

Statement of Significance: The house at 908 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1905. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

909 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162313

Date of Construction: c. 1910

Historic Name: Evich, Andrew J. and Katherine, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 909 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing west.
It was built circa 1910 in the Craftsman style. The bungalow has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The
1.5-story building has a side gable roof clad in composition shingles. The house features open eaves with brackets and
bargeboard. An external brick chimney is present on the south side, and an internal brick chimney is found just south of center
on the roof ridge. Long shed dormers are present spanning the east and west roof slope, and feature wood shingle cladding

and paired 1/1 wood sash windows. The main gable roof is bellcast, and the dormers extend from the central roof ridge. A
gabled dormer projects from the east facing shed dormer. The wall claddings are wood lap and wood shingle. A water table

and cap are present. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. The entry is south of central on the fagade and features a
French door and an open wood deck with a metal rail. The undated assessor's photo shows a different former porch
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configuration. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original
cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this
resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A small garage is present on the east side of the lot. The structure features a gabled roof clad in wood shingles. The cladding is
wood drop, and the building features multi-pane wood sash windows on the west and north sides, and a garage door facing east
toward the alley.

Statement of Significance: The house at 909 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. The resource was built circa 1910. This construction
date is supported by physical evidence, Sanborn maps, and city directories. Beginning with the 1910 City Directory, listings
indicate occupancy by Rev. Charles B. Sears, missionary, and his wife, Maria C. It appears that Rev. Sears periodically rented
the house for a year or two at a time until it was sold to fisherman, Andrew J. Evich and his wife, Katherine, circa 1945.
Katherine Evich continued to own the property until 1995. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's
history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

914 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201144308

Date of Construction: 2004

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 2004 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

915 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162307

Date of Construction:  c. 1908

Historic Name: Johnson, Issac and Mary, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Queen Anne Cottage at 915 13th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa 1908.
It is situated on a very large northeast corner lot, facing west. The house has a rectangular plan and sits on a stone foundation.

It has a front facing gable and a side gable extending over a polygonal bay window. Spanning the front of the house is a porch
covered by a hip roof supported by turned posts and railings with turned balusters. It is decorated with a spindle rail and
decorative brackets. There are decorative comer brackets above the chamfered corners of the bay as well. The roof is clad in
composition shingle, and a chimney projects from the ridge of the roof at the rear (east) of the house. Siding is a combination of
combed wood shingle cladding on the first floor and varied imbrication (diamond and fish scale) in the gables. The primary
window type is 1/1 wood double hung sashes. There is one large picture window at the front of the house. The central

window on the bay is a fixed single pane with a diamond muntin upper sash. There appear to be no alterations to the original
plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due
to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 915 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1908. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
the home of Isaac and Mary Johnson, who lived here between 1908 and circa 1915. Mr. Johnson was a cement contractor. The
Johnsons are listed as the owners of the property through 1920 in the Bellingham block books, when Lavelle German purchased
it. Neither the Johnsons or Germans are listed at the address during the 1920s, however, Lavelle and Arte German are listed
beginning in circa 1931 and through 1960. Mr. German was a storekeeper, and later a warehouse man for Bellingham
Warehouses. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.
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916 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201146259

Date of Construction: 1928

Historic Name: Germain House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 916 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house faces east on a comer
lot and was built in 1928 (according to the Bellingham Block Books) in the Tudor Cottage style. The 1.5-story building has a side
gable roof clad in composition shingle. Above the front door, a jettied pediment with eave returns continues the Tudor motif.
There are also two small, single-window east-facing dormers; the second-story dormer is inset with a hipped roof; a second
dormer is located midlevel and has a roof that flares out at the sides. The principal window type is muiti/multi wood sash with
leaded glass though a few are double-sash originals. On the first story to the west are a new picture window and a sliding door
used to access the wood deck with wood railing that runs the expanse of the back (west) of the house. The primary wall
cladding is stucco. On the back roof ridge is a stucco chimney with three square pipes. To the north is a three-sided rectangular
bay that is glassed in as a porch. To the south is a small projecting addition, with batten-board siding and new windows. The
house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There is no discemable alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of
integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is a one-car garage with wood lap siding on the west portion of the property.

Statement of Significance: The house at 916 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1928-29. This construction
date was derived principally from the Bellingham block books, Sanborn maps and physical evidence. According to the block
books, Charles Walker bought the property from the Sisters of Charity between 1926-27. The first improvements were recorded
between 1928 and 1929. In the 1931 Bellingham city directory, Walter A. Germain, a teacher at Whatcom High School, is listed at
the address. Mr. Germain occupied the house through circa 1940. Wallace and Arline Dent were the occupants circa 1945. Mr.
Dent was a fish buyer. Frank J. Rapanich occupied the house circa 1950 through at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

917 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201164259

Date of Construction. c. 1900

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 917 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, and sits far back on a corner lot. It was built circa 1900 in the Dutch Colonial Revival style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a gambrel roof clad in composition shingles.
The gambrel roof is truncated on the west side. The eaves are boxed, and the house features bargeboard, rake board and
molding and corner boards. The wall cladding is wood lap. The principal window types are 1/1 wood sash and aluminum sash.
The house originally faced north and was addressed 1310 Fillmore Ave. The north side of the building features wood sash 1/1
windows with hood molding, including a small upper story window with lamb's tongues. The northwest comer of the building
features a chamfered corner with a window. Window sash and openings have been altered on the west side of the building,

and a shed roof has been added that extends the length over a deck. A basement garage underneath the deck faces north
toward Fillmore. The original inset porches on the northwest and southwest comers are still visible undereath. The former main
entry is now a side entry, facing north. The main entry is recessed on the southwest comer. The house features concrete

steps with a wood rail, descending from the central fagade to the west. A wide non-period internal brick chimney with a cap is
present. There appear to be slight alterations to the original plan and cladding; however, there appear to be extensive alterations
to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 917 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1900. This construction
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date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

920 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201146252

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1929

Historic Name: Holbrook, Frank and Georgia, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 920 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east.
It was built in 1929 (according to the County Assessor) in the Tudor Cottage style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands
on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a side gable roof clad in composition shingles with boxed eaves. The wall
cladding is brick, with wood shingles in the gables, as well as on a shed dormer on the east roof slope and a three-sided
polygonal hipped bay on the facade. The bay window features multi-pane upper sashes. The principal window type is 1/1

wood sash. Two small square stained glass windows with leaded diamond patterns are featured on the fagade; one north of

the entry and one near the roof eave on the north corner of the facade. Two entries are present; one centrally located on the
fagade features a small arched roof with bracket supports, and a second on the north end of the fagade features a wood

paneled door with a single glass pane. An internal brick chimney is present near the central roof ridge on the east roof slope,
and an external brick chimney is present on the south side of the house. The plan, cladding and windows appear to have only
slight alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 920 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1929. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. No improvements
are listed in the Bellingham block books on this property through 1929, however the house may have been under construction at
the time. Frank A. Holbrook bought the property between 1928 and 1929 from L.E. Miller. Frank and Georgia Holbrook are listed in
the Bellingham city directories at the address between 1931 and circa 1935. Mr. Holbrook was a street and sewer contractor.

Lyle Jaderholm and wife Agnes occupied the house between circa 1940 and circa 1960. Mr. Jaderholm was co-manager at
Cascade Industrial Loan Company. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is
considered contributing to the historic district.

921 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201164253

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1907

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story American Foursquare at 921 13th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa
1907. The house has a square plan with a small irregular-shaped addition off the back (east). It sits atop a cast stone
foundation, mid-block facing west. There is a wide stairway on the northwest comer of the house leading to a large porch. The
roof of the porch is flat and is topped with a wooden railing (sympathetic, but not original). The porch is open to the north but
enclosed to the south with a multi-paned fixed window. The hip roof is covered in composition shingles and has overhanging
eaves with exposed rafter tails. There are four symmetrical hip roof wall dormers projecting from each side of the house. A
rectangular bay with a hip roof can be found toward the rear of the south elevation. The siding is wood lap on the lower half of
the house and shingle on the upper half. A wood belt course with molding marks the transition between the two siding types.
The windows, which appear to be original, are primarily double hung 1/1. The large front window has a fancy leaded transom
over a single lower sash. There is also a high, single pane fixed window just to the north of the entry that is leaded glass. One
window on the front center dormer is a casement window that allows access to the porch roof. The plan appears to have only
slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding or windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original
building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 921 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
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this resource was built in 1907. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest
occupants of this house remain unknown. According to the Bellingham block books, John W. Alderson owned the property
between circa 1918 and circa 1922, when he sold to Andrew Swanberg. Mr. Swanberg sold the property to Clara J. Barron
between 1924 and 1925. The house is listed as vacant in the Bellingham city directory for 1931. Nick Mardesich, a fisherman, is
listed at the address between circa 1935 and circa 1945. Widow Marguerite Mardesich is listed at the address in 1950. Nicholas
A. Costantini, a commercial fisherman, occupied the house between circa 1955 and at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of
the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

924 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201146247

Date of Construction:  c. 1946

District Contribution: ~ Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 924 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, below the
street, facing east. It was built in 1946 (according to the County Assessor) in the World War Il Era Cottage style. The one-story
building has a hip roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is stucco, and the windows are accented by
painted wood shutters. The front door is paneled wood and reached via concrete steps with a metal rail. A side door is covered
by a glass screen door [the kind that can take a screen or glass panel depending on the season]. There is a brick chimney on
the south end and a cinderblock two-story chimney on the west. There is also a west-facing wood deck on the main level. On
the lower level to the west are the back door and a large replacement window. The principal window type is aluminum sliders.
The house has a L-shaped plan and stands on a concrete foundation. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original
windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

A garage to the west has a hipped roof and wood siding.

Statement of Significance: The house at 924 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1946. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history. The building's history was not researched.

925 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201164247

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 925 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1900 (according to the County Assessor) in the Queen Anne style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a brick foundation. The two-story building has a hip roof clad in composition shingles with boxed
eaves. The wall cladding is wood lap. The house features cornice molding, frieze board, corner boards and a water table and
cap. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash. The south side of the house features a two-story polygonal bay with a

hipped roof, as well as a two-story rectangular bay with a hipped roof and chamfered corners on the lower story. The fagade
features a chamfered section on the lower story, with decorative scroliwork brackets and pendants. The center window
features a honeycomb patterned wood muntin design. The two-story porch features a balcony on the upper story with tumed
posts and a wood balustrade and frieze with decorative brackets. The porch below features a mansard roof with dentil course
molding, turned posts, wood balustrade, wood stairs and a wood rail. The house features a wood paneled door with a single
glass pane. An external brick chimney is present on the south side of the house. The plan, cladding and windows all appear to
have no discernable alterations. Due to the Jevel of integrity of the original building, this resource wouid be considered
contributing to the historic district.

A partially demolished garage is present on the east side of the lot.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 925 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. In the 1905
Bellingham city directory William T. Wilson is listed as the householder at the address, with Cora B. Adams, a teacher at the
Fourteenth Street School, and her mother Mrs. Josephine Adams, both listed as borders. In 1910 Josephine B. Adams, widow of
George M. is listed at the address. In 1915 Josephine Adams is listed again, along with daughter Charlotte and her husband
Arthur A. Carter. The occupants during the 1920s remain unknown, but according to the Bellingham block books B. Gibson was
the owner of the property between 1918 and circa 1928, when it was purchased by Ole Hill. Josephine Adams' daughter Cora
married a Gibson, she may have sold the property after her mothers' death in 1928 (Bellingham Herald 12/15/1928). Ole and
Rachel Hill are listed in the city directories at the address between 1931 and circa 1935. Mr. Hill was a captain for the BCCo.
Robert Plumb, a garage foreman for the Whatcom County Dairymen's Association, and wife Edythe occupied the house between
circa 1940 and through at least 1960. Mr. Plumb later worked for Doc's Signal Service. Due to the level of integrity of the building,
coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

929 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201167243

Date of Construction:  c. 1895

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The residence at 929 13th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, is a two-story house built circa 1895. The
plan is irregular and the house sits atop a partial daylight basement on a large corner lot, facing west. The roof lines are complex:
the main body of the house has a hip roof opening to an asymmetrical front gable with one comice return. There is a side gable
and a first floor one-story room on the south side of the house with a hip roof. There is a wide rake board, and modillions are
present on the hip portions of the roof. Other trim elements include cornice molding, cormner boards, frieze boards, and a water
table and cap. The front porch spans the width of the house and has Tuscan columns and a hip roof. The first floor front
windows at the porch have been replaced with picture windows. The majority of the windows appear to be 1/1 vinyl single-

hung sashes. Those on the southem sun room have exterior grids. The main body of the house is clad in wood lap siding. The
gables have some shingle details as does the first floor sun room. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan.
The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

There is a side opening and end opening gable-roofed garage on the alley behind the house. The garage is early, with V-notch
drop siding and plenty of small alterations from long use.

Statement of Significance: The house at 929 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1895. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount
of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not
researched.

930 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201146242

Date of Construction:  c. 1940

Historic Name: Clary, Ira and Clara, House

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The east facing, three bedroom house at 930 13th Street dates to the 1940s. Built in the Tudor Cottage
style, it features a composition shingled, steep hipped roof. A two-flue brick chimney pierces the ridge. The 1.5-story house has
brick cladding and a fat T-shaped plan that rests on a concrete foundation. The projecting wing on the house's north features a
cross between a gable dormer and a gable on hip roof, with fishscale imbrication in the gable and a 1/1 wood double-hung
window. The wing that extends to the south includes a hipped dormer with fishscale shingles and paired 1/1 windows. The
front door is slightly recessed and is located in the south wing, near its intersection with the north volume. The house's window
openings are a combination of wood fixed and 1/1 sashes. Those in the house's bricked areas are topped with flat arches and
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have brick sills. A brick chimney emerges toward the front of the south ridge. at the rear of the house there is a back deck
addition. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There is no
discernable alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 930 13th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1940. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. No listings were found for this address in the

Bellingham city directories through circa 1940. In 1945 and 1950 Ira E. Clary Jr., a switchman for the Great Northern Railway, and
wife Clara are listed at the address. Delbert J. Hewitson, a foreman for Pac Tel, and wife Norma were the occupants circa 1955
through at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.

1000 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201158226

Date of Construction: 1963

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1963 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

1005 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201175231

Date of Construction:  c. 1902

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1005 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built in 1902 (according to the County Assessor) in the American Foursquare style. The
house has a rectangular plan and stands on a cast stone foundation. A large two-story wing has been added to the north side
of the house, featuring a hip roof, a bay window on the west with a balcony above, and two garage doors facing north toward
Douglas Ave. The two-story building has a hip roof clad in composition shingles. The wall cladding is wood lap. The principal
window type is various vinyl sash. Lower story windows feature hood molding, while upper story windows are connected at
the top by the frieze board. The undated assessor's photo shows that window openings and sash configurations have been
modified. Basement windows are present. The house features a hipped dormer on the west roof slope with multi/1 wood sash
windows with lamb's tongues, and a hipped three-sided polygonal bay window on the south side. A one-story projection on the
southeast was added between 1930 and 1950, according to the Sanborn maps. The Sanborn maps also show the house with
an inset porch between 1904 and 1913, when an external porch is shown. Based on the undated assessor's photo, the current
porch appears to have been enlarged to wrap around the house to the north. The current open porch projects from the north
half of the fagade and features a hipped roof with boxed columns on a wood pier with wood rail. The wood stairs descend to
the north. The house features non-historic double wood doors with glass panes and glass side panels. There appear to be
extensive alterations to the original plan and windows. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. Due to the amount of
alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1005 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. The first recorded resident of this house according to the 1905 City Directory was Grace C. Switzer, librarian, while
the property was owned by James Shields. Charles S. Beard, proprietor of Union Printing, and his wife, Elia P. lived in the house
between 1910 and 1920. In the mid-1940s, Robert S. Macy, machinist, and his wife, Hortense S., occupied the house and
remained there beyond 1960. For several years thereafter, it was divided into two rental units until the 1980s. Because of
alterations this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district.
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1007 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201175223

Date of Construction:  c. 1940

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story residence at 1007 13th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa 1940. Itis a
World War Il Era Cottage located mid-block facing west. The house has a square plan built on a poured concrete foundation and
is clad with 7-8" exposure wood lap siding. The house has a hip roof covered with composition shingles that is pierced by a
slightly off-center brick chimney. The front of the house has a small hip-roofed projection with a picture window. The north
corner of the projection is recessed to shelter the entry. The majority of the windows are double hung 2/2 with horizontal
muntins that appear to be original to the house. From the sidewalk, two concrete staircases converge on a walkway that leads
to the house's entry. The triangular wedge of land between them is filled with rocks, a holly, and two arborvitae. The plan,
cladding and windows all appear to have no discemable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this
resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is a detached concrete one-car garage at the front of the house (southwest) that appears to be of the same time period.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1007 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1940. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. Florence Burgess, a stenographer at Pacific American Fisheries is listed at this address in the 1940 Bellingham city
directory. Peter J. and Mary Evich are listed between circa 1945 and circa 1950. Florence M. Burgess is again listed in 1955, as
a bookkeeper for Pacific American Fisheries. in 1960 Vincent and Alice Felicetta are listed at the address. Mr. Felicetta worked
as a research chemist for Puget Sound Pulp & Timber Company. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1010 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201157220

Date of Construction: 1963

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1963 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

1011 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201176218

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0  Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 1011 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a double corner lot. It was built in 1900 (according to the County Assessor) in the Queen Anne style with
Vernacular overtones. The house has a t-shape plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The two-story building has a front
gable roof clad in composition shingles with boxed eaves. The wall cladding is wood lap with decorative wood shingles on the
gables. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash. Basement windows are present. The lower story of the front gable

features chamfered corners with windows and decorative brackets with pendants. The entry is located on the north side of the
gable front projection, facing west from the north gable projection. The porch features a shed roof, turned posts and a

decorative frieze. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A flat-roof outbuilding is present on the south side of the lot.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 1011 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. Although the build date is recorded as 1900, there is no record of occupation until 1915 with a listing for Roy
Douglass, fisherman, and his wife, Bessie. In 1920, the property was purchased by Alfred J. Cooper, sawyer, and his wife,
Anna. By 1931, the owners and occupants were Anton A. Zuanich, fisherman, and his wife, Winifred. In 1945, George J.
Fowler and his wife, Ida M., were the residents. Kenneth F. Fowler, shipwright, and his wife, Dorothy P., are the occupants. In
2000, Dorothy Fowler sold the property. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this
resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1014 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201158214

Date of Construction: 1963

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1963 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

1023 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201175201

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1910

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 1023 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. Built circa 1910 in the Craftsman
style, the house is above the street, facing west, on a comer lot. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a concrete
foundation. The two-story building has a hip roof clad in composition shingle. Comparison with an undated assessor's photo
shows that the entire second story is new; the original house was one story with a small attic dormer on the front. (The
assessor's photo also shows that the house was already altered in its previous incarnation, with a replacement porch and an
aluminum picture window with slider side panels in front.) The new upper story is constructed in a style more exuberantly
Craftsman than the original. It has four wide gables. The north and west gables are characterized by wide eave returns, and
each has a tripie window topped with a multi-paned transom. The south side gable is smaller and has only two rectangular
horizontal windows; the east has a pair of narrow vertical windows with a multi-paned transom. The principal window type is

1/1 vinyl sash.

The first floor has a wide porch that wraps around to the south side. This open porch is supported by a set of three highly
decorative posts on each front corner. On the west-facing upper story, a smaller balcony porch with the same wood railing
extends in front of the large triple window; the center portion of the west gable window has a glass door to access the porch.

On the south side is a shallow one-story projection with a pair of double-sash windows The primary wall cladding is cementitious
wood lap siding. Cladding is used decoratively: on the upper story, a wide painted board is used as a belt course to separate
the lap siding on the top third of the gable from the larger shingled portion on the bottom. The front door is a beveled glass panel
with Craftsman molding. The front door is surrounded by decorative molding. Construction is obviously ongoing (in 2008) since
there are no external stairs to reach the front door, and a French door on the north side opens into space about four feet from
the ground.

The plan appears to have moderate alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to
be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

At the rear (east) is a small outbuilding, apparently a storage shed, with a hipped roof, windows, and lap siding. The door is too small
for a garage though the building may have been a one-car garage at one time.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 1023 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1910. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic
district. Its history was not researched.

1024 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201162197

Date of Construction; 1975

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1975 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

1027 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201174197

Date of Construction:  c. 1902

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Vernacular style house at 1027 13th Street was built circa 1902. The house has a
rectangular plan set on a concrete foundation. The roof is a front gable covered in composition shingle. The walls of the house
are clad with rough aggregate stucco, applied in the 1970s. There are both wood and vinyl sash windows. The small basement
windows are sliding vinyl and a large picture window to the north of the front door is fixed wood. There is a bay addition on the
north side of the house with what looks like newer roofing. The bay features a wood sash window. Another rectangular bay

on the house's north is sheltered by the eave. Its 1/1 window, like all the others on the south side, are protected by wood
storms. There is also a small covered deck addition at the rear of the house. The double porch in front features metal posts and
a flat roof that serves as a balcony for the upper story. The balcony is accessed from a sliding door with sidelights. The first
floor porch is accessed via a flight of concrete steps that leads up to the house from street level. The stair railing, as well as that
of the porch and balcony is metal. The porch is partially enclosed on its south side with fixed vertical board louvers. A large
brick corbelled chimney emerges from the center of the roof, to the south of the ridge.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original cladding and windows.
Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1027 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor’s office, this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic
district. lts history was not researched.

1030 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201160184

Date of Construction: 1926

Historic Name: Kuljis, Andrew and Dora, House

District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1030 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood and faces east on a comer lot. it
was built in 1926 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a rectangular plan and stands on a
concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingle. The front is double gabled, and the
original projecting gabled porch has been glassed in. The glass, with small transom windows, was added above the knee-wall
shown in an undated assessor's photo. The original posts that support the broad porch are faced in bargeboard with purlins and
rafter tails. The front door, a Craftsman wood door with a multi-paned window, is entered through the porch. There are two
dormers, north and south; the one to the south has a replacement window; the north has a triple window that appears to be
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original. There are five double-sash windows on the north first story and three windows, one a triple window, to the south. To
the rear of the house, an open porch under a hipped roof with a wood railing and a door that provides access to the inside on the
main level may be original. A garage is built into the lower level of the house running west-east and has paned glass doors. The
primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window types are 1/1 wood sash and vinyl sash.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There is no
discernable alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1030 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1926. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. According to the Bellingham block books, Andrew Kuljis bought this property from John Rindal in 1927. The first
improvements were noted in 1926-27. Andrew and Dora Kuljis occupied the house through circa 1940. Mr. Kuljis was a
fisherman. George E. Brandt, also a fisherman, lived in the house with wife Lillian between circa 1945 and at least 1960. Due to
the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1031 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201175191

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1888

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1  Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1031 13th Street is a west-facing three bedroom house built circa 1888. The 1.5-story
building is built in 2 Vernacular style. The roof is a front gable clad in composition shingle with a rake board following the gable's
slope. The eave is boxed and trimmed with cornice molding. The front fagade features a full-width porch sheltered by a hipped
roof supported by three wood posts. Although not original, it is sympathetically rebuilt. The rectangular shaped house is clad in
asbestos shingle and rests on a concrete foundation. The windows are 1/1 or sliding vinyl sashes, with those on the north and
south sides of the second level either casement or fixed windows. The front door, located at the porch's north end, is in the
Craftsman style, with three narrow, vertical panes of glass in its top third. Concrete steps lead from the sidewalk, up the slope
of the property, to the base of the porch. The porch is accessed from wooden stairs on its south side. The plan appears to
have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There appear to be extensive
alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered
non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1031 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1888. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic
district. Its history was not researched.

1035 13TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201178186

Date of Construction: c. 1898

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1035 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built in 1898 (according to the County Assessor) in a Vernacular style. The house has an
irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. An open porch on the front has a sloping roof supported by a pair of metal
posts. The front door is reached by a set of stairs on the south front with metal railings. The two-story building has a gable roof
clad in composition shingle. The house has four gables. The front (west-facing) gable has a pair of narrow double-sash
windows. To the north, the gable has a pair of double sash windows (perhaps originals since they have storms), and a smaller
window, probably a replacement. The south gable tops a two-story projection with windows on both stories of the west-facing
side and none on the end upstairs though there is a picture window on the first level facing south. The east gable has one single
window. To the southeast is a one-story projection with multi-paned replacement windows and a glassed-in porch. The

primary wall cladding is wood shingle. The principal window types are 1/1 vinyl sash and wood sash. There is a chimney on the
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east one-story projection. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan, cladding, and windows. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1035 13th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. According to the Whatcom
County Assessor's office, this resource was built in 1898. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic
district. Its history was not researched.

401 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201207565

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1906

Historic Name: Van Keulen, Lambertus and Adriana, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 2

Physical Description: The house at 401 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1906 (according to the County Assessor) in the Arts & Crafts style. The house has an
irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The two-story building has varied roof lines roof clad in composition
shingles. The boxed eaves are finished with fascia and cornice molding. The wall claddings are wood lap on the first floor and
wood shingle on the upper level. Trim elements include a water table and cap, corner boards, frieze boards, and rake boards
with molding. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash.

The house has a near twin to the south at 405 14th Street. Based on Sanbom maps, this house is slightly newer and does not
yet appear on 1904 maps, while its neighbor does. The main volume is an asymmetrical, side-facing gambrel. The front slope is
typically broken, but the rear terminates at the break, augmented by a small eave return. A polygonal porch spans the fagade.
Based on an undated assessor photo, the south end of the porch was partially enclosed at an early date. However, more
recently the entire porch was enclosed with large, three-part vinyl windows consisting of a fixed center flanked by casements,
inserted above a lap siding clad half-wall. In the process, the entry was shifted from the center of the porch and fagade, to the
north elevation. The polygonal porch is topped by a polygonal turret dormer with a conical roof. lts three front facets have 1/1
vinyl sash windows and its walls are clad in staggered wood shingles.

The side elevations are clad in lap siding on the first floor, staggered shingles on the second, and imbricated with fishscale and
coved shingles at the apex of the gables. In addition, the apex bows out over the second story windows. The first floor of the
south elevation includes a polygonal window bay with 1/1 vinyl sash windows on all three sides. The upper level windows
above it consist of a centered 1/1 vinyl sash flanked by short single pane windows that are topped by a horizontal trim board.
The north elevation includes the new main entry and two modern French doors leading onto a porch accessed via wood steps
with a wood railing. A one story ell with a truncated hip roof projects to the rear.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be
moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

There are two outbuildings, a garage to the front of the house and a second dwelling unit (addressed as 401 A) to the rear. The
garage, slotted into the slope, appears to be quite early, but does not appear on Sanborn maps. It has a flat roof and its side
walls are cast stone. There are two metal lift doors on the west. The wall cladding on the west is V-notch siding ornamented
with modern ornamental stickwork that mimics the outline and framing of a false front.

The dwelling unit at the rear appears on Sanborn maps by 1931. However, at that time it was only one-story in height. It is now
two stories. It has an asymmetrical gable roof clad in composition shingles and with a north-south ridge. The wall cladding is
wood lap. The human-scale entry is on the south and is sheltered by a shed roofed hood supported by ormamental scrolled
brackets. Most of the structure's windows are vinyl sliders.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 401 14th Street is located on the former Pattle Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1906. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Although the build
date of this house is 19086, it is not until 1925 that the inhabitants can be tracked through city directories. Lambertus (or Lambert)
Van Keulen, a painter, lived in the house circa 1925-50 with his wife Adriana and various members of an extended family. In
1925 Marie and Paul Van Keulen are also listed in the city directory as renters at this address; Paul Van Keulen was a painter at
Smith Motor Works. In 1929 Lambertus and Adriana lived with Bertha and Antionette Van Keulen; Bertha is listed in the city
directory as a renter and Antionette as a factory worker at Pacific Coast Paper Mill. In the 1940s and 50s the Van Keulens
apparently rented out rooms to people outside of their family. Charles C. Upshall and Richard H. Lynner lived there with them in
1940. In 1945 A. Vernon Engelsen and George T. Herley were renters. In 1950 an apartment at 401-1/2 was rented to J.G.
Thurston, Jr. In 1950 the listed residents are Lambertus Van Keulen and R.D. Bergman. Mrs. Mary K. Van Keulen owned and
occupied in the house in 1955, as well as Clarence O. Peters. In 1960 a new owner, Mrs. Nellie G. Brand, occupied 401, and the
apartment was rented to Brooks Eakers. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this
resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

405 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201203553

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1904

Historic Name: Brennan House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 405 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1904 (according to the County Assessor) in the Arts & Crafts style. The house has an
irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation with a basement. The two-story building has varied roof lines roof clad in
composition shingles. The boxed eaves are finished with fascia and cornice molding. The wall cladding is wood shingle. Trim
elements include a water table and cap, corner boards, frieze boards, and rake boards with molding. The principal window
types are 1/1 wood sash and fixed wood sash.

The house has a near twin to the north at 401 14th Street. Based on Sanborn maps, this house is slightly older and appears on
1904 maps, while its neighbor does not. The main volume is an asymmetrical, side-facing gambrel. The front slope is typically
broken, but the rear terminates at the break, augmented by a small eave return. A polygonal porch spans the fagade. The porch
was enclosed with large fixed wood sash windows inserted above a low, plywood clad bulkhead. An open, projecting vestibule
was added at the center of the front. It is accessed via concrete steps with a metal railing. The door into the porch is older,

with a single large pane of glass. The polygonal porch is topped by a polygonal turret dormer with a conical roof. The front
window is a fixed wood sash, while those on the slanted sides are 1/1 wood. The window header/frieze is ornamented with a
dentil course below the eave. The side elevations are clad in square wood shingles on the first floor, coursed shingles on the
second, and imbricated with fishscale shingles at the apex of the gables. In addition, the apex bows out over the second story
windows. The first floor of the south elevation includes a polygonal window bay. The upper level windows above it consist of a
centered 1/1 sash flanked by short single pane windows that are topped by a horizontal trim board. A one story ell with a
truncated hip roof projects to the rear. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the
original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building,
this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 405 14th Street is located on the former Pattle Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1904. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The long-term
occupants of this house were the Buono and Brennan families. According to her obituary, Ethel B. Buono lived in the house from
1912 until her death in 1985. In 1915-18 Ethel's family of origin, the Brennans, lived in the house: she is listed in the city directory
as a teacher; Lawrence J. Brennan as a laborer for the E.K. Wood Lumber Company; Alice C. Brennan as a teacher; and B.
Lenna Brennan as a teacher at Fairhaven Grade School. Ethel and her husband, I. Vincent Buono (d.1957), both worked in the
Equitable Life Insurance Company. Ethel's sister, Alice Brennan Eager, also lived in the house for many years. Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the buiiding's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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409 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202550

Date of Construction: c. 1904

Historic Name: Rottman, Bertha L., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: @ Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 409 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The building is midblock, above the
street, facing west. it was built in 1904 (according to the County Assessor) in the Arts & Crafts style. The house has a U-
shaped plan and stands on an unknown foundation. The 1.5-story building has a side gable roof clad in composition shingles.
The roof features boxed eaves, decorative cresting, cornice molding, a rake board and rake molding. The wall cladding is
staggered wood shingle with corner boards. The principal window type is multi/1 wood sash. Window molding features tapered
ears. The west roof slope features a triangle dormer and a small gabled dormer. The south gable features a small triangular
window. The south side of the house features a one-story shed roof projection. The open porch is inset on the north side of the
fagade and features Tuscan columns on a solid rail, wood steps with a solid wood handrail, and a wood panel door with a glass
pane. To the east side is a large gabled 1.5 story garage addition, attached by a hyphen at the north. The house features an
external cobblestone chimney on the north side, and an interior stone chimney near the south end of the roof ridge. The plan
appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There is no discernable
alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 409 14th Street is located on the former Pattle Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1904. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house with a
distinctive crested roof ridge and rock chimney was first occupied by Bertha L. Rottman in 1905. From 1915-17 the house was
owned by Marsena R. and Rossae Kirkpatrick. Kirkpatrick was the secretary for A.J. Riffe-Kirkpatrick Company in 1915. The
Cassils family were the longest owners and inhabitants of the house, from 1922-50. Eric G. Cassils was a lieutenant for the
Bellingham Fire Department. His wife, Anna M. Cassils, inherited the house after his death in the early 1940s. The house was
vacant in 1954 and was occupied by a series of residents in the 1950s and 1960s. A plaque on this house says "Black House,
1904," but Alfred L. Black, president of Fairhaven Land Company, partner in Black, Kindall, and Kenyon, and the first mayor of
consolidated Bellingham (1906-07), is not listed in the city directory for this address. He lived at 415 14th Street from 1905-06
and was a long-term resident of the South Hill neighborhood at 158 South Forest Street (1907-17). Due to the level of integrity of
the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

415 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202540

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1900

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story Arts and Crafts style house at 415 14th Street was built circa 1900 with a major addition
added to its south circa 2005. The house is sited on the east side of the street, high on a sloped Iot, facing west with a water
view. The flared hip roof is clad in composition shingles. There are hipped dormers on all four sides of the roof. These were
doubled in width as part of the circa 2005 remodeling campaign. The original structure is joined by a hyphen to the addition,
which is nearly the same size. It has a huge arched dormer that emerges from a hipped roof on the front and back. The
addition's center volume is a side-facing jerkinhead. The siding is staggered shingle on the lower half of the main level, with
squared shingles everywhere else, including continuing up the wall and turning into a coved eave.

All windows are vinyl in a variety of configurations including 1/1, fixed, and casement. The 1913 Sanbom Map indicates an inset
porch on the north front comner that is no longer open but has been enclosed with glass. It matches the south front cormner,
which appears to have been enclosed from the beginning, but has received new glazing. A half-round veranda has been built
over a square base clad in shingles where the original front entry was:

The addition to the south consists of the hyphen and a garage with living space above it, with siding matching that of the original
structure. The garage in the addition is entered from the rear (east) alley. There is entrance to the house from the alley through
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the hyphen, marked with an arbor. At the front, the new main entrance is accessed by wooden steps leading to the hyphen.
The front of the house is accessed by a concrete path that winds up the hill from the sidewalk. The sidewalk is bordered by a
fancy split face concrete block retaining wall topped by a hedge.

There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to have only slight alterations. There appear
to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be
considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 415 14th Street is located on the former Pattle Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

421 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202532

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1904

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 2 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The west-facing 1.5-story Dutch Colonial house at 421 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built
circa 1904. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a parged foundation. The front-facing gambrel roof and large gabled dormers
on the north and south sides of the house are covered in composition shingles. The resulting roof plan is cruciform. The walls
are clad in wood lap siding on the lower level with staggered imbrication on the upper level and hexagonal imbrication on the attic
level. An open, new deck across the front (west) fagade leads to the non-original front entry on the north side of the house.

The deck is surrounded by a wrought iron railing. The original porch was recessed at the front of the house and sheltered by a
pent roof supported by modillions. An undated assessor photo shows an earlier, pre-deck version of the enclosure with fixed
multi-pane windows and a centered entry. This arrangement was replaced with the current version which includes single-pane
windows grouped in threes with a faux muiti-pane transom above. The entry was moved to the north side. Both versions retain
the original porch's solid railing as well as the original Tuscan columns. There are two bay windows on the north elevation, one
rounded toward the front of the house and one polygonal. Two small, arched stained glass windows with hood molding adorn

the lower sides of the gables on the front (west) and back (east) of the house. The other windows of the house are
predominantly wood sash multi/1 with hoods, most flanked by ornamental shutters. A polygonal bay window projects from the
south elevation. Brick chimneys are attached to the south elevation and project from the center of the house. The south chimney
is a more recent addition. The back entry is on the north side of a shed roofed projection at the back of the house.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be
moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

There are two garages on the property. The west-facing single car garage on the northwest corner of the lot appears original.
The roof is arched and its walls stuccoed. Decorative shutters flank the newer overhead door. The north-facing two car garage
on the southeast comer of the lot has a gambrel roof covered with composition shingles. The walls of the south elevation are
clad in vertical siding. The remaining walls are clad in wood lap siding with the lower two-thirds of the gable on the north side
clad in staggered imbrication and the upper one-third clad in hexagonal imbrication. It has an overhead door.

Statement of Significance: The house at 421 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1904. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The house's
inhabitants cannot be found through city directories until 1918. From 1918-25 the owners and residents were Henry B. and
Jessie M. Drisko. Henry Drisko was an assistant manager for Pacific American Fisheries. In the 1930s and early 40s, the house
passed through a series of owners. From 1945-62 the house was owned and occupied by Frank M. and Harriet R. ("Hattie")
Allyn. Frank Allyn was a lawyer with an office in the Clover Block; Hattie Allyn was a piano teacher. She died in 1957, and
Frank Allyn was a widower for the final years he lived in the house. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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429 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202525

Date of Construction:  c. 1913

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 2

Physical Description: The house at 429 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1913 (according to the County Assessor) in the American Foursquare style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The two-story building has a hip roof clad in wood shakes. The roof's
eave is shallow and boxed. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash.

The house's full-width, hipped front porch was filled-in circa 1955. lIts cladding consists of horizontal shiplap. The entry is
located on the north end of the porch. It features a multi-pane glass door flanked by sidelights that is accessed via a flight of ten
wooden steps. The stair railing is stepped midway, is solid and clad in lap siding. The door is nominally sheltered by a wooden
pergola that was installed circa 2000. A small window lies to the north of the door and large picture window lies to its south. A
sunroom was added to the front-end of the south elevation, most likely at the same time as the porch enclosure. It has a hip roof
and features large, single-pane fixed windows on all three sides. An original polygonal bay with a hipped roof lies to the east of
the sunroom. A one-story, full-width volume with a hipped roof is attached to the rear (east) of the house. Additional features
include ornamental shutters on most of the windows and a brick chimney that emerges from the roof to the immediate north of the
ridge. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original cladding and
windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the
historic district.

A one-car garage lies to the southwest of the house and is accessed via a short driveway from 14th Street. It has a front gabled
roof clad in wood shakes. Its exterior walls are painted, board formed concrete with a horizontal board accent in the front gable.
The vintage garage door is hinged and each of the doors has six fixed panes over a pane! filled with beadboard. There is a shed at
the southeast corner of the property. Neither structure appears on the 1950 Sanborn map.

Statement of Significance: The house at 429 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1913. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

435 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202516

Date of Construction: c¢. 1920

Historic Name: Watrous, Willis H. and Grace D., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The west-facing one-story Craftsman bungalow at 435 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was
built circa 1920. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a concrete foundation. The side-facing gable roof is covered with
composition shingles and has decorative wood purlins under its wide overhanging eaves at the gables. The inset front porch is
in the southwest corner of the house. It is covered with a front-facing gable roof with purlins under wide overhanging eaves. It
is supported by a square column that rests on a solid porch rail. A wood multi-pane fixed window encloses the southern end of
the porch. The top of the front door has eight-panes of glass with three vertical wood panels below. Unusually massive rafter
tails are visible on the northern portion of the front (west) fagade and on the back (east) of the house. The walls of the house
are clad in wood shingles laid in bands with various widths of reveal to create a decorative effect. The windows are wood

sash multi/1 with decorative hood moldings. The partially glazed back door is located on the southern end of a projection on the
back (east) of the house. A brick chimney is attached to the south elevation and a chimney projects from the center of the
house. The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original
building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 435 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
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this resource was built in 1920. This construction date is supported by city directories, Sanborn maps and physical evidence.

The one-story bungalow was apparently built for Willis H. and Grace D. Watrous in 1820. Watrous, a mechanic, lived there with
his wife Grace until 1922. From 1924 until at least 1972, the house was owned and primarily occupied by Maude L. Williams, a
music teacher with studio space in the Fine Arts Building on Holly Street. During the Depression, the house was occupied by
Henry Sorenson (1930-35). In 1941 and 1948, Mrs. Sarah Williams is also listed as living there. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

443 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202512

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1902

Historic Name: Edwards, David Bartlett and Ida A., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story Free Classical house is located on the upper portion of the lot at 443 14th Street and was
built circa 1902. The lot is located mid-block and the house faces west. The house's main volume consists of a two-story, side-
facing gable clad in asphalt composition shingles. There is a large, hip roofed, wrap-around porch across the front with
classically-inspired columns with pronounced entasis and reeded capitals. The columns are arranged in pairs whenever the
porch rail changes its angle. The solid porch rail, as well as the columns' tapered pedestals, are clad in narrow lap siding. The
same narrow lap siding also covers battered piers that serve as newel posts at the base of the wooden, centered front steps.
Staggered wood shingles cover the outside walls of the stair's solid balustrade and also cover the porch's foundation skirt
between the column pedestals. There are 3/1 wood windows in the porch skirt. Large picture windows under the porch are
topped with leaded glass panels in a muiti/1 configuration. The primary window type, however, is 1/1 wood double-hung.

An octagonal two-story tower comes up through the porch roof on the north comer of the front. The tower's windows are a
combination of 1/1 and leaded/1. The house's primary siding is wood lap. In addition to the shingling on the porch, other siding
types include beadboard used decoratively on the bay window on the north side toward the rear. A hood with diamond
imbrication is over each side's gable window. The hood, essentially the gable's bulging peak, is supported by elaborate scrolled
brackets. The wood muntins of these gable windows are diamond shaped and the vertical trim is molded. The building's
foundation is stone. There are three brick chimneys. One emerges from a one-story volume attached to the south side, another
emerges from the north end. The third one emerges from the rear roof slope. The south and rear chimneys have corbelled tops.
Additional decorative elements include eave returns, large rake boards with molding, frieze boards, corner boards, and window
hood moldings. A photo in the Bellingham Herald 3/30/1907 shows a front roof gable that has been removed and a taller tower.

The plan has slight alterations, while the cladding and windows both appear to have no discernable alterations. Due to the level
of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is one associated building, a garage/studio to the southeast of house. It was constructed post 1950. The garage portion is
entered from the alley. The studio is below and is faced with two pairs of French doors. The structure's siding is V-notch wood
drop. lts roof is clad in composition shingles and takes the form of a front-facing jerkinhead.

Statement of Significance: The house at 443 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This Queen Anne
house is commonly known as the "Padden House," named for one of its well-known residents, pioneer John V. Padden (d.1969),
the "first white boy born in Fairhaven," according to his obituary. The first owner-resident was David Bartlett Edwards,

secretary of the Fairhaven Land and Bellingham Bay Land companies. The "D.B. Edwards Home on Fourteenth Street" is
described in detail in an article in the Bellingham Herald on March 30, 1907. Mr. Edwards, listed alternatively in the city directories
as either D. Bartlett Edwards or David B. Edwards, lived here with his wife, ida A., and their daughter Clara N., as early as 1905
and until his death in 1914 (Bayview Cemetery). After David Edwards’ death, his widow Ida continued to reside in the home,
renting out rooms from 1915-17 to several teachers: Lydia C. Graves, teacher at Franklin School; Mary E. Kirtley, teacher at
Fairhaven Grade School; and Rheba Nickerson, teacher at the State Normal School.

In 1920-22, Charles and Stella Hess lived here. Mr. Hess owned Hess Motor Company. After a series of renters from 1932-39,
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the house was purchased by John V. Padden in 1940. City directories list several other residents in the 1940s, but Padden and
his wife Abbie (d.1960) are both listed as still residing at this address in their Bellingham Herald obituaries. Sometime around
1954 an apartment was added, and renters apparently occupied 443-A. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with
the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

447 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202502

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

Historic Name: Huddart, Charles E., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The west-facing, two-story Free Classical house at 447 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was
built circa 1900. The house is above the street, facing west, on a corner lot. 1t has a rectangular plan with an unknown
foundation. The front facing gable roof is covered with composition shingles. The walls of the house are clad in wood drop
siding with coved imbrication at the attic level of the gables. A polygonal, hip roofed bay window with fixed windows projects
from the front fagade. A two-story, polygonal bay window with a gabled roof is located on the south side of the house. Its first
story windows are fixed with opening transoms. The primary window type of the remaining windows of the house is 1/1 wood
sash adorned with hood moldings. The front entry is within a hipped roof porch on the south elevation supported by Tuscan
columns with entasis. An open deck with a wood rail spans the front fagade, The 1950 Sanborn map suggests that this was
the location of a one-story covered porch, possibly a continuation of the existing small porch on the south, which was removed
and replaced by the deck. The polygonal bay on the front is also absent from the Sanborn map. Its fixed, horizontally oriented
window panes suggest that it dates to circa 1950. The back portion of the house is a one-story projection with a hipped roof.
The walls are clad in drop wood siding on the lower half with coved imbrication on the upper portion. A chimney projects from
the center of the house. The house's lot slopes to the front (west). The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of
integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 447 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
owner and resident (circa 1905-08) of this house was Charles E. Huddart, a bookkeeper for E.K. Wood Lumber Company. The
house was also occupied by Sophia Gippe, a boarder. Mark and Ida M. Timson owned and occupied the house from 1915-21.
The Timsons were both bookkeepers: Mark Timson worked for the Bellingham Canning Company in 1920; Ida Timson worked for
Frye and Company. in 1915 a student at the State Normal School, Georgia F. Allen, rented a room in their house.

From approximately 1922-29, the house was occupied by Charles and Estelle Hess, who previously lived at 443 14th Street.
Hess owned the Hess Motor Company and C.C. Clauson Roofing. The house was vacant for a long period during and after the
Depression years, 1932-42, and again in 1947. In the late 1940s through 1960, the house had several short-term inhabitants.
E.B. Black Jr., an architect with Associated Designers, and wife Betsy B. occupied the house circa 1950. In the 1960s a
succession of professors at the Western Washington State College lived in the house, including William G. Martinez, Irwin L.
Slesnick, William A. Bultmann and Mark L. Nicholas.

A plaque on this house says "Black House, 1890," but Black is.not listed at this or any residential address in the 1890 city
directory. His law practice, Black and Albert, Attorneys, is listed at 13th Street in Whatcom. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

500 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180474

Date of Construction:  c. 1928

Historic Name: Macy, James W. and Elsie A., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1
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Physical Description: The Macy House, located at 500 14th Street in the South Hill neighborhood, was built in the Spanish Eclectic
style circa 1928. It has a complex plan shape, and most of the roof is flat, with a clay tile shed roof over the southeast front
section and a small, pyramidal clay tile area over the south-most portion of the projecting northeast fagade. There are no eaves,
and the walls of the house are covered in salmon-colored stucco. Two sets of three-part leaded glass windows face the street.
South of the entry is a group of three arched windows, the center window flanked by two smaller ones. The trio to the north

has ornamentally-shaped tops, again with the center window larger than the flanking ones. All of these front windows feature
rectangular panes with lead caming. There are replacement picture windows at the rear (west) of the house, all with minimal
molding. A deck has also been added to the back side of the house. There is a tapered, stuccoed chimney on the north side.

The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable aiterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building,
this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is a small outbuilding on the alley. This was reportedly a toolhouse that was moved to the site from Champion Street. The
gabled structure is clad in stucco and has several multi-pane windows and a multi-pane French double door.

Statement of Significance: The house at 500 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1928-29. This construction date is supported by an interview, Sanborn maps and physical evidence.
This distinctive Mediterranean style house was built by James W. Macy, a contractor, and his wife, Elsie A. Macy, an Avon
salesperson. The plans used for this house were originally drawn in 1926 by architect T.F. Doan for a nearly identical house

(the floor plan was flipped) built for the Hoopes family in 1927 at 428 15th Street. The Macys lived in the house together until
James' death in 1954. Elsie Macy continued to live in the house until 1985. Donna Sand, a local historian, is the Macys' daughter
and lived there until 1960. The building in the back of the house was James Macy's toolhouse. He moved the building from
Champion Street and then finished it with a cement floor and stucco cladding (Sand, 11/12/2008). Due to the level of integrity of
the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

501 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201203476

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1931

Historic Name: Dawson, Hobart, House

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 501 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a corner lot. It was built in 1931 (according to the County Assessor) in the Minimal Traditional style. The house
has an irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation with a daylight basement. The one-story building has a side gable roof
clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding. The principal window type is vinyl sash casements.

The house's enclosed entry porch projects from the center of the fagade. It has a front gable roof with a broken pitch on its
north slope. Access to the entry is from the north, via a long flight of stairs. The vestibule area features an arched opening on
its west. Paired vinyl sash casement windows lie to the south of this. The south elevation includes a side-door that is accessed
via a flight of wooden steps and is sheltered by a gabled hood supported by brackets. A large deck with a two-car garage
below has been added to the north elevation, toward the rear. A painted brick chimney that pierces the eave to the west of the
ridge is attached to the south elevation.

Comparing the house's current appearance with an archive photo (Whatcom Museum of History and Art 1987.71.105) shows
that the eaves have been added, that shingle siding was replaced with wood lap and that multi/1 wood sashes were replaced
with vinyl windows. Before the alterations, the house appeared closer to the Craftsman, rather than Minimal Traditional style.
The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have moderate alterations. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 501 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1931. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
occupied from 1931 until 1940 by Hobart Dawson. Dawson worked for Title Insurance at the Whatcom County Abstract
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Company. The next long term owner-occupant was Alden M. Soderman, from 1945-59. On July 3, 1949, a photo of the house
appeared in the Bellingham Herald as part of a paid advertisement by Western Roofing Co. for "pure white asbestos siding" that
had been "applied to this residence at 501 14th St.," thus endirg "the owner's painting problems forever” with "permanent beauty
at low cost." From 1960-69, the owner and occupant was Glenn K. Johnson. Another long-term occupant was Henry C.
Mittleider, a carpenter, who owned the house from 1971-82. In 1984, the house was purchased by Glenn and Mary Murray, the
current owners. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.

506 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180471

Date of Construction:  c. 1927

Historic Name: Oliver, William C. and Frances E., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The Ranch style house at 506 14th Street was built about 1927. The house sits well below street level
facing the west side of the street and the lot slopes down to the west. The cladding is wood shingle and the foundation
concrete. It has a hip roof with compositional shingle. A large vinyl sash picture window with grids is on the southeast end of
the front wall, a door opens from a shallow porch, and a front gable on the north side of the door has a three-sided bay window
with 2/4 on the left and right and 12-pane fixed in the middle. The north side of the house has three double-hung windows, both
upper and lower panes divided into three, on the main floor and a large sliding window in the basement. The south side has two
vinyl paired casement windows.

The rear, or west, side of the house has a hip roofed extension facing west on the southwest of the house and a deck in line

with the west wall completing the rest of the main floor level. A recessed door opens onto the deck at its south end and a sliding
window is centered on the wall to the north. The gabled extension has sliders on the north and south sides, a fixed eight-pane
window on the west. The basement has a garage door on the northwest and a door next to the extension which has three fixed
square windows on the west side and a six-pane window on the north side. There appear to be no alterations to the original

plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due
to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 506 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1927. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The house with a
distinctive multi-paned front bay window was occupied by William C. and Frances E. Oliver from 1929-32. Oliver was a
patternmaker for Schillings-Everts Company, a foundry that made decorative architectural detailing in iron and bronze. From
1937-48 the house was owned and occupied by Clarence B. Harlan, a manufacturing agent. In the early fifties, John K. Clark,
one of the early TV installers, lived in the house (Sand, 11/12/2008). The next long-term owner was Fred Goren, a building
contractor, from 1955-63. At some point, the house was enlarged; a basement and the front window were added (Sand,
11/12/2008). The house appears to have been rented through the rest of the 1960s and much of the 1970s. Due to the ievel of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

507 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202468

Date of Construction: 1908

Historic Name: Sather, Charles A. and Emma, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The west-facing 1.5-story Craftsman house at 507 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built in
1908. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a stone foundation. The hip roof is covered with composition shingles and has
overhanging eaves with rafter tails. Gabled dormers projecting from the roof on the front (west), south side and back (east) of
the house have overhanging eaves and decorative wood eave brackets. Decorative molded belt courses wrap around the walls
of these dormers below the windows. A shed dormer on the north side of the house which was enlarged at an early date has
multi-pane awning windows. The other windows on the north elevation are primarily wood sash multi-panes. A fixed multi-pane
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wood window is located to the south of the front porch on the front fagade. Polygonal bay windows are located on the front
facade and south elevations. A decorative molded belt course at the bottom of the front bay window continues on around the
house. The house's other window types are predominantly wood 1/1 double-hung sash. The walls of the house are clad in
wood shingles with a wood water table and cap. The front entry is located within an inset porch on the northwest corner of the
house. ltis covered with a gambrel roof with overhanging eaves and prominent eave brackets. It is supported by a stone wall
and railing, stone.and wood corner posts, and wood brackets. A chimney is attached to the south elevation. The house's lot
slopes to the front (west). The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original
cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this
resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

The newer two-car garage is behind the house on the southeast corner of the lot. The hip roof is covered with composition
shingles and the walls are clad in wood shingles.

Statement of Significance: The Sather House at 507 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the
South Hill neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1908. Located in
the South Hill neighborhood at 507 14th Street, this Craftsman bungalow was built for Bellingham lawyer Charles A. Sather and
his wife, Emma. A weekly feature in the Bellingham Herald (Bellingham Herald 5/23/1908), proclaimed this house to be a "Typical
California Bungalow [...] Added to List of Fine Residences.” The description of the "costly residence” (built for approximately
$5,000) remarked upon the elaborate "hooded shelter" of the large porch, the wall of Chuckanut sandstone, the beveled glass
copper-framed windows, and the "monster fireplace built of manganese brick." Originally the house had both electric light and
gas fixtures. The west-facing upstairs dormer housed a billiard room. The Sathers occupied the house for less than six years;
they sold the house in 1914. From 1916-18 the house was owned and occupied by Edward J. and May Cleary. Cleary was a

mill owner and former mayor of Bellingham (1912-13). The house was purchased in 1921 by Fred W. Young, foreman for

Bloedel Donovan Lumber Mills. He and his wife, Lena Young, lived there for ten years. The house was then purchased by the
Bowen family, who owned and occupied the house from 1933 to 1979. Two sisters, Harriet M. and Sue A. Bowen, worked for

the Bellingham Herald. Their brother, Charles B. Bowen, was a concert pianist who toured Europe and trained at the Milan
Conservatory. Charles Bowen taught piano and pipe organ; he performed in Bellingham and his students often gave recitals. For
a brief period in the early 1940s, he operated Bowen Studios out of the house. The deep impressions in the living room fioor
bear witness to one of the three grand pianos mentioned in a flyer as "available for ensemble playing” in the house. Due to the
level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

508 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180466

Date of Construction: c. 1928

Historic Name: Hook, Floyd B. and Nancy C., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story minimal Colonial style house at 508 14th Street was built circa 1928 and has been only
slightly altered over time. Itis located in the South Hill neighborhood, mid-block, slightly below street level, and faces east. !t has
1/1 wood double-hung sash windows with decorative shutters. There is a pair of narrow vertical offset windows with three
panes each to the north of the arched front door. The door has a small gabled hood supported by scroll-sawn brackets. There
are minimal eaves, and the side-gabled roof is covered in architectural style composition shingles. A brick chimney pierces the
center of the roof on the rear slope. There is a simplified Palladian window in the attic on the south side of the house. A deck
and skylights have been added to the west (alley) side of the house, and a picture window replaces one of the original 1/1 sash
windows. The lower south portion of the west-facing wall has been bumped out to extend the garage space, and it is covered
with a shed roof. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan or original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations
to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the
historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 508 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1928. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Floyd B. and
Nancy C. Hook are the first known residents of this house (1930-31). Floyd Hook worked for Northwest Mutual Life Insurance of
Milwaukee. From 1932-42 the house was owned by David "Paul" and Jewell "Alice” Gooding, who lived there with their son,
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Don, and daughter, Lila, as well as Mrs. Gooding's widowed mother Alice Cummings. Paul Gooding was a respected journalist
and reporter for the Bellingham Herald. He was the son of Miles Gooding, who lived at 1210 Garden Street and died in 1932
(obituary, Herald, 4/9/1932). Another long-term owner was Glen W. Keith, who owned and occupied the house from 1945-54.

Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic
district.

512 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180461

Date of Construction: 1930

Historic Name: Townley, John W., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story cottage at 512 14th Street was built in 1930. The house sits below street level facing the
west side of the street and the lot slopes down to the west. The compositional shingle jerkinhead roof has no eaves and a
central brick chimney with a brick miter-shaped cowl. The cladding is of large wood shingles, and the foundation is concrete.

The east side of the cottage has a shed dormer near the southeast end with 1/1 vinyl windows. The main floor has a paired 1/1
vinyl sash windows directly beneath the dormer, and an arched multi-pane fixed window next to a gabled front porch near the
north end. The south side has a single 1/1 window on the upper floor and a side door leading onto a shed style open porch. A
slider window is at the west side of the wall. The north side has a 1/1 window on the upper floor and two small fixed windows
staggered downward to the east; and on the main floor a fixed window near the northeast corner and 1/1 window towards the
northwest end. The west side has a full-width shed dormer with two paired 1/1 vinyl windows. A jerkinhead gable addition sits
below the south end of the dormer with a side door opening onto a large deck, and has two fixed picture windows and a double
slider window between them on the west and a combination picture and double slider window on the south. To the north of the
addition the house has a single fixed picture window. A garage sits below the addition and is accessed by a large vertical
opening door on the west and by a door on the north.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be
moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 512 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This house has been in the same family from its
construction in 1930 until today (2008). it was built in 1930 by John W. Townley, born in England and employed by Kulshan
Barbers. John Townley lived in the house his first wife, Elsie M. Townley, until her death. In 1941 he remarried and occupied the
house with his second wife, Daisy M. Townley, until his death in 1965. "Jack" Townley planted a large tree in the back of the
house; when it was finally cut down in 2008, it had 77 rings. Townley was the step-father of one of the current owners,

George A. Thomas. George and Glennis E. Thomas have lived in the house since 1987. This was apparently the first house in
Bellingham to have all copper plumbing, and some of that plumbing still remains today (Thomas, 11/11/2008). Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

515 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202458

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1930

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 515 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1930 (according to the County Assessor) in the Tudor Cottage style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a side gable roof clad in composition shingle.
The primary wall cladding is wood lap siding with stucco accents. The principal window type is various configurations of vinyl
sash.

The fagade includes a secondary front gable at its south end. A slightly projecting, gabled vestibule clad in stucco is located at
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the center of the front. Both of these gables feature ornamental half timbering. All of the eaves are shallow and finished with
pointed bargeboards. The front door is arched and slightly recessed. New sliding glass doors lie to the south of the entry and
provide access to a huge deck with clear Plexiglas railing. The deck also serves as a carport roof. The former garage, located
at the house's basement level, at the south end, has been converted to living space. A gabled dormer with a vinyl slider lies to
the north of the front gable. The openings at the north end of the first floor have been substantially altered by the addition of a
corner window as well as a polygonal bay unit, all with vinyl sashes.

A tapered red brick chimney with buff brick accents is attached to the north elevation. The rear (east) elevation includes a one-
story, hipped bump-out and a shed roofed dormer, both placed at roughly the center of the house. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations
to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 515 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1930. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. its history was not researched.

516 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180456

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1931

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The stuccoed Tudor Cottage at 516 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, has two prominent front
gables, one set back from the other, and one wide gable at the rear which spans the width of the house. The front-most gable
facing 14th flares at its north side, under which is a Tudor arch framing the recessed front door. On the south side of this gable
is another Tudor arch that acts as a gateway to the side yard. The recessed front gable was inserted into the junction of the
main front gable and side (north) gable more recently. The house was built in 1931 (according to the County Assessor). There
are a variety of vinyl window types throughout the house: 1/1, sliding, casement, and picture. There are two small octagonal
louvered vents under the peaks of the front and rear gables. The eaves are minimal, and there are places on both the front and
back where the bargeboards are decoratively shaped. A deck has been added to span nearly the entire width of the back. A
dormer has been added to the south side of the house with small, irregularly placed windows and shaped bargeboards. A brick
chimney emerges from the roof at its approximate center. The house is built on a complex plan, and the foundation is concrete.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. The original cladding appears to be intact, or replaced in kind. There
appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource
would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 516 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1931. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount
of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not
researched.

520 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180451

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1949

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story hip roof Modern house at 520 14th Street was built in 1949 (according to the County
Assessor). The house sits at street level facing east on a corner lot. The main square part of the house has a hip roof with
narrow eaves. To the south is a large one-story wing with a flat roof. The larger eaves of the addition continue over the front
door of the main part of the house to provide a narrow porch. The cladding of the entire house is vinyl siding.
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The square part of the house has 1/1 vinyl windows on three sides: The upper floor has one on the south side and two on the
east and north sides. The lower floor has a large front door and a window on the east side and two on the north side. The flat-
roofed wing has large fixed picture windows on each of the three sides. The west side has a large fixed window flanked by
narrow casement windows in the upper floor, and a fixed square window and French doors opening on to a deck (under
construction) on the main floor. The basement sports a square fixed window, a door under construction, and in the addition, a
large three-paneled window, a center fixed pane flanked by smaller casement windows.

The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original cladding as well as to the original windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing to the
historic district because it was built after 1945.

On the alley is a modern garage built into the slope. It has a gable roof and T1-11 siding. There is a two-car overhead door and a
person door.

Statement of Significance: The house at 520 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1949. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history. The building's history was not researched.

521 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202451

Date of Construction: 1908

Historic Name: Yuill, J. Sterling, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story Craftsman style American Foursquare house at 521 14th Street, in the South Hilt
neighborhood, was built in 1908. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a parged foundation. The hip roof is clad in composition
shingle and has overhanging eaves supported by rafter tails. A hipped wall dormer projects from the roof on each of the four
sides. The back (east) portion of the house is one-story, with glass double doors on the south elevation and picture windows. It
is covered with a hip roof with a decorative roof bracket adjacent to the back entry. The walls of the house are clad in lap siding
with a wood water table and cap. The front porch, which was most likely enclosed at an early date, is covered by a hip roof. It
is accessed from a flight of wood stairs with a wood railing to its south. The railing is newer and replaced a solid railing that is
visible in an undated assessor photo. The multi-pane glass front door is in the south side of the enclosed porch with multi-pane
sidelights. The west side of the enclosed porch has two huge multi-pane fixed windows. The primary window type of the
remaining windows is 1/1 wood sash. A hipped roof bay window wraps around the southwest corner of the house on the first
story. Itis supported by decorative corbels. A brick chimney is attached to the south elevation. The plan appears to have only
slight alterations. There are no discernable alterations to the original cladding or windows. Due to the level of integrity of the
original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

The newer single car garage is located behind the house (east). Its hipped roof is covered in composition shingles and the walls
are clad in vertical siding.

Statement of Significance: The house at 521 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1908 for lumberman J. Sterling
Yuill (Bellingham Herald 5/2/1908). The construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. From 1913-21,
the house was owned and occupied by Bert W. and Annie Groom. Bert "Chip" Groom was a master plumber who co-owned
Adams & Company hardware and plumbing with E.M. Adams and A.A. Carter at 1208 11th Street (the Knights of Pythias building)
in Fairhaven. In 1918 Groom became the sole proprietor of the business (Roth, 109). In 1923 the house was occupied by Victor
H. and Ardelle R. Hoppe, who subsequently became the owners of the house. Victor Hoppe was a teacher at the Bellingham
State Normal School, now Western Washington University. In 1960 the house was still occupied by Ardelle Hoppe. This became
the home of Rev. William Sodt and wife Rita in the late 1960s. Rev. Sodt, staff minister for the Campus Christian Ministry at
Western Washington University, was a long-time peace and community activist. He passed away in 1996. Due to the level of
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integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

600 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180436

Date of Construction:  c. 1939

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The brick, front-gabled house at 600 14th Street has no eaves and a slate roof. It was built in 1939,
according to the Whatcom County Assessor's office. It is 1.5-stories tall, faces east, and is located on a southwest comer lot
that slopes steeply to the west in the South Hill neighborhood. There is a prominent chimney to the immediate north of the slightly
projecting entry. Though the entry technically only has a side-facing shed roof, it is visually tied to the north slope of the main
roof, creating the appearance of a full small gable interrupted by the chimney. The door is topped by a flat arch and fronted by a
brick arch. The primary windows on the front of the house are grouped in threes, with the upper story's set original wood sash
1/1, while the lower south end's set is replacement vinyl. All of the openings in the house's brick walls are topped by flat arches
and have brick sills. On the south side of the house is an unusual small room protruding out from the house, supported by two
posts. It has an arched door that opens onto a precipitous 12-foot drop to the side yard. The back of the house has a tiny porch,
1/1 windows, and a wide transom of four windows over the basement garage door. The house has a poured concrete
foundation with a daylight basement featuring full height 1/1 windows. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan.
There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due
to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 600 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1939. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
owner of this house listed in the city directory is Fred W. Newman. Newman lived in the house circa 1945-55. In 1960 there is
no directory listing for the house. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is
considered contributing to the historic district.

601 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202439

Date of Construction:  c. 1924

Historic Name: Tischer, Wallace A. and Leota L., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 601 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is above the street,
facing west, on a comer lot. It was built in 1924 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The house has a
rectangular plan and stands on a concrete foundation with a daylight basement. The 1.5-story building has a side-facing
jerkinhead roof clad in composition shingle. The primary wall cladding is stucco. The principal window type is multi/1 wood sash.

The house's entry porch projects from the south end of the fagade. It has a front-facing jerkinhead roof and is accessed via

stairs from its north side. A three-part window with a larger center and smaller flanking multi-1 windows lies to the north of the

porch. A stuccoed chimney with brick accents can be found at the south elevation, toward the front (west). A basement-level,

period garage lies to the east of the chimney. It projects slightly and is trimmed with lap siding on its east and west sides. Its

hinged doors each have six-panes of glazing on their upper thirds. A human-scale door lies to the immediate west of the garage.

A projecting back porch with a jerkinhead roof is attached to the north end of the east elevation. There appear to be no

alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to

the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 601 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1924. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first listing in
the city directories for the house were Wallace A. and Leota L. Tischer, from 1927-35. Wallace Tischer was a manager for
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Albers Brothers Milling, and Leota Tischer was a dance teacher. From 1936-50 the house had a number of short-term owners
and renters. The city directory lists the Douglas Fir Plywood Association, with James Pointer as the owner, from 1952-57. Due
to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

605 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202434

Date of Construction: c¢. 1910

Historic Name: Cole, George and Mary, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: O

Physical Description: The west facing one-story Craftsman house at 605 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built
circa 1910. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a concrete foundation. The front facing gable roof is covered with composition
shingles and has decorative eave brackets under the wide overhanging eaves. The back portion of the house has a one-story
addition with a shed roof. The walls of the house are clad in wood shingles. The main entry is accessed by way of steps from
the south leading up to a non-original small deck which leads to an original inset porch on the northwest corner of the house. The
porch is supported by a square column. A slightly arched header beam and a frieze board with decorative hood molding marks
the porch entry. The entry is flanked by a picture window to the south. There are additional picture windows in the back

addition. Multi-pane windows adorn the attic level. The primary window type in the remainder of the house is 1/1 wood sash
topped with simple hood molding as well as a slight flaring of the exterior wall. A front gabled square bay window wraps around
the southwest corner of the house and is supported by decorative corbels. There appear to be no alterations to the original

plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows.
Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 605 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor’s office,
this resource was built in 1910. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest
residents of the house remain unknown; however, in 1915 George H. Cole, president of the Bellingham Truck Company, is listed
as the householder in the Bellingham city directory, along with wife Mary. According to the Bellingham block books, the property
changed hands several times during the 1920s, with none of the property owners living at the house until Axel G. Bulow bought
the property in circa 1928. Axel and Marjorie Bulow are listed at the address in city directories between circa 1931 and circa
1940. Mr. Bulow was manager at the International Cross Arm Company. Joseph W. Bulow, a foreman at the same company,
also resided at the house in 1931. George K. Skinners occupied the house circa 1945. In 1950 Howard L. Scott and wife Anne
are listed at the address. Mr. Scott was the president of Deming & Gould Company and the vice-president at the Bellingham
Warehouse Company and the Pacific American Fisheries, Inc. Donald F. Christenson lived in the house circa 1955-60. Due to the
level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

609 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202431

Date of Construction: 1907

Historic Name: McMillan, Duncan N. and Elizabeth, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story American Foursquare with Craftsman influences at 609 14th Street is mid-block, above the
street, facing west. It was builtin 1907. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a parged foundation. Exterior cladding materials
include asphalt composition shingles on the roof and narrow lap siding on the walls. The front of the house has a wide,
truncated hip roof porch that is topped by a balcony with railing that is accessed from wood and glass double doors on the
second floor. The porch roof is supported by paneled box columns. A multi-pane fixed window protects the south end of the
porch from the elements. A brick chimney is attached to the south side and pierces the roof in front of the hipped wall dormer.
There are four dormers, one on each side of the house. The front dormer contains the double doors for accessing the balcony.
The other three dormers contain windows. There are also casement windows on the second floor to each side of the dormers.
The primary window type is 1/1 wood double-hung. A polygonal bay is attached toward the rear (east) of the first floor of the
south elevation. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discemable alteration to the original cladding. There
appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.
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At the rear of the property is a free-standing carport topped by a deck. There is portable greenhouse on the deck.

Statement of Significance: The house at 609 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This American Foursquare was built for Durican N. and
Elizabeth McMillan in 1907 (Bellingham Herald 8/3/1907). It was described as "one of the finest of the new houses in the city" and
costing approximately $4,500. Duncan was superintendent of fish traps for Pacific American Fisheries, which was

headquartered in South Bellingham and was the largest salmon canning company in the world at the time. Apparently his
extended family occupied the house with him; directory listings include George N. and Lillian McMillan, Archibald F. McMillan, and
Joseph B. McMillan, an engineer. In 1920-21 the ownership passed to "Archie" McMillan. From 1922-60 the house was owned

by Frank and Mabel B. Wheaton. Frank A. Wheaton was a physician with offices in the American National Bank Building. Due to
the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

610 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180431

Date of Construction: 1970

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.
Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1970 (according to the Whatcom County

616 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180421

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1898

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story house at 616 14th Street was built circa 1898 in a Vernacular style. Major additions in the
1970s and 1980s, according to the current owner, changed the shape from rectangular, as seen on the 1963 Sanborn map, to an
L-shape. The original house is a front gable, oriented east-west perpendicular to the road. It now sits on the south side of the
house.

The 1970s addition is a side gable built on the northeast side of the original house. There is a triangular eyebrow dormer on the
west side of the addition. A sliding door provides access to a wooden deck also on the west side of the main floor. The 1980s
addition extended the original house to the west by about 1/3 of its original length. The extent of the addition is refiected in paint
differences currently visible from the alley. It has triangular fixed glass windows in the top of the gable, and two sets of sliding
glass windows below. A picture window and a small awning window are on the west side of the main floor.

The foundation is concrete block on the additions and not visible beneath the original house. The roofing is shakes, on all parts.
The owner states the original cladding was tongue-and-groove cedar and is preserved in parts of the old house, but the current
cladding is painted cedar lap siding. The east and north facing gables have vertical V-notch cladding. The eaves are narrow,
with unadormned bargeboards and cornice molding. Wood-clad, aluminum sliding windows are throughout the house and the
doors are also recent. A French bay window without trim stands to the south of the front door. The windows similarly butt
directly against the cladding. The basement has a door on the west side, though no windows were visible lighting the basement.
The plan alterations are extensive, the bay French doors are recent, and the windows are probably original in the additions. The
house suffered considerable internal fire damage in 2007 and is in process of remodeling. The owner also intends to raise the
entire structure about five feet.

There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan, cladding and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original
building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 616 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
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neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1898. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount
of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

617 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202423

Date of Construction: 1906

Historic Name: Adams, Eugene M. and Agnes M., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The west facing 2.5-story Dutch Colonial house at 617 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built
in 1906. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a concrete foundation. The front-facing gambrel roof is covered with wood

shingles. There are two inset gabled dormers projecting from the roof on the north and south sides of the house. The gables
portion of the dormer projects over the windows. The walls of the house are clad in wood shingles. The original front entry

porch has been enclosed with picture windows as well as the newer front door. It is topped by a second story veranda

accessed by a glass paneled door. A polygonal bay window wraps around the southwest corner of the house on the first

story. The primary window type is 8/1 wood sash, many covered with hood moldings. A Palladian window topped with a
pronounced wood keystone adorns the attic level of the front (west) elevation. A chimney projects from the center of the house.
The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discemable alteration to the original cladding or windows. Due to
the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A newer, two-story, two-car garage is located on the southeast corner of the lot. The gambrel roof is covered with composition
shingles. ltis clad in wood shingles.

Statement of Significance: The house at 617 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. The house was built in 1906 (Bellingham Herald
10/6/1906) for Eugene M. Adams, co-owner of Adams & Co. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical
evidence. From 1907-17 the house was owned and occupied by Eugene M. and Agnes M. Adams. Mr. Adams was a merchant
with his own company (Adams & Co.) and served as a member of the Bellingham City Council (Bellingham Herald, 12/15/1928).
A. Maria McLew, Agnes Adams' mother, passed away at the house in 1908 at age 80 (The Morning Reveille, 4/17/1908). From
1920 through 1960 the house was owned and occupied by Mark and Ida Timson. Mark Timson was a secretary for Bellingham
Canning, and lda Timson was a bookkeeper for Brisbin, Smith, and Livesey. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled
with the building'’s history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

618 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180416

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1906

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0  Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The Free Classical house at 618 14th Street is approached from the street by a wooden bridge with painted
wood balustrades. It was built in 1906, according to the Whatcom County Assessor’s office. [t faces east and is located mid-
block in the South Hill neighborhood, on a lot that steeply slopes down to the west. The paneled front door is surrounded by wide
casing and is topped by a classical entablature. The front-gable roof has a wide rake board, rake molding, cornice molding, and
eave retumns. The sides of the house are edged by corner boards. There is a Palladian window at the top of the front gable, a
large round window at the top of the rear gable, and a matched set of three small gable dormers on both the north and south
sides of the roof. The primary windows are 1/1 single-hung vinyl sashes with grids. The house is clad in round-edge drop

siding, and the foundation is concrete. Though the house is 1.5-stories in height relative to the street, the lot's steep slope adds a
full-height basement level, for effective 2.5-stories of livable space. The rear of the house has a fully-enclosed back porch (at

the basement level) topped by a deck which spans the width of the house. There are two pairs of French doors opening onto

the deck. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There
appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would
be considered contributing to the historic district.
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There is a large, gabled, 1.5-story outbuilding facing the alley which has two garage doors and a pair of 1/1 vinyl sash windows.

Statement of Significance: The house at 618 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1906. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Fred A. and Daisy
L. Lehman owned and occupied this house in 1915. Fred Lehman was a meat cutter with Frye and Company. The next known
owner-occupant was Sandford S. (or Samuel S.) Schuit, from 1931-40. From 1950-60 the house had a variety of residents and
was apparently rented for much of the time. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this
resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

620 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180414

Date of Construction: c. 1927

Historic Name: Lee, Palmer C. and Mabel G., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The Tudor style house at 620 14th Street was built circa 1927 and is built on a west facing slope on a
corner lot. It is a two-story side gable house with a distinctive chimney on the south. On the down slope, or west side of the
house, the basement is flush with the surface and houses two garages.

A large, half-timbered gable protrudes from the front, east side, and frames the front door and two windows on the second floor,
one fixed and the other double hung. The front door is recessed behind an arched opening in the gable and is flanked by small
six-paned fixed windows. A smaller flush dormer to the left, south, frames a three-paned casement window also on the upper
floor. The south side of the house has two awning windows on the upper floor and two fixed picture windows on the lower

floor. The rare asbestos shingle roof has no eaves and simple bargeboards. The false half-timber siding with stucco nogging is
restricted to the upper gables. The cladding of the remainder of the house is stucco. The foundation is parged.

On the north side of the house is a six-pane window in the half-timbered gable, and a double casement window on the upper
floor. The half timber continues around to the front of the house, with a horizontal beam about a foot down from the gutter and
vertical beams spaced about two feet apart. The rear of the house has a shed dormer on the southwest end, with two narrow
casement windows; a large gabled projecting dormer in the center is half timbered on the upper part, with a three-paned
casement window centered on its peak; and a smaller gabled flush dormer to the right, also with a three-paned casement
window. The main floor has two sets of French doors with single panes opening onto a deck; the southerly door is flanked by
two casement windows. East of the gable, the wall has a picture window with flanking casement windows separated by
mullions. The basement has two garage doors.

There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to
be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

A detached garage opens on to the alley. It is a two-car garage with an overhead door and a low arched roof.

Statement of Significance: The house at 620 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1927. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
owners of this house were Palmer C. and Mabel G. Lee. Palmer Lee was the vice president of Mount Baker Savings and Loan
Company in 1931. He was the son of Peter Lee, who founded Lee Grocery in 1907. In the early 1930s Mabel Lee is listed as
working in the Lee Grocery Company. The grocery was apparently still in business when Peter Lee died in 1937 (obituary,
Herald, 6/1/1937). Mrs. Mabel Lee was still living in the house in 1970. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with
the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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621 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202416

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1900

Historic Name: Easton, John L., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The Free Classical house, built circa 1900, sits on a corner lot at 621 14th Street facing west. The 1.5-
story front gable house has a concrete foundation. A brick chimney emerges from the center of the roof to the south of the

ridge. A porch stretches across the front of the house. Its hipped roof is supported by classically-inspired columns. The
polygonal south end of the porch has two eight-pane wood fixed windows over wood paneling inserted between its columns,

for winter protection. The porch has a shingle skirt. Centered above the porch is a set of three windows, with a tall, fixed

center window flanked by shorter, operable openings. All of these are vinyl replacements with faux grids that resemble 9/1
windows. The tripartite opening is trimmed with wide boards and includes hood moldings. The house's other windows are
primarily 1/1 vinyl single-hung sashes. Fishscale shingles decorate the end gables and the walis of the south side’s shed

dormer. The first floor is clad with wood lap siding. There is bay window on the south, toward the rear. The roofs are clad in
composition shingle. At the back, a hyphen originally led to an outhouse to the northeast of the main house, according to the 1913
Sanbom map. The outhouse, which has an east-west oriented gable, was expanded with a large garage addition to the south,
with a north-south oriented gable. The subsumed hyphen now gives access to a two car garage with a room above it. The
former outhouse and garage also have wood lap siding. A one-story room was added to the north side of the house, at the

front, circa 1955. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the originai cladding.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 621 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is approximate, but is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence.
In 1905 this house was owned by John L. Easton, an insurance agent with an office at 1115 11th Street. An east-west cross
street to 14th may have been named after him. The house was subsequently rented: in 1915 Ethel Gilbert, a student at the State
Normal School, is listed in the city directory as the occupant and renter. Irvin (or Irving or Irvine) and W. Anna Adair owned and
occupied the house circa 1916-33. Adair was the president of Northwestern National Bank in 1819-20. A son, F. Egan Adair,
and his wife Kathleen, also lived in the house. Egan Adair also worked at Northwestern National Bank as a bookkeeper in 1919-
20. The house was vacant during the 1930s and 40s. From 1945-55 it passed through several owners. In 1960 it was
purchased by the Tomich family, who still own the house today. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

700 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180397

Date of Construction:  c. 1900

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story Vernacular-style house at 700 14th Street was built circa 1900 on a rectangular plan. The
house has a concrete foundation and channel rustic drop siding. It has a hipped, flared roof, and four symmetricaily placed
dormers, one on each side of the house. The dormers are also flared hips. The house has wide eaves with visible rafter tails.
The front porch spans the full width of the house and is supported by square paneled posts. Most of the wood sash windows
on the south, east, and north sides of the house are original, have wide frames and decorative hoods. Each of the four dormers
has a pair of 1/1 wood sash windows. There is a fixed window on the north side of the house which is surrounded by 14
smaller panes. The rear (west) side of the house has a replacement picture window and sliding glass doors which lead onto
full-width deck supported by four wood posts. Under the deck is a wood-panel garage door for the basement garage. The plan
appears to have only slight aiterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There is no discernable
alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 700 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
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this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
owners listed in the city directory are Harry F. and Muriel J. Vincent; they lived in the house from 1913-19. Harry Vincent was a
sales manager at E.K. Wood Lumber Company. From 1922-28 the residents were Augustus and Jessie Hawkins. Augustus
Hawkins was an accountant and in 1928 was a bookkeeper for Pacific American Fisheries. From 1929-31 the house was

owned and occupied by Bernard C. and Emma E. DeLong. Thomas R. and Delia B. Earles lived in the house from 1935-39; Mrs.
Delia Earles is listed as the sole resident in 1940-41. In the 1940s and 50s there were many short-term residents, including two
priests from 1950-55. In 1956 the house was purchased by its current owner, Mitchell A. Kink. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

703 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201205394

Date of Construction: 1890

Historic Name: Clark, A.H., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 2.5-story house at 703 14th Street was originally built in 1890 in the Queen Anne style. A 1919
remodel changed it to Tudor, its present style. It has an irregular plan and rests on a brick foundation. The primary side gable
roof is covered with composition shingles and the walls of the house are clad in wood lap siding on the first story with nogging
and half-timbering on the upper stories. A gabled dormer projects from the roof on the front (west) fagade of the house with a
rectangular bay window projecting from the second story below the dormer. The bay window is covered by a pent roof. The
primary window type on the first story is 1/1 wood sash with some multi/1 leaded glass windows on the upper stories. At the
chamfered corners of the first and second stories of the house are inset 1/1 wood sash windows with the structure of the

house serving as a hood above the second story windows. The top and bottom of the windows on the upper stories are
connected by a decorative belt. The front entry is located within a hipped roof porch wrapping around the building's front (west)
fagade and north and east side of a north/south wing which extends to the rear. The porch roof is supported by square wood
columns with a solid wood railing between the columns. The south end of the porch is enclosed with a fixed wood multi-pane
window. The back of the house is a one-story, hip roofed projection. Large brick chimneys are located on the north and south
elevations and in the center of the house. An original stone retaining wall is located at the front of the lot. There appear to be no
alterations to the original plan or cladding since the early Tudor remodel. There appear to be slight alterations to the original
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

The original, Tudor style garage is located east of the alley immediately behind (east) the house. The structure is individually
addressed at 710 15th Street and is written up in its own record. It is a three car, side gable (with an east-west ridge) garage
covered in composition shingles. The walls are clad in wood lap siding on the lower half, with nogging and haif-timbering on the
upper half. The entry of the garage is on the north side. The doors are wood sliders with 12-pane windows at the top. The
other windows of the garage are 15/1 double-hung wood sashes.

Statement of Significance: The house at 703 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1890. The Fairhaven Herald reported that "Mr. A.H. Clark is having an elegant residence built at
Fourteenth and Washington streets" [Washington was the former name of Easton Avenue] (Fairhaven Herald 12/29/1890). The
Queen Anne house was designed by the architectural firm of Longstaff & Black (Koert & Biery, 111), who were the architects

for the Fairhaven Hotel and Gamwell House. The "A.H. Clark House" is featured in Fairhaven lllustrated, a promotional booklet
from 1890, and in the Herald by a drawing that shows the house having a curiously different tower on its NW corner from how it
would end up being built. Though the rest of the design appears the same, the change to the tower makes sense if one
considers the climate. In its formative design, the house boasted a tower with baicony open on three sides and topped by a
spire. This was substituted with a tower that had an enclosed viewing room capped by a bell-shaped roof.

The large corner house actually has lived two lives. First as the imposing Queen Anne with a third-story bell-shaped tower and,
second, as a Tudor with false timber and nogging. Only the Chuckanut stone retaining wall in front remains unchanged from the
first incarnation of the facade, though the elaborate woodworking of the interior is still original. The house was built in the early
1890s for A.H. Clark, a banker from Dallas, TX, and close associate of James F. Wardner, who arrived in Fairhaven to become
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second vice-president of the Fairhaven National Bank (Fairhaven Herald 12/29/1890). He was also one of Fairhaven's early
mayors. The house was subsequently owned for many years by Frank and Anna Wood. Frank Wood was the son of Edwin
Kleber Wood, the owner of Fairhaven's E.K. Wood Lumber Mill, where Frank was first a manager and later president. The
ownership of the Queen Anne house passed to the Woods in 1900, Clark having left Fairhaven during the economic depression
that characterized the later 1890s. The Woods had the house remodeled into the Tudor style in 1919 by architect T.F. Doan. In
1938 after Frank Wood's death, the ownership of the house passed to Wood's youngest daughter, Marian Susan, and her
husband Charles L. Sefrit. The Sefrits lived in the house until 1969 (Griffin, 151). Due to the level of integrity of the building,
coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

706 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180394

Date of Construction:  c. 1955

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The ranch style house at 706 14th Street was built around 1955 and the lot slopes west with the main floor
being on street level. The dominant feature from 14th Street is the garage that occupies aimost the entire width of the house.
Another small house appears on the 1913-50 Sanborns at the rear of the lot but does not appear to be part of this house. The
low hip roof is of composition shingle with broad eaves. The cladding on the upper floor is of painted wood shingle, with stucco
on the floor below. The front entry is via a deck that runs along the south side of the house. The door to the garage and three
fixed windows are on the wall parallel to the recently added deck. The side wall of the house continues beyond the deck and

has a large fixed picture window in its center. The north side of the house has three metal sliding windows. The west side of

the house has a sliding glass door opening onto a two-tier deck and a small fixed window to its side and symmetrical to the door.
The floor below has a stucco finish and has three slider windows. The foundation is painted concrete with a single door

access to a basement or storage area. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the
original cladding. There is no discernable alteration to the original windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing
to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The house at 706 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1955. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. No city directory listings can be found until the mid-
1970s. The house was owned and occupied by Arthur H. and Helen Smith from 1975-85. In 1989 Helen Smith is listed as the
owner, and she lived in the house, apparently a widow, until 1992. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the
building’s history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

710 14TH ST

Parcet Code: 370201180389

Date of Construction:  c. 1905

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The 1.5-story Colonial Revival house at 710 14th Street is set far back from the street and approached
through a wisteria-draped arbor and down a curved concrete path. It was built in 1905, according to the Whatcom County
Assessor's office. Its most prominent feature is a multi-pane oriel window on the ground floor with a copper hood. There is a
small gabled hood over the front door supported by brackets. The roof is front gabled with no eaves, small fascia boards and
eave returns, and is covered in composition shingles. There are corner boards at the corners of the lap sided walls. The
chimney is on the south side of the house and is unusually clad in painted plywood. There are also small pop-outs on both the
north and south sides of the house with pent roofs. A deck has been added to the west (alley) side of the house, partially
covered by a shallow-pitch roof. Wood stairs lead from the deck to the driveway. A row of windows (two of them casement)
spans most of the upper floor of the house at the back. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level
of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

On the alley is a single-car garage with plywood doors to the west, a human-sized door on the north side, and a fixed window
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on the east. The plywood roof is slightly arched.

Statement of Significance: The house at 710 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1905. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first residents
listed in the city directory for this address are Edward J. and Ruby Oulette in 1915. Edward Oulette was a filer for Bloedel
Donovan Lumber Mill in 1915. The Oulettes owned the house and rented out a room to Sarah Lampman, widow of Sam
Lampman, in 1915. The Oulettes apparently only lived in the house from 1915-18. There are no city directory listings for the
house during the Depression years; in 1938 it is listed as vacant. In 1940 Mrs. Wilhelmina Malmquist apparently owned the house.
The longest residents were Emest W. and Bernice H. Hansen, from 1942-71. Ernest Hansen was a longshoreman. Due to the
level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

712 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180383

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1931

Historic Name: Rothweiler, G. Edward and Elsa, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 1.5-story minimal traditional house at 712 14th Street was built circa 1931. It was built on a west
facing slope with the east facing main floor being on street level. At the rear is a lower floor. The roof is a jerkinhead clad in
composition shingle. A large transverse gable juts out from the northeast part of the house, also with a jerkinhead end. The
eaves have prominent eave returns and the soffits are fiat sheets behind the simple rake molding and rake board. A large brick
chimney is a pronounced feature of the south wall; a second chimney rises from the contact of the cross gable with the main
roof. The front (east) side of the house has a hipped dormer to the south of the cross gable with aluminum windows. A similar
window is near the top of the cross gable. There are two picture windows on the main floor, one in the cross gable. All
windows are surrounded by prominent flat wood molding. A prominent arched porch sits on the south corner of the cross gable,
with the front door on the west wall and narrow window along the south facing wall. A frieze lies beneath the eaves and the
cladding is lap.

The upper floor on the north and south sides have 1/1 sash windows; the lower floor has a 1/1 window on the north side and
none on the south. A wood belt course separates the main floor from the one below grade on the sides and on the west side.
The west side of the house has a small gabled dormer with a 1/1 window. The main floor has a sliding glass door on the south
end opening on to a deck that extends only along half of the wall. Two 1/1 windows are in the middle and northwest end of the
floor. The basement has a door in the middle, a garage on the south end and a window on the left opening onto to a covered
porch.

Statement of Significance: The house at 712 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1931. This construction
date is supported by Sanborn maps, physical evidence, and city directories. According to city directories, G. Edward Rothweiler
owned this house from around 1931 until at least 1940. The 1910 Census shows that Rothweiler had a wife, Elsa. A second
long-term owner occupant was Fern D. Wilson, who occupied the house circa 1945-60. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

715 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201201383

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1902

Historic Name: Burke, George and Cora, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 715 14th Street is in the Free Classical style and was built circa 1902-03. It is located mid
block, above the street, facing west. The hip roof has three hipped dormers, one each on the south, west, and north sides, and

is clad in composition shingles. The house is clad in wood lap siding. Its foundation is stone. There are a wide variety of wood
sash windows including: Craftsman style 6/1 in the basement; small, even paned 6/1 sashes in the dormers; 1/1 at the chamfered
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corners of the building's bays; and fancy multi/1 on the main fagade windows. The enclosed front porch is accessed from
centered concrete steps that have a solid stone rail as well as a supplemental wrought iron railing. The porch entry is a newer
wood French door that is partially sheltered by a classical pediment with fishscale shingles in the tympanum. The truncated hip
porch roof is supported by paired, classically-inspired columns that rest on the solid, shingle-clad porch rail. The openings
between the columns are filled with large, wood sash, fixed multi-pane windows. According to Sanborn maps, this porch
enclosure dates to an early period on the south half of the porch, with the north half enclosed in a matching manner circa 1950.
The porch is topped by a balcony with a wood balustrade. The north and south extents of the balcony are curtailed by full-height
polygonal bays that are hidden by the front porch on the first floor. On the south's first story, toward the front, is a large,
rectangular bay. It appears to have been sympathetically added to the house, circa 1950. Above it, on the second story, is an
oval window with diamond panes encircled with a double arched frame with voussoirs. Behind the bay is the brick chimney
stack which passes in front of the south dormer. The north elevation includes a similarly large bay that also appears to date to
circa 1950. A large addition that converted the footprint from a nominal L to a rectangle extends to the rear (east) and is not
visible from the front. This volume includes a second tall brick chimney. The plan, cladding and windows all appear to have no
discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the
historic district.

An associated structure is the fire proof double garage buiit into the slope at sidewalk level. It is concrete, finished in stucco and
the front has a crenellated cornice. The wooden doors have six-pane wood windows in each vertical panel. There is a stone
retaining wall, topped by a cast stone cap, at the sidewalk.

Statement of Significance: The house at 715 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. The house was built for George and Cora Burke in 1902-
03. The construction date is also supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Mrs. Burke, nee Cora Lee, was the
daughter of architect Alfred Lee, locally known for designing the New Whatcom City Hall in 1892 (now Whatcom Museum), the
Victor and Effie "Roeder Home" on Sunset Drive in 1909-10 (now owned for public use by Whatcom County), as well as other
prominent Bellingham buildings both still standing and not. This leads Jeff Jewell, local historian, to speculate that the architect for
715 14th Street was none other than Alfred Lee, not only because it was to be his daughter's home, but because it bears a

strong resemblance to other Lee-designed houses, most notably the Axtell House at 413 Maple St., also built in 1902, as well as
similarities to the Bloedel House at 1020 N Garden and the Montague House at 1030 N Garden.

The house was owned by George B. Burke, a cashier for Henry, Andrews and Company. Mr. Burke was among a large party of
bankers, and their extended families, that relocated from Terra Alta, VA, to start the Bank of Whatcom. A domestic, Elsie
Hovander, also lived in the house at the time. The Burkes resided here through 1906, then sold the house to Archie B. Martin,
secretary-treasurer of Puget Sound Sawmills & Timber Co. by 1907. When the house is featured as No. 44 in the Herald's
"Bellingham Beautiful Home Series" it is described as the "Residence of Mr. and Mrs. A.B. Martin" (Bellingham Herald 8/3/1907).
Apparently, Mr. Martin's work often called him away to Vancouver, B.C., and eventually the Martins would relocate there. In the
last week of December 1910 (Bellingham Herald 1/1/1911) the ownership passed to the house's most notable residents, Robert
A. and Mary Welsh, who had been living in the house, apparently with the Martins, since some point in 1907. Born in England,
Welsh was the founder and president of Bellingham Canning Company (Roth, 385-86). The firm's cannery was located on the
Fairhaven waterfront adjacent, to the west, of the Pacific American Fisheries complex. The ownership of the house passed to
Mrs. Marie Hendricks in 1939 and to Matthew Mallahan in 1940. The house was still owned and occupied by the Mallahan family
in 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to
the historic district.

716 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180378

Date of Construction: c¢. 1925

Historic Name: Boal, William Cody and Elva, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The small Arts & Crafts house at 716 14th Street is clad in stucco. It was built circa 1925. It has a side-
gabled jerkinhead roof with eave returns. The entrance is symmetrically placed, with a small gable porch with eave returns over
the arched entryway. Windows are 9/1 paired wood sash and are placed on either side of the front door, underneath which are
flower box holders supported by scroll cut brackets. The chimney left of center of the top of the roof is boxed in plywood.
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There is a small addition on the south side of the house which is clad in lap siding. The back of the house appears to be in
transition, as the original basement garage door is being framed in, and the back door has a small temporary-looking corrugated
metal shed roof over it supported by narrow wood posts. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. The cladding appears
to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the
original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 716 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa 1925. This construction
date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. This house was the home of W. Cody Boal and family
between circa 1931 and circa 1955. Mr. Boal was a deputy sheriff in 1931, and later worked as a salesman. It appears the

Boals may have rented the house out for a time, because in 1940 Bruce F. and Bess E. Boyker are listed at the house. Mr.

Boyker was the assistant treasurer for Bloedel Donovan Lumber Mills. In 1945 and 1950 William Cody Boal is again listed as the
householder with wife Elva. In 1955 Horton J. Boal is listed as the householder. In 1960 William A. Boyer is listed at the address.
Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic
district.

723 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201201373

Date of Construction:  c. 1902

Historic Name: Cowgill, Edgar L. and Lillie, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 2.5-story American Foursquare house at 723 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was buiit
circa 1902. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a concrete foundation. The hip roof is covered with composition shingles and
has boxed eaves. A hipped dormer projects from the roof on each of the four sides. The walls of the house are clad in lap
siding. The front (west) of the house is one-story, with a hipped roof and three picture windows, two fixed and one with two
sliders. This is most likely an enclosed porch. The other window types are wood sash 1/1 with the tops of the second story
windows connected by a decorative frieze. The entry is located on the south elevation in a small one-story projection covered
with a hip roof. A small one-story projection on the north elevation is covered with a hip roof. Chimneys project from the
northwest corner of the house as well as the back. A circa 1960 garage with a flat or nearly flat roof is attached to the house.
Because of the slope of the lot, it is nearly two-stories in height at its attachment to the house, and one-story at the alley. It is clad
in lap siding with a wood overhead door on the east. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable
alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the
original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 723 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was buiit in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was
first owned and occupied by Edgar L. and Lillie Cowgill. Lillie Cowgill, née Wasmer, was sister to Bertha Wasmer, wife of
Fairhaven's notorious "Dirty" Dan Harris (Sand, 11/12/08). In 1905 Cowgill is listed in the city directory as vice-president of
Homan Lumber Company. In 1917 Cowgill is listed as in the lumber business with an office in the Exchange Building (now the
YMCA, 2008); and in 1920 he was a sales manager at the Samish Bay Logging Company. He is listed in the directory as owning
the house from 1905-15 and 1917-23. George N. and Lillian McMillan are listed as owners and residents in 1916. Another lumber
merchant, Warren B. Wood, assistant manager of E.K. Wood Lumber Company, lived there with his wife Pearl from 1925-27. Yet
a third lumberman, John McMahon, general superintendent of Bloedel Donovan Lumber Mill, lived there from 1928-38 after the
death of his wife Lydia, née Green, in 1927 (Bellingham Herald obituary, 1927). In 1939 the ownership passed to Charles V.
Farrell, and he lived there until 1956, when ownership apparently passed to his widow, Sarah F. Farrell. Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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724 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201179373

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1928

Historic Name: Williams, Fred and Myrtle, House
District Contribution: ~ Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The 1.5-story stucco clad cottage style house at 724 14th Street was built about 1928. The house is on a
comer lot, sits at street level facing the west side of the street and the lot slopes down to the west. The main roof is side gable
with narrow eaves, with a gabled enclosed front porch, a shed dormer, and front gable, slightly lower than the side gable, with a
cat-slide roof on the northeast corner that dominates the front of the house. A prominent chimney climbs to the ridge top on the
south side of the house. The front entry is flush with the south side of the house and has a ten-pane glass door with narrow
five-pane sidelights. The south side of the porch has a nine-pane wood framed fixed window. The shed dormer has paired
nine-pane casement windows; the large gable has paired and mullioned fifteen-pane casement windows in the upper part, an
arched nine-pane fixed window to the north of the front porch, and a large six-pane window below the upper window. The
south side of the house has two 1/1 windows in the upper story and two square fixed windows symmetrically placed beside the
chimney. The north side of the house has two nested gables. The main wall has paired 1/1 windows on the upper floor and
large 1/1 windows near the northeast corner. The paired gables act like a bay and have large windows on the north side. The
rear of the house has a gable in the center with its west wall continuous with the main west wall and with a small 1/1 window
near the top, and a gable dormer on either side, each with paired casement windows. The main floor has two French doors
opening onto a large deck (currently under construction) and a small garden window. The basement has two multi-pane doors,
two sliding windows and a French door on the southwest. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is no
discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of
integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

A garage with an elaborate mini-house on top is currently under construction on the northwest corner of the lot.

Statement of Significance: The house at 724 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1928. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps, physical evidence, and city directories.
This house was first occupied by Fred and Myrtle Williams. Fred Williams was a salesman for Morse Hardware. The Williams
lived in the house from 1928-45. In the late-40s and 50s, the house passed through several owners and residents. The second
long-term owner was George T. Swan, who lived there from 1957-72. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with
the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

800 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180358

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1925

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story, American Foursquare, stucco-clad house at 800 14th Street was built circa 1925 with
Prairie style elements. It presents a symmetrical face to the street, and has a shallow hip roof with broad eaves and exposed
scroll-cut rafters. The protruding front porch has an extremely shallow hip roof and arched entries on three sides. The front

door has three small offset beveled glass windows at eye level. The vinyl sash windows on the upper story nestle close under
the narrow frieze board. There is a broad brick chimney running up the north side of the house. A one-story room extends out
from the south side of the house, with a side door opening onto steps leading down into the yard. This room also has a shallow
hip roof and it protrudes slightly off of the back of the house. A door at the rear of the main floor of the house leads onto a
wooden deck. There appear to be only slight alterations to the original plan. The cladding appears to be intact, or a replacement
in kind. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 800 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1925. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount
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of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. its history was not researched.

801 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201201359

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1926

Historic Name: Meyer, Frank E. and Helen, House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This Craftsman house at 801 14th Street, sits above the street on a comer lot facing west. it was
constructed circa 1926 and has a rectangular footprint with a side gable roof. The siding is wood shingle with a wide and
narrow alternating exposure. The windows are wood sash 8/8 and 6/6. The house sits on a concrete foundation and has a
composition shingle roof. The front and back doors are centered. On the north side is a bay window with a shed roof. A brick
chimney protrudes through the roof near the ridge. An undated archive photo from the Whatcom Museum of History and Art
(1982.71.132 and 1982.71.627) shows that the entry had an eyebrow hood over the door which also had sidelights. The plan,
cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this
resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is a detached period garage to the southeast of the house. It is clad with a combination of wood shingles and drop siding.
Its roof is slightly arched and clad in composition shingles. The garage door, located on the east side, slides on an overhead
track and consists of beadboard with cross bracing.

Statement of Significance: The house at 801 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1926. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest
residents of this one-story house were Frank E. and Helen Meyer in 1927. Meyer was a treasurer for the Western Woodworking
Company. The Meyers lived in the house together until 1968; at that time Frank apparently died and the ownership of the house
passed to Helen, who lived there until 1984. In 1985, the house was purchased by the current (2008) owner. Due to the level of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

805 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201200354

Date of Construction:  c. 1928

Historic Name: Pilling, Abe A., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story Dutch Colonial house at 805 14th Street was built circa 1928. It has a rectangular plan and
sits on a concrete foundation. The front-facing gambrel roof is covered with composition shingles with over-sailing on the north
and south sides of the house. The walls are clad in lap siding. One entry is located off of a deck that spans the width of the
front (west) facade. An undated assessor photo indicates that the deck has been rebuilt with a plainer railing and a lattice
foundation skirt. The deck's French doors are glass paneled and flanked by large multi/1 windows. Gabled well dormers are on
the north and south elevations. Below the dormer on the south elevation is a formal entry covered with a gabled hood in addition
to the over-sailing. The primary window type is wood sash multi/1. There are some vinyl replacement windows. An early one-
story addition is located on the back (east) side of the house with a hip roof covered with composition shingles. The plan
appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to
the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 805 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1928. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
owner of this house was Abe A. Pilling. Pilling lived in the house circa 1931-50s. In 1960 the house was owned and occupied
by Ben A. Henderson. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered
contributing to the historic district.




NPS Form 10-900-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 88 Whatcom County, Washington

809 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201200350

Date of Construction: 1906

Historic Name: Keel, Christian, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: This two-story American Foursquare with Colonial elements at 809 14th Street is situated above the street,
mid block, facing west. 1t was built in 1906, according to the Bellingham Herald (10/6/1906). It has a hip roof with three hipped
dormers (north, south, west). The roofing is composition shingle. The windows are vinyl sash, 1/1 with some 1/1 wood sash at
the rear. The foundation is concrete block, the porch is supported by post and beam. An early one-story porch has been
enlarged and converted into a small room at the rear. The house is a good example of an American Foursquare with its wood lap
siding, full porch across the front with hipped roof and pediment over the central entry. Its tympanum is decorated with a
fishscale pattern. The porch roof is supported with Tuscan columns placed in pairs at the entry and porch ends. The south end
of the porch has been enclosed with multi-pane wood sash windows with an entry leading from the porch to the resulting
sunroom. The porch is accessed by broad wooden steps with a newer metal handrail. A band of shingles above the water

table and cap continues across the solid porch rail. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable
alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of
the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

There is an associated garage to the southeast of the house that is accessed from the alley. It dates to post-1950 and has a
hipped roof clad in composition shingles. The walls are clad in lap siding. There are two modem, vinyl clad, garage doors on the
east side of the structure, as well as a wood human scale door with a glass pane.

Statement of Significance: The house at 809 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1906 (Bellingham Herald
10/6/1906). This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Christian Keel, a carpenter, owned
and lived in this house with his extended family from 1906 to circa 1920. Boarding with him in 1908 were Edwin H. Keel; Eleanor
Keel, a student at the Normal School; Ida Keel, a stenographer at E.L. Cowgill; and Minnie Keel. Relations living with him in 1915
were his wife, Anna; Anna K. Keel, a dressmaker; Edward H. Keel, a carpenter; Eleanor Keel, a teacher; |da Keel, stenographer;
and Otto Keel, a shingle weaver. In 1918 Anna Keel was working as a stenographer, and another family member, Nina Keel, as a
teacher. From circa 1923 to the 40s, the Hillier family were long-term residents. In 1923 Ann C. Hillier is listed as a teacher
renting the house. In the mid-1920s she was joined by William and Katherine W. (or Catherine) Hillier, the homeowners, and
Joseph F. Hillier, a student. William Hillier was Secretary-Treasurer of the Puget Sound Saw, Mill and Shingle Company. In the
1950s-60s, the house passed through several owners. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's
history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

814 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180347

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1923

Historic Name: Boyker, Bruce F. and Bessie E., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: O

Physical Description: The Craftsman style house at 814 14th Street is 1.5-stories and was built circa 1923. The house sits on
the west side of the street on a downward slope below street level. The foundation is concrete. It has a side gable roof with a
chimney in the center of the east sloping roof, and eaves supported by purlins. The front porch is on the south side and is
gabled, about ten feet square and supported by massive columns, with double corbels on each of their four top sides. The
columns sit on a solid porch rail. The front door is flanked symmetrically by two five-paned narrow windows. A small fixed
window is to the right (north) of the porch.

The cladding is lap cedar, except in the gables which are wood shingles. The bottom courses of the shingles in the gable apex
flare, and are supported by a stringcourse and corbels. Both side gables and the porch gable have this detail. The south side
has a wood frame double-hung window in the gable, and two double-hung windows with a smaller double-hung window
between them on the main floor. The north side has three double-hung windows, one in the gable and two paired windows on



NPS Form 10-800-a (Rev. 01/2009) OMB No. 1024-0018 (Expires 5/31/2012)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

South Hill Historic District

Section 7 Page 89 Whatcom County, Washington

the main floor. The upper panes of the windows contain six panes with a central larger pane, narrow panes along the top and
sides, and square panes in the upper corners.

The rear, west side, of the house has a large dormer on the south that opens on to a deck that sits above a square addition. The
addition occupies half of the west side. A door provides access to a basement and sits just north of the addition. A double hung
window opens on the main floor to the left of the window and has a similar patterned upper pane as the windows on the front
and side. A double-hung window above the door lacks the upper pane pattern. The addition has vertical cladding and a large
five-paned fixed window on the west side. Other windows on the other two sides are tall but not as wide.

The front part of the house is intact and rectangular. The rear has a dormer near the south end that opens onto a deck sitting on
a box-like addition. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding or
windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic
district.

On the alley is a period garage with a gable roof opening to the west. Itis clad in drop siding with four-pane wood windows on
its north side.

Statement of Significance: The house at 814 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1923. This construction date is supported by Sahborn maps and physical evidence. Bruce F. and
Bessie E. Boyker are the first known owners of this house; they lived there from 1927-31. Bruce Boyker was a bookkeeper for
Bloedel Donovan Lumber Mill. Boyker was also secretary-treasurer of the Pacific Veneer & Plywood Company. From.1932-48
the house was owned by Charles F. Trunkey. There were several different owners in the 1950s and 60s. Due to the level of
integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

818 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201184334

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1892

Historic Name: Hennelly, P.S., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The most notable feature of this Queen Anne style house at 818 14th Street is the large multi-pane window
bay to the left (south) of the entry. It was built circa 1892, based on Fairhaven tax rolls. It is surmounted by a gable which is
offset from the primary gable, and the corners of this smaller gable overhang the chamfered sides of the bay window. Over the
front door is a triangular hood supported by curved brackets and an applied king post. Surrounding the door are wide fluted
pilasters and it is topped with a painted inset tile. A tall narrow 10-pane window sits off-center under the top gable, and a

smaller eight-pane window is set symmetrical into the lower gable. On both the north and south sides of the house, three-sided
bays rise the full height of the house and are topped by gables. The house's primary windows are multi-pane double-hung sash,
while the main-floor deck has a row of six full-length windows facing the bay.

As the house is set on a hillside, the basement becomes fully daylighted on the alley (west) side. The upper 1.5-stories are clad
in lap, while the basement is clad in red parging over brick, and beneath the brick is a stone foundation. Protruding off the main
floor at the back of the house is a deck which is supported by bracketed posts. Below this a double-width garage has been
added, and this, too, is topped by a deck. A smaller deck off the side of the garage has stairs that lead down to the driveway.

The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be slight to moderate alterations to the original cladding. There
appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be
considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 818 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hilt
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. The Fairhaven Real Estate Assessment Roll shows a
$2,500 improvement as early as 1892 when the property was owned by P.S. Hennelly, thus a circa 1892 construction date. The
first owners of the house listed in the city directory were Joseph and Mary E. Alsop, who lived in the house from 1905-36. The
Alsops had a live-in domestic named Augusta Genzel in 1905. Joseph Alsop was vice-president of Whatcom Timber Company in
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1905, and subsequently the vice-president and secretary of the Exchange investment Company. Joseph's brother, Robert V.

Alsop, a salesman for the Pelican Cigar Store, lived in the house for some time and died there in 1929 (Bellingham Herald obituary,
8/26/1929). From 1937-54 the owner was Nell R. Alsop. Throughout the years of her residence, various renters lived in the

house with her. In 1956-57 the house was vacant; it was occupied in 1957, and vacant again in 1960. Due to the level of integrity of
the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

819 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201200340

Date of Construction: 1967

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1967 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

903 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202321

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1920

Historic Name: Laube, Fred and Ethel, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The two-story Dutch Colonial house at 903 14th Street was built circa 1920. It has a rectangular plan with
a highly symmetrical fagade and sits on a parged foundation. The gambrel roof and an almost full width dormer on the front
(west) and back (east) are covered in composition shingles. A pent roof adorns each of the north and south elevations and the
stuccoed chimney is attached to the south elevation. The walls are clad in lap siding. The recessed entry is topped by a second
story veranda supported by Tuscan Doric columns. French doors open out onto the veranda. The partially glazed front door and
its sidelights form a segmental arch. The primary window form is leaded glass 8/1 double-hung sashes. Most of the windows

are flanked by omamental shutters. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the
original cladding. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building,
this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 903 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1920. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This house was

the home of Fred E. Laube and wife Ethel between circa 1925 and circa 1940. Mr. Laube was the treasurer-manager for J.M.
Laube & Son Inc, a Sheet Metal & Heating contracting company, as well as a county commissioner. In 1945 William A. Martin and
wife Ruth occupied the house. Mr. Martin worked in the advertising department at Bellingham Publishing Company. Peter Kink, a
fisherman, and wife B. Eleanor lived in the house between circa 1950 and at least 1960. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

910 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201184318

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1949

Historic Name: Saint James Presbyterian Church
District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The complex at 910 14th Street is Saint James Presbyterian Church and was built on a southwest corner
lot circa 1949. It appears on the 1950 Sanborn with the note "from plans” meaning it was just under construction. The church is
a large side gable with a stone tower on the southeast side. The north end is of rock that wraps around the east side for about
12 feet, and sits on a concrete foundation. The front door is flanked by two large single pane windows and sheltered by a shed
roof. The central part of both the east and west walls are made of tall fixed steel sash windows separated by broad mullions.
The gable extends further down near the altar area near the north end with wall-high, multi-paned windows beneath. A slim
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multi-paned skylight wraps over the roof near the north end.

The west and down slope side, shows the large mullioned windows and several slider windows near the north end. A large
shed dormer with prominent eaves, has windows across its entire west side and two windows on both the north and south
sides. The dormer extends over a driveway that runs along the west side of the building. This area is an addition to the original
plan. The lower story has large windows at ground level flanked by doors.

On the south end of the church is a smaller attached multi-purpose building with a side gable somewhat lower than the church
roof line. The attached building is clad in notched vertical boards sitting on a stone faced foundation on the east and concrete on
the west. The building is 1.5-stories on the east side, with three gabled dormers with sliding windows, and two sets of slider
windows on either side of a main door. Matching dormers are on the west side, with two double pane windows and a single
pane window on the main floor. A ground level floor has three sets of combination picture windows with a casement pane on
one side. A west facing gable marks the church from the classrooms, with a prominent bow bay of five vertical panes.

The plan has slight alterations on the rear, while the cladding and windows all appear to have no discernable alterations. This
resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: Saint James Presbyterian Church at 910 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land
Claim in the South Hill neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built circa
1949. This construction date was derived principally from physical evidence and Sanborn maps. The current St James
Presbyterian Church at 910 14th was dedicated in 1957 (Koert and Biery, 2003, 139). It was designed by Dunham, Anderson &
Freed who won an honorable mention award for the work from AlA Seattle in 1957 (AlA Seattle website). This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history.

911 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201200313

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1905

Historic Name: Wallace, Charles S., House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The 2.5-story Queen Anne, Free Classical house, built circa 1905, at 911 14th Street is mid block facing
west. It features a steeply pitched hipped roof with hipped dormers on each side. The cladding is wood lap except for fishscale
shingled bands between floor levels on the full-height polygonal bays that are located on the front (west) and south sides. The
front porch, located at the north end of the fagade, has stuccoed box columns which support a second floor balcony with a
wood railing. The front door is wood, with 18 panes and a single pane transom. There are stairs at the back with entrances to
the two floors and attic, indicating that this single family residence may now contain two or more units. The structure has a
rectangular plan that rests on a stone foundation. The primary window type is 1/1 wood double-hung. The exterior shows only
slight modifications, including the circa 1920s porch supports, and the rebuilt (c.2000) front stair and balcony rail. The plan,
cladding and windows appear to have only slight alterations. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 911 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1905. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The earliest

known owner and occupant of this house was Charles S. Wallace in 1905. Wallace was at this time a clerk with J.L. Easton and
eventually president of the Washington Powder Company, a company he established in 1914. At one time, this company supplied
half of the thirty carloads of explosive power used in Whatcom county each year (Roth, 676). In 1915 Adeline N. Wallace, a
teacher, is also listed in the city directory as a renter. In 1918 the extended Wallace family apparently lived in the house. In
addition to Charles and Adeline, another teacher, Elizabeth W. Wallace is included in the listing as well as Charles' wife, Carrie B.
Wallace, a bookkeeper. In 1930 William and Elizabeth W. Whitfield owned and occupied the house. Mrs. Whitfield was apparently
widowed sometime around 1945, and in the 1950s and 60s the house came into new ownership. Due to the level of integrity of
the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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917 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201200305

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1900

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0  Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The two-story Free Classical house at 917 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, was built circa 1900.
It has a rectangular plan and sits on a stone foundation. The front-facing gable roof has eave returns. The entry door is located
within a porch on the north side of the front (west) elevation. The porch has a front facing gable roof with eave returns. The
porch roof is supported by square posts standing on a solid rail. To the south of the entry is a picture window. There are
ltalianate hoods over the upper level windows, all of which have been replaced with fixed and 1/1 vinyl sashes. A polygonal bay
window with a hipped roof is located on the south elevation. The back of the house includes an early, hipped roof one-story
addition with a projection to the north. The back entry faces west on the north elevation of the rear projection. All roof materials
are asphalt composition shingles. The walls are clad in vinyl siding designed to resemble wood lap. A chimney projects from the
center of the house. The plan appears to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
cladding. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building,
this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

The small garage is behind the house on the southeast corner of the lot. The front facing gable roof is covered with composition
shingle and the walls are clad in wood lap siding. The car entry door has been filled-in with lap siding.

Statement of Significance: The house at 917 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1900. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. lts history was not researched.

924 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201185259

Date of Construction: 1965

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1965 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

930 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201181249

Date of Construction: 1976

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 2

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1976 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

934 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201180244

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1951

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The house at 934 14th St is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house faces east on a corner lot. It
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was built in 1951 (according to the County Assessor) in the Ranch style. The one-story building has a hip roof clad in
composition shingles. The house has an irregular plan and stands on a concrete foundation. There appear to be moderate
alterations to the original plan: living space has been added at the back lower level (facing west) and on top of the square mass
to the northwest where a third-level deck, reached by a steep set of metal stairs, has been added atop a flat roof. This entire
part of the house may be an addition. It features two levels of living space. To the west, a bank of windows has been added;
above them is a horizontal strip of fixed windows. On the lower level to the south is an open area with a double glass door
entrance. Above it is a second-story deck with a mesh rail.

The original stucco cladding has been obscured by the recent major remodel (2008-09). The fagade (east-facing) is now
covered with a lower wainscoting of stone; the upper portion of the house is now clad in painted board-and-batten. The jointure
of the two claddings is marked by a narrow wood belt course. To the south and west of the house, the walls are ciad in
horizontal drop siding. The main entry of the house appears to be from the southeast side. A short set of concrete steps with a
metal rail leads to a glass panel wood frame door. There is a privacy fence on the northeast exposure; the door on this side
appears to be the rear entry. The principal window type is 1/1 vinyl sash. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original
windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945,

The original wood garage to the west on the alley has not been remodeled; it is accessed from the south. It has a gabled roof

Statement of Significance: The house at 934 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,
this resource was built in 1951. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history. The building's history was not researched.

935 14TH ST

Parcel Code; 370201217316

Date of Construction: 1914

Historic Name: Lowell School

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The Lowell School at 935 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The building occupies a full
block between 14th and 15th Streets and Douglas and Fillmore Avenues, if Fillmore went through the block. The school was built
facing west away from the slope of the hill with its back to 15th Street, and the building overlooks the playground which borders
14th Street.

Built in 1914 in the American Renaissance style, the school stands on a parged foundation and the primary wall cladding is brick.
The symmetrical building has a H-shaped plan with wings on the north and south sides. The face of each wing is ornamented
with a rectangular panel of contrasting lighter brick. On the sides of each rectangle are narrow vertical recessed panels housing
windows with one operable panel and painted white terra cotta sills. The projecting center entry vestibule is reached by an
imperial staircase with a solid railing. Over the ogee opening is a decorated pediment with a terra cotta panel bearing the name
Lowell School and the date 1914. Within the architrave are a squared arch and wide painted brick wainscoting on the side
panels. The front entrance is a pair of double-leaf glass panel doors with wide transoms. The floor of the vestibule is terrazzo.

There are also projecting vestibules on the north and south sides of the building. The south vestibule has a pair of double-leaf
two-panel doors with transoms, a squared arch, and an imperial staircase with solid railings. The north vestibule has two sets of
two double-leaf glass panel doors and a straight set of stairs. The upper roofline has a modest crenellated parapet with an
expanse of decorative vertical brick directly beneath it. It is capped with a terra cotta coping. Below the vertical brick fagade is a
sheet metal entablature with a wide dentil soffit and a narrower course of dentil trim below. The wings also have a painted
frieze molding above the windows on the three projecting sides. The three-story building has an unknown roof cladding but is
most likely built-up roof behind the parapet.

The lowest floor is parged, and the two upper floors are brick. The lintels, sills, and trim are terra cotta. The building is
characterized by an abundance of windows; the principal window type is various configurations of vinyl sash replacing the
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original wood sash windows. The window openings themselves appear unchanged. On the center fagade (east- and west-
facing) and on the north- and south-facing wings windows have exterior grid panels with one operable pane with a screen. The
top panels of the south-facing windows have been replaced with painted panels; each window has one operable slider panel.

Wheelchair ramps have been added to the top two levels on the east side (rear) and act as bridges from 15th Street to the
second floor level. On the rear is what appears to be a one-story boiler room addition with a brick exhaust stack integrated into
the brick wall of the school. The school is surrounded by three paved playgrounds. The west playground, site of the former
14th Street School, is marked for hopscotch and has tetherballs poles. The playground to the south has jungle gyms. The north
playground is open for team sports.

The building is currently closed (2008) for seismic retrofitting. There is no discemable alterations to the original plan or cladding.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource
would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The school at 935 14th Street is located on the former Morrison Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Bellingham. This resource was built in 1914.

The Bellingham Board of Education allocated $50,000 for the construction of Lowell School in 1914. It replaced the 14th Street
School, the first public grade schoo! in Fairhaven, built in 1890 by the City of Fairhaven. The 14th Street School had an initial
enroliment of 350 when it opened in June 1890 (Koert & Biery, 20). An article in the American-Reveille, "School System of
Bellingham Typifies Highest Endeavors,” touts the new Lowell School for being "both sanitary and fireproof and very well
lighted...[and sure to be] used as a standard in the construction of other grade schools in this city” (American-Reveille,
12/19/1915). After the completion of Lowell School, the previous school was demolished, and the site it had occupied became
the west playground (American-Reveiile, 9/6/1916).

T.F. Doan was the architect for the new Beaux-Arts school. He also designed Roeder School, Larrabee School, and Whatcom
High School, now Whatcom Middle School and favored the Greek revival style. The school was named in honor of James Russell
Lowell, Poet Laureate, on the request of a committee of South Bellingham residents (Bellingham Herald, 5/5/1966). The building
opened in 1915, and the final cost was $65,870. Lowell's enroliment in the fall of 1915 was 427 students (Bellingham Herald,
5/5/1966). When it was built, Lowell School was considered the "one of the handsomest and convenient schools in the
Northwest," with 14 classrooms for instruction, including "manual training and home economics," as well as lunch rooms, a library
room, a gymnasium, and an auditorium that seated an audience of 700 (American-Reveille, 12/19/1915). The auditorium was
converted into a library and resource center during a subsequent remodel (Koert & Biery, 147).

The school was closed for a year in 2008 for seismic retrofitting and another year, 2009, due to a shortage in school funding.
Well-known alumni of Lowell include Galen Biery, local historian, government fish inspector, film and print photographer; Jack
Carver, photographer for the Bellingham Herald; and Pete Dawson, Dawson Construction. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1000 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201186230

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1950

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story World War Il Era Cottage at 1000 14th Street was built circa 1950. The house sits on a
corner lot facing the west side of the street and the lot slopes down to the west. Three houses once sat on this corner with
identical or flipped plans according to the 1931 Sanborn. The house is rectangular in shape on a board-formed concrete
foundation, with the front porch recessed on the southeast corner. The porch has a distinctive rounded flat roofed covering that
doesn't appear in the assessor photo. The low pitched hip roof has two offset extensions north of the porch. The house looks
deceptively small from the road, but it has made full use of the basement on the down slope part of the lot. The cladding is
cementitious lap with corner boards. There are no eaves, the walls being topped with a frieze board. A large chimney is
attached to the middle of the south wall. A large 1/1 vinyl window is on the front main floor; on the south wall, a small square
window east of the chimney and a 1/1 window west of the chimney; two 1/1 windows on the north side with a third slider
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window between. The rear of the house has a porch leading onto a deck on the northwest corner with a sliding glass door; and
a picture window and sliding glass doors opening onto the deck on the main part of the west wall. The lower floor has three
glass block windows on the north side with a glass door near the east end. The west end has two large slider windows and a
sliding glass door opening out onto a deck.

There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original cladding. There
appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. This resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic
district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1000 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1950. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history. The building's history was not researched.

1003 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201203230

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1946

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The one-story World War Il Era Cottage at 1003 14th Street, in the South Hill neighborhood, dates to circa
1946. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a poured concrete foundation. The house is situated on a comner lot that slopes

toward the front and is addressed from the west side. The small one-car garage is in the basement under the northwest corner

of the house. It is accessed from the north. The hip roof is covered with composition shingles and the walls of the house are

clad in wood shingles. The entry is recessed and is additionally sheltered by its own hipped roof projection. It is flanked by large
fixed picture windows, vinyl replacements of original three-pane fixed windows. The southern extension of the house has a

garden window as well as a projection covered by a pent roof. The remainder of the house's windows are primarily vinyl 1/1
single-hung sashes. A chimney projects from the center of the house. There appear to be no alterations to the original plan. There is
no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. This resource
would be considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1003 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1946. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This resource is
considered non-contributing to the historic district because it was built after 1945, a date chosen for its distinctive demarcation in
history. The building's history was not researched.

1008 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201186224

Date of Construction: c¢. 1942

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1008 14th St is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east. It
was built in 1942 (according to the County Assessor) in the Minimal Traditional style. The house has an irregular plan and stands
on an unknown foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingles. There appear to be
moderate alterations to the original plan. The front gable, which projects from the mass of the house, is trimmed in bargeboard

and rakeboard; it has narrow eaves. To the south of the house is another protruding gable with a further mass projecting

outward, accordion style. The front entry is slightly inset within the fagade; the front door has a glass panel over wood. The

door surround is trimmed in a simple plank molding with crown molding at the top. The original decorative design in the top molding
(shown in an undated assessor's photo) is now obscured by an ornament.

The wall cladding is composite lap and appears to have only slight alterations. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash.
There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows. On the second story facade near the top of the gable is a metal
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slider; originally it featured a diamond-shaped accent pane between two smail hinged windows. There is a chimney on the

south gable on the side near the rear of the house. The back roof of the house slopes downward; there is also a wood deck to
the rear (west). Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the
historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1008 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1942. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

1011 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202220

Date of Construction: c. 1914

Historic Name: Reid, Robert, House

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bidgs: Contributing: 1 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1011 14th Street is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock, above the
street, facing west. It was built in 1914 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The bungalow has a
rectangular plan and stands on an unknown foundation. The one-story building has a very low pitched side gable roof clad in
composition shingles. The deep eaves are finished with bargeboards and supported by brackets and purlins. The primary wal
cladding is wood lap accented with brick. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash with hood moldings.

A full-width porch extends across the fagade. Its roof is formed by a broken pitch extension of the main roof. Truncated posts
with simple abacuses and bases support the header beam, which in turn supports ornamentally pointed ceiling beams. The posts
rest on brick plinths and the porch foundation is clad in brick. Two horizontal wood members link the plinths and serve as a
railing. Six wooden steps lead up the center of the porch to the wooden deck. The front door is on axis with the steps. Three
grouped, equal sized 1/1 wood sash windows lie to the south of the door. A Chicago style window with a larger 1/1 at the

center flanked by narrow 1/1 wood sashes lies to the north of the door. A brick chimney with diaper work executed in darker

brick is attached to the north elevation, near the front. At the center, the north includes a polygonal bay with 1/1 wood sashes on
all three sides. It is topped by a gable with deep eaves and brackets. A projecting room was added at the rear of the north
elevation, post-1950. Itis clad in the same lap siding as the house and is detailed in much the same manner, with deep eaves and
brackets. The south elevation includes a lean-to greenhouse, attached to the wall below the level of the windows. The plan
appears to have only slight alterations. There is no discernable alteration to the original cladding. There is no discernable
alteration to the original windows. Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered
contributing to the historic district.

A period garage lies at the southeast corner of the property. It is accessed from 14th Street, via a long paved driveway. The
garage has a gabled roof clad in rolled asphalt composition and with a north-south ridge. Its cladding is V-notch drop siding. A
single-car wide door lies on the west.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1011 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1914, This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. This one-story
bungalow was first occupied in 1915 by Robert V. Reid, an apprentice for Reid Brothers Company. In 1916-17 the resident was
listed in the city directory as Robert V. Reid, boilermaker. The Reid Brothers Company is a sheet metal and boiler works, built in
1915 and still operating (in 2008) on Bellingham Bay at Tenth Street between Filmore and Douglas. Robert A. Reid (the elder
brother) and Thomas W. Reid came to Bellingham in 1899. The business was incorporated in 1905, with Robert Reid as president
and Thomas Reid as secretary (Roth, 734-35). The longest resident of the house, 1920-54, was Gertrude Longley, a teacher at
the Normal School. Gertrude Longley died in 1955. Her sister, Alice Longley, is listed as operating a subscription agency out of
the house from approximately 1954-67. The house was also used to operate a cottage industry, Sunset Garden Florists, by their
father, William E. Longley, from 1929-42. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the buiiding's history, this
resource is considered contributing to the historic district.
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1012 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201185215

Date of Construction:  ¢. 1928

District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The Craftsman house at 1012 14th Street is 1.5-stories and was built circa 1928. The house sits at street
level on the west side of the street and the lot slopes down to the west. The house has a rectangular shape with a front gable
and a modern deck on the south side. The front door opens on to a small front-gabled porch, supported by box columns standing
on solid shingled porch rails. A small brick chimney sits astride the roof line. The roof is composition shingle and the wall
cladding is asbestos shingle. The gables have wide eaves fronted by large bargeboards; the side eaves are supported by rafter
tails. The foundation is concrete. The front, east facing, windows are 1/1 wood sash, symmetrically placed about the front
porch, and a smaller pair of 1/1 wood sash in the gable. There are two 1/1 windows on the south wall and a French door
opening onto the deck. The north side has two 1/1 windows towards the west end and a slider window towards the east end.
An addition to the house extends the southwest part of the gable about ten feet west beyond the north part of the main gable,
giving the impression of dual gables. This extension has large windows wrapped around its three sides, the side windows being
fixed, the west windows comprised of a center picture window flanked by wood framed casement windows. A smaller 1/1
window sits in the recessed west part of the gable. The lower floor extends only out of the western part of the slope and has a
door and sliding windows. The current owner states that the recessed, northem, half has been filled in with a shed that
matches the cladding of the main house.

The plan and cladding appear to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows.
Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1012 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor’s office,

this resource was built in 1928. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
resident of this house is Lawrence R. Kirkham in 1931. In 1940 it was owned by Henry F. Floyd. The longest resident and

owner was Ruth M. Mulkey, from approximately 1950-65. This portion of 14th Street seems to have been more commercial in the
1950s. Like the house across the street at 1011, this house was used for a home business: Mulkey Upholstery was located at

this address from 1950-65. Due to the level of integrity of the building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is
considered contributing to the historic district.

1015 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201202216

Date of Construction:  c. 1902

Historic Name: Burpee, John H. and Alleen A., House
District Contribution:  Contributing

Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 1

Physical Description: The west facing, two-story Craftsman American Foursquare house at 1015 14th Street, in the South Hill
neighborhood, was built circa 1902. It has a rectangular plan and sits on a concrete foundation. The hip roof is clad in asphalt
composition shingles and has overhanging eaves with visible rafter tails. A hipped wall dormer projects from the roof on each of
the four sides. The back (east) portion of the house is one story with a flat roof. The walls of the house are clad in narrow lap
siding on the lower story with asbestos shingles on the upper level and at the top of the one-story section in the back. The full-
width front porch, which was partially enclosed at an early date, is covered by a hipped roof. its open north third contains the
front door and features a paneled, square box column that rests on the solid porch rail. The enclosed southern two-thirds of the
porch are fronted by a huge picture window. The house's other windows are predominantly 1/1 wood double-hung sash. A
two-story bay window projection is located on the south side of the house. A brick chimney is attached to the south elevation.
The plan and cladding appear to have only slight alterations. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original windows.
Due to the level of integrity of the original building, this resource would be considered contributing to the historic district.

An early two-car garage stands at the front of the house on the southwest corner of the lot. It features a crenellated parapet
with stucco walls and shiplap doors.
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Statement of Significance: The house at 1015 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1902. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. The first known
owner and resident of this house was Richard J. Boyes, a filer, in 1905. Mildred Boyes, a music teacher, boarded with him.

From approximately 1908-25 the house was owned by John H. and Alleen A. Burpee. Burpee was a foreman with Burpee and
Letson Ltd., circa 1908 to circa 1915. In 1925 he was co-owner of Burpee-Adams Iron Works. In the 1930s, Ben E. Johnson

lived in the house. From 1940-65 the house had new jong-term owners: William F. and Gertrude J. Brannian lived in the house.
William Brannian was a superintendent of George F. Ambrose in 1940; by 1965 he was retired. Due to the level of integrity of the
building, coupled with the building's history, this resource is considered contributing to the historic district.

1018 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201187210

Date of Construction:  c. 1897

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1018 14th St is located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east. it
was built in 1897 (according to the County Assessor) in a Vernacular style. The house has an irregular plan and stands on a
concrete foundation. The 1.5-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingles. The wall cladding is asbestos
shingle, and there appear to be extensive alterations to the original cladding. There also appear to be extensive alterations to the
original plan. At the south portion of the fagade is a gable projection, trimmed in narrow bargeboard, that features a window with
a narrow transom. This projection shelters the entry, a wood panel door, and is cut out to form a small inset open porch. The
front door, an early one-pane/four-panel wood door with shelf, is the only sign of the original 1897 house. There appears to be a
projection to the rear, and the roof slopes downward over it. The triple sash window in the south fagade and the double sash in
the north fagade appear to be original. Otherwise, there appear to be extensive alterations to the original windows. The

principal window type is vinyl sash slider. A small viny! slider is placed at the apex of the front (east-facing) gable. There are

two skylights on the southem portion of the roof. There is no alley or rear access from which to view the back of the property
using public right-of-way. Due to the amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-
contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1018 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1897. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

1022 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201186205

Date of Construction: 1986

District Contribution:  Non-Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: This resource was not surveyed as it was built after 1960.

Statement of Significance: This resource was not surveyed as it was built in 1986 (according to the Whatcom County
Assessor); therefore, the resource is considered non-historic, non-contributing to the historic district.

1028 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201185198

Date of Construction: ¢, 1931

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The multi-gable house at 1028 14th Street is one story and was built about 1931. The house sits on the
west side of the street and the lot slopes down to the west. The basic design is of side gable with two cross gables
symmetrical about the front entrance. The entrance is about ten feet square and the front is flush with the front gables. The
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front door has narrow fixed windows on either side. The interior walls have fixed windows on either side. The gables and
dormers have wide eaves supported by large eave brackets. The roof is composition shingle and the walls are horizontal thin
cementitious lap, with the exception of the addition that has staggered shingles in the upper parts. A narrow brick chimney rises
from the back of the side gable.

An addition of a side gable, and higher than the original roof line is attached to the northwest corner of the house. The addition
has a low gabled dormer on the front side and a shed dormer at the rear, and square bay windows in both the front and the rear.
There are no windows on the north side of the addition. The main floor windows on the cross gables and addition are

casement metal sash with bungalow grids separated by mullions and have wide wood frames with simple hoods and sills.

On the west side, the main part of the house has a three-paned window in the north gable, a glass door and two windows in the

center, and glass French doors in the south gable. The addition has square picture windows in both the dormer and on the main

floor. The house is currently being extensively remodeled and has been enlarged. The original stucco has been replaced by thin

lap. There appear to be extensive alterations to the original plan, cladding, and windows. Due to the amount of alteration to the original
building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1028 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairhaven. According to the Whatcom County Assessor's office,

this resource was built in 1931. This construction date is supported by Sanborn maps and physical evidence. Due to the amount

of alteration to the original building, this resource is considered non-contributing to the historic district. Its history was not researched.

1032 14TH ST

Parcel Code: 370201187191

Date of Construction:  c¢. 1928

District Contribution:  Historic Non-Contributing
Secondary Bldgs: Contributing: 0 Non-Contributing: 0

Physical Description: The house at 1032 14th Stis located in the South Hill neighborhood. The house is midblock facing east. It
was built in 1928 (according to the County Assessor) in the Craftsman style. The bungalow has a rectangular plan and stands
on an unknown foundation. The one-story building has a front gable roof clad in composition shingles. The gables feature
pointed bargeboard, and the open eaves have modillions. The wall claddings are vertical groove plywood and stucco. There
appear to be extensive alterations to the original cladding. The upper portion of the front (east-facing) gable features a Tudor-
style half-timber and nogging effect. There appear to be moderate alterations to the original plan. At the north end of the fagade
is an inset entry porch with a skylight; the outer porch wall has a window, and inside the porch are the entry and a small picture
window. There appear to be slight alterations to the original windows. The principal window type is 1/1 wood sash, and the
house retains many of the sash windows on the north side. There is a brick chimney at the apex of the gable near the rear
(west) of the roof. There is no alley access, and no associated resources are visible from the public right-of-way. Due to the
amount of alteration to the original building, this resource would be considered non-contributing to the historic district.

Statement of Significance: The house at 1032 14th Street is located on the former O'Conner Donation Land Claim in the South Hill
neighborhood. The building is located in the original town of Fairha<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>